TORBAY ™7~

Health- Wellbeing

BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Tuesday, 20 March 2018

Meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Wednesday, 28 March 2018
1.30 pm

Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR

Members of the Board

Nick Roberts, South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group
Caroline Taylor, Director of Adult Services

Pat Harris, Healthwatch Torbay

Caroline Dimond, Director of Public Health

The Elected Mayor, Gordon Oliver

Dr Liz Thomas, NHS England

Andy Dempsey, Director of Children's Services

Councillor Parrott

Councillor Stockman

Councillor Doggett

Co-opted Members of the Board (non-voting)

Ann Wagner, Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust
Alison Hernandez, Police and Crime Commissioner

Martin Oxley, Torbay Community Development Trust
Melanie Walker, Devon Partnership NHS Trust

ORBA NHS
"=

Lisa Antrobus, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR
01803 207064
Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk

(1)



mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

AGENDA
1. Election of Chairman/woman
To elect a Chairman/woman for the remainder of the Municipal
Year.
2, Apologies

To receive any apologies for absence, including notifications of any
changes to the membership of the Committee.

3. Minutes (Pages 4 - 6)
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Health and
Wellbeing Board held on 7 September 2017.

4, Declaration of interest

4(a) To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of
items on this agenda

For reference: Having declared their non pecuniary interest
Members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the
matter in question. A completed disclosure of interests form should
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

4(b) To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in
respect of items on this agenda

For reference: Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the
item. However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter. A
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

(Please Note: If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.)

5. Urgent items
To consider any other items that the Chairman/woman decides are
urgent.

6. Future Delivery of Primary Care and the Role of Pharmacies
To note a briefing from the Chair of Devon’s Local Pharmaceutical
Committee.

7. Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) (Pages 7 - 109)
To consider a report that seeks approval of the Pharmaceutical
Needs Assessment.

(2)



10.

1.

12.

Developing the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the (Pages 110 -121)
Work Programme of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Improving the health, care and wellbeing of the people of South (Pages 122 - 131)
Devon and Torbay through a Local Care Partnerships
To comment upon the discussion document.

2018-20 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Torbay (Pages 132 - 183)
To consider a report that seeks approval for the publication of the
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.

Health Protection Report for Health and Wellbeing Boards of (Pages 184 - 238)
Devon County Council, Plymouth City Council, Torbay Council

and Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly Councils 2016-2017

To note the report.

Better Care Fund (To Follow)
To consider a report on the above.

®3)



Agenda Iltem 3

TORBAY

Health- Wellbeing

BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board
7 September 2017
- Present :-
Ann Wagner, Nick Roberts, Caroline Taylor, Caroline Dimond, Jonathan Drew, Councillor

Julien Parrott, Councillor Jackie Stockman, Councillor Derek Mills (Chairman), Councillor
lan Doggett and Andy Dempsey

31.  Election of Chairman/woman

Councillor Mills was elected Chairman for the 2017/2018 Municipal Year.
(Councillor Mills in the Chair)

32. Appointment of Vice-Chairman
Martin Oxley was appointed as Vice-Chairman for the 2017/2018 Municipal Year.

33. Apologies
Apologies for absence were received from Martin Oxley, Alison Hernandez, Melanie
Walker, Mayor Oliver, Liz Thomas and Pat Harris who was represented by
Jonathan Drew.
Members were also advised that the membership of the Health and Wellbeing
Board had been amended following Mairead MacAlinden nominating Ann Wagner
to be her permanent substitution.

34. Minutes
The Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 16 March 2017.

35. Re-procurement of Children's Services
Members noted a report that informed Members of the progress on the
procurement of Children and Young People’s Services. Simon Tapley, South Devon
and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group informed Members that the current
contract expires on 31 April 2018 with a further extension having been put in place
in order to ensure consistent service provision. Commissioners had taken the
opportunity to review the provision of community health and care services and

during the pre-procurement planning phase is looking at services ranging from
those that all children and young people come into contact with at some point. This

Page 4



Health and Wellbeing Board Thursday, 7 September 2017

36.

37.

means that the procurement will include in scope services provided not only by the
current provider but some services provided by the Council.

Members sought reassurance that feedback would be sought from both clients and
employees of the current services and that the timeline set out in the submitted
paper had been confirmed.

Adult Services - Better Care Fund

The Board considered a report that set out the schemes to be funded by the Better
Care Fund. Whilst sign-off from NHS England is required for the overall schemes,
Torbay has already begun to use the funding within its control to make a positive
difference and reduce demand and costs whilst improving the experience for people
in receipt of care.

Members noted that the outcomes were reported via the Local Account but felt the
reporting should be more than a once a year and requested a Better Care Fund
monitoring outcome framework be included to the Board’s work programme.

Resolved by consensus:

i)  That the Better Care Fund arrangements as set out in the attached appendix
be approved; and

i)  that the approach to the Improved Better Care Fund be endorsed.
Deep Dive - support for vulnerable adults and families

Members had a detailed discussion on the merits of the Systems Optimisation
Group which had been set up to provide a co-ordinated, multi-agency approach to
supporting vulnerable people with complex needs who are at risk of harm to
themselves or others.

Members expressed frustration that the group was struggling to gain traction and
that client consultation was perceived to be the next step. It was suggested that any
past consultation exercises that had been undertaken by various agencies should
be reviewed first to see to what extent they already identified what the issues were.
Members felt the group needed to refocus and seek quick success in order to
ensure that the group provides value for money rather than losing the good will of
those who attend.

Members further questioned the value of the Health and Wellbeing Board, feeling
that it too had lost its strategic focus with the Board itself being challenged as to its
mandate and role. Ann Wagner offered, and the Board accepted, to assist the
Board to address the following:

e Going forward what does the Health and Wellbeing Board feel like;

e How is the Health and Wellbeing Board going to work going forward; and
e What is working well and what can be done differently.

Page 5



Health and Wellbeing Board Thursday, 7 September 2017

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Ann and Caroline Dimond were asked to take this review forward and report back
when appropriate.

Highlight Report - Healthy Torbay Framework

The Board noted the report and were advised that since the submission of the
report the Suicide Prevention Strategy had been put in place with staff resource
assigned to support its implementation. Members were also informed that the
Alcohol Strategy would be revisited as some areas were not being progressed as
officers had hoped.

Highlight Report - Promoting active ageing

The Board noted the report and requested that the ageing well innovations be
turned into business cases showing what worked well and needs to sustained as a
invest to save scheme.

Members further noted the next tranche of activity was designed to make older
people to feel par to the community and requested the next report from the
Community Development Trust detail how it intends to measure sustainability of
that activity and how it can be sustained going forward.

Highlight Report - Shifting the focus to prevention and early intervention
The Board noted the report.

Highlight Report - Mental health prevention and early intervention

The Board noted the report.

Market Position Statement Adult Social Care

The Board noted the Market Position Statement was a statutory requirement and

that going forward the Board may need to consider a report on the state of the
market for adult social care.

Chairman/woman

Page 6



Agenda Item 7

TORBAY =~
Health- Wellbeing
BOARD
Working together for a healthier Torbay
Title: Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA)
Wards Affected: All
To: Health and Wellbeing Board On: 28 March 2018
Contact: lan Tyson
Telephone: 01803 207314
Email: ian.tyson@torbay.gov.uk

1. Purpose

1.1 A Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) is a comprehensive assessment
of the current and future pharmaceutical needs of the local population for
community pharmacy, dispensing appliance contractors, and dispensing
doctors in rural areas (where relevant). The Health and Social Care Act 2012
transferred the responsibility to develop and update PNAs from Primary Care
Trusts to Health and Wellbeing Boards (H&WBs) from 1 April 2013. This means
that Torbay’s H&WB has a legal duty to ensure the production of a PNA for
Torbay going forward. H&WBs were required to publish their first PNA by 1 April
2015 and publish a statement of its revised assessment within three years of
its previous publication or sooner if changes to the need for pharmaceutical
services are identified which are of significant extent.

The PNA for Torbay 2018-2021 presents a picture of community pharmacy
need and provision in Torbay, and links to Torbay’s Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment (JSNA).

The PNA consultation ran from 04 December 2017 — 02 February 2018, through
the Torbay Council consultation team. It was be promoted to a defined group
of stakeholders only due to the PNA being a technical document to determine
pharmacy market entry applications to NHSE and not a document that is
expected to be of interest to the general population.

The PNA steering group for Devon met on 02 February 2018 and reviewed all
consultation responses across the three Devon H&WB areas. All PNA’s were
amended accordingly, as applicable. A consultation report is appended to the
PNA document.

2. Recommendation

2.1  That the Board approve the PNA for publication on 01 April 2018.

ORBAY Page 7 NHS

COUNCIL -



2.2  That the Board agree to the publication of the PNA on the Torbay Council
website by 01 April 2018.

3. Supporting Information

3.1 The PNA is attached in the Background Papers.

4. Relationship to Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

4.1  The JSNA is a specific section within the PNA.

5. Relationship to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

5.1 The PNA is, under legislation, a statutory obligation of H&WBs to produce.

6. Implications for future iterations of the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment and/or Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

6.1 No anticipated implications for either, unless the strategy does not articulate
that it is a statutory requirement of the H&WB to produce the PNA every 3
years.

Appendices

None

Background Papers:
The following documents/files were used to compile this report:

I
- gl

Torbay PNA
2018-2021 FINAL. pdt

Page 8



Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

2018-2021 PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS
ASSESSMENT FOR TORBAY

N

Page 9



Document Information

This is a controlled document. It should not be altered in any way without the express
permission of the author or their representative.

Document status:

Author: Doug Haines and lan Tyson. The document was
developed by Torbay Council Public Health and the
Devon PNA Steering Group, on behalf of Torbay’s
Health and Wellbeing Board.

Document version: Version 3.0

Document date: February 2018

Next review date Every three years unless significant change to
pharmaceutical service provision

Approved by: Torbay Health and Wellbeing Board

Date approved: TBC

Links to: (JSNA) http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/

Amendment History

Version: Status: Date: Reason for Change: Authorised by:

1.0 Draft 08/11/2017 | Initial draft — pre Devon PNA
consultation Steering Group

2.0 Second 02/02/2018 | Post-consultation draft — Devon PNA
draft pre steering group review | Steering Group

3.0 Final 21/02/2018 | Final draft for HWBB sign- | Devon PNA
draft off Steering Group

Acknowledgments

The development of this Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) was overseen by
the Devon PNA Steering Group.

The authors of this report would like to thank Members of the Steering Group for their
considerable input and support throughout the process.

In particular, special thanks are given to the South West Knowledge and Intelligence
Team (Public Health England) for their analysis of the NHS England data in a
consistent format across the three Devon HWB areas.

Finally, the authors would like to thank all persons who contributed to the consultation
on this PNA.

Page 10



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/

Contents

(70T 1 (=] 01 £ 7P 3
1 EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ....ciiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e eeaan s 7
2 INETOAUCTION .. 9
2.1 Purpose of a pharmaceutical needs assessment (PNA) ........cccoovvvivviiiinieeenn. 9
2.2 HWB duties in respect of the PNA ... 9
2.3 The scope of this PNA: Contractors and SEerviCes ............ccceeevieeeerveeeevnnnnnnnn 10
2.3.1  CONrACIONS ...ttt ettt e et e e e et e e e e e aa e e e eeenans 10
2.3.2 Pharmaceutical services provided by pharmacy contractors.................. 12
2.3.3  AUVANCEA SEIVICES. ... iieeiiieeeiiiiiee e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e eeeeannn s 14
2.3. 4 ENNANCEA SEIVICES ....oi et e e e 15
2.3.5 Clinical QOVEINANCE ......ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 16
2.3.6  OPENING NOUIS ....cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee et 17
2.3.7 Recent changes to the contractual arrangements for pharmacies......... 17

2.3.8 Pharmaceutical services provided by dispensing appliance contractors19

2.3.9  APPlIANCE SEIVICES.....cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 19
pZC I O B AN |V = T g [t =T BT =T Vo L P 20
2.3.11 Clinical QOVEINANCE .......ccoeiiiiiiiiiee et 21
2.3.12 OPENING NOUIS ....oviiiii i 21
2.3.13 Pharmaceutical services provided by dispensing doctors...................... 21
2.4 Locally commiSSIONEd SEIVICES ......uuiiiiieeiiiiieeice e 22
2.4.1 Services commissioned by Torbay councCil............cccccveeiiiieeeieeeiiiiinnn, 22
2.4.2  Services commissioned by South Devon and Torbay CCG................... 24
2.5 Other NHS SEIVICES. ....uuuiiiiiieeieeeitiie e ee e s 25
2.6 Changes to the existing provision of pharmaceutical services ..................... 25
2.7 How the assessment was undertaken..............ccceevveieiiiiiiiiiiiinee e 26
2.7.1 PNA STEEINNG GIOUP .oeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieie ettt ettt e e 26
A =\ AN [0 To%= 1111 U 27
2.7.3  Other sources of iINfOrmMation .............coovuviiiiiiiie e 27
2.7.4 Equality and safety impact aSSESSMENt..........ccoevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeen, 27
2.7.5  CONSUIALION.....ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 28

3 OVerview Of TOrDAY .........uuuiiii e 5 .29



X 200 R [ 1 £0 o ¥ Tod 1 o] o PP 29
3.2 The POPUIALION .......cooiiiiiiii 30
3.3 ‘Protected Characteristics’ (Equality Act 2010) .......ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee, 31
The Equality Act 2010 sets out nine personal characteristics that are protected by
LTS = PP SURPPPPPPPIN 31
.3 A e 32
3.3.2  DISADIIILY ..o 32
3.3.3 Faith, religion or belief ... 32
3.3.4 Gender - including marriage, pregnancy and maternity ......................... 33
3.3.5  Gender reasSIGNMENT ........uuuuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieeeb e 33
B.3.0  RACE .. 33
3.3.7  Sexual Orientation - including Civil Partnership...........ccccccuvvvvviiiinnnnnnnns 33
3.4 Material deprivation ... 34
3.5 Car ownership (relevance to accessing pharmaceutical services)............... 35
3.6 Mosaic breakdown alterNatiVe ............ccooevvveieiiiiiiiie e 36
4  General health needs of TOrbay ..., 38
vt R [ 011 o T U T4 1 o PP 38
4.2 Public Health England’s Health Profile for Torbay 2017...........cccccvveeeee. 38
4.3 The Child Health Profile for Torbay 2017 ...........ccoovvviiiiiiiiie e, 41
4.4  Housing growth and significant housing developments...........cccccccvveeeeeeeeen. 44
5 Identified patient groups — particular health ISSUES ............coovvviiiiiiiiieiiiieiin, 46
o 01 R Y o [ PP 46
5.2 DISADIILY ..uueiiee e 46
5.3  Gender re-asSigNMENT........ccooiiiiiiiiiiie e e a7
5.4 Marriage and Civil partnership ........cccoooeeeiiiiiiiiiii e a7
5.5 Pregnancy and Maternity ..........ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e a7
LT o 3= T P 47
5.7 Religion and belief...........oo a7
B 8 S BX ittt 48
5.9  Sexual OreNTAtiON ......uueuiiie e e e 48
o0 IO T o o] 0 1= 1S 48
o0t I Y F o [ £ U 49
o0 I 101U £ 49
6 Health needs that can be met by pharmaceutical services.............cccccvvvvvvvnnnnnn. 50
6.1 Introduction g DO



6.2 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) ... 51

7 Provision of pharmaceutical SEIVICES..........cooooiiiiiiiiii 54
7.1 NECESSAIY SEIVICES ...uvuuuiiieeeeieiiiiiiiiaa e e e e e e eeeettta s e e e e e e eeeeesaanaeaeeaeeeessrnnnnnnes 54
7.2 Current provisSion Of NECESSANY SEIVICES.........ccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeee e 55
7.3 Current provision outside the HWB’s area ............ccccoovveviiiiiiiiiicccin, 57
7.4 ACCESS 10 PreIMISES ....coiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 59

7.4.1 Access to the essential services (core plus supplementary opening
hours) 61

7.4.2  Access to Medicines Use Review (MUR) .......ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiineeeceeeeiiiinn 63
7.4.3 Access to New Medicines Service (NMS)........coovvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee, 63

7.4.4  Access to the ‘on demand availability of specialist medicines’ enhanced
service 63

7.4.5 Access to dispensing of applianCes..........ccovvvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee 64

7.5  Other releVant SEIVICES .......ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii et e e 64
AL I Ao V= T g ol =To ST =T Vo o PR 64
7.6.1 Influenza vaccination advanced SErVICe ............cccvvvvivvriiieeeeeeeeeeiiiinnnn 64
7.6.2 Stoma appliance customisation advanced ServiCe ............ccccevveevvvvnnnnnn. 64
7.6.3 Appliance Use Review (AUR) advanced ServicCe .........ccccccvvvvreeeeeeeennnnn. 65
7.6.4 Urgent supply advanced service (NUMSAS) .........oooviiieiiiieeeeeeeiiiiinnn, 65

7.7 Services commissioned by the CCG or Council...........cooovvviiiiiieeriieciiiiinnnn. 65
7.7.1 Services commissioned by the CCG ........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e, 65
7.7.2  Services commissioned by the council ...............ccccviiiiiiii, 65

7.8  Other NHS SEIVICES.....coiiiiiiiiieieeeeeee e 67
7.8.1 Hospital pharmMaci@s ..........ocouuuiiiiiii e e 67
7.8.2  Personal administration of items by GPS ...........cccoovviiiiiiiiiiecce, 67
7.8.3  GP OuUt Of HOUIS SEIVICE ...coeiiiiiiiei ettt 68

7.9 Services provided by other organisations..............ccoviiiiiiiiiiie e, 68

S I O] o o] U1 [0 o PSRRI 69
S TN R O [ ¢ (= | A o] (0171 (o] o 69
8.2 Necessary services: current gaps in ProViSioN ...........cceeevveeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeenn. 69
8.3 Necessary services: future gaps in ProViSioN ..........coeueeiveiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeen 69
8.4  Other relevant services: current and future gaps in provision ..........ccccc....... 70
Appendix 1: Acronyms and defiNitioNS ..........ceeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeee e 71
Appendix 2: Legislation relating to PNAS ........ovuuiiiii e e e e e eeeeens 73
Appendix 3: Steering Group MemMbBErShIP .....c..evvveiiiii e : .84

Page 13



Appendix 4: Equality impact aSSESSMENT .........uuuuiiiieieiiiiiiiiier et eeeeens 85

Appendix 5: List of contractors and opening tiMes ... 93

Appendix 6: List of contractors and advanced, enhanced and locally-commissioned

EST=] Y (o1 =TT ] 101/ [ [T o 96

Appendix 7: CONSUILALION FEPOIT ... ....uuuieie e et e et e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeene 99
6

Page 14



1 Executive Summary

A Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) is a comprehensive assessment of the
current and future pharmaceutical needs of the local population for community
pharmacy, dispensing appliance contractors, and dispensing doctors in rural areas
(where relevant). The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred the responsibility
to develop and update PNAs from Primary Care Trusts to Health and Wellbeing
Boards (H&WBs) from 1 April 2013. This means that Torbay’s H&WB has a legal duty
to ensure the production of a PNA for Torbay going forward. H&WBs are required to
publish their first PNA by 1 April 2015 and publish a statement of its revised
assessment within three years of its previous publication or sooner if changes to the
need for pharmaceutical services are identified which are of significant extent.
The PNA for Torbay 2018-2021 presents a picture of community pharmacy need and
provision in Torbay, and links to Torbay’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).
This PNA will be used by NHS England to inform:
e decisions regarding which NHS funded services need to be provided by
community pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors in Torbay
e whether new pharmacies or services are needed
e decision-making about the relocation of existing pharmaceutical premises in
response to applications by providers of pharmaceutical services

e the commissioning of locally Enhanced services from pharmacies

Providers of pharmaceutical services will also use the PNA to inform their
applications to provide pharmaceutical services by demonstrating that they are able
to meet a pharmaceutical need as set out in the PNA.
Torbay’s PNA was developed in partnership with the Devon-wide PNA Steering
Group on behalf of Torbay’s H&WB. This was to ensure that production of the PNAs
for Devon, Plymouth and Torbay followed the same process and format but with
locally relevant information.
The NHS Regulations 2013 set out the legislative basis for producing and updating
PNAs, and specify a list of minimum information that must be included in the PNA.
Torbay’s PNA is structured as follows:

e Introduction

e Overview of Torbay

Page 15



e General health needs in Torbay

e Identified patient groups — particular health issues

e Health needs that can be influenced by pharmaceutical services
e Provision of pharmaceutical services

e Conclusion

Information regarding local provision of pharmaceutical services was made available
by NHS England and analysed by the Public Health England Local Knowledge and
Intelligence Service (PHE LKIS) on behalf of the Steering Group.

The consultation period ran from Monday 4 December 2017 to Friday 2 February
2018. The H&WBSs for Devon, Plymouth and Torbay ran the consultation for each of
their PNAs at the same time. This was to aid organisations who were asked to
respond to consultations for more than one area at the same time. The method of
consultation was agreed by the PNA Steering Group. The PNA Steering Group met
following the end of the consultation period to discuss the feedback received across
all three areas and agree appropriate action. Following this, some minor amendments
were made to the report.

In conclusion, Torbay’s ageing population means that the overall demand for health
and social care services is likely to increase, particularly in terms of managing long-
term conditions. However, pharmacies in Torbay are well-placed to deliver healthcare
services to their local communities and current pharmaceutical provision is assessed
as being sufficient to meet the anticipated needs over the next three years. However,
it is anticipated that the role they play will continue to evolve over the coming years,
particularly with changes to future pharmacy and primary care provision. Whilst the
core activity of community pharmacies is commissioned by NHS England, they
continue to provide a key role for Torbay Council and the South Devon and Torbay
CCG, particularly in relation to improving the public’'s health and wellbeing, and

addressing health inequalities.

Page 16



2 Introduction

2.1 Purpose of a pharmaceutical needs assessment (PNA)

The purpose of the PNA is to assess and set out how the provision of pharmaceutical
services can meet the health needs of the population of a HWB’s area for a period of
up to three years, linking closely to the JSNA. Whilst the JSNA focusses on the
general health needs of the population of Torbay, the PNA looks at how those health
needs can be met by pharmaceutical services commissioned by NHS England.

If a person (a pharmacy or a dispensing appliance contractor) wants to provide
pharmaceutical services, they are required to apply to NHS England to be included in
the pharmaceutical list for the HWB'’s area in which they wish to have premises. In
general, application must offer to meet a need that is set out in the HWB’s PNA, or to
secure improvements or better access similarly identified in the PNA. There are
however some exceptions to this, in particular applications offering benefits that were
not foreseen when the PNA was published (‘unforeseen benefits applications’).

As well as identifying if there is a need for additional premises, the PNA will also
identify whether there is a need for an additional service or services, or whether
improvements or better access to existing services are required. Identified needs,
improvements or better access could either be current or will arise within the lifetime
of the PNA.

Whilst the PNA is primarily a document for NHS England to use to make
commissioning decisions, it may also be used by local authorities and CCGs. A
robust PNA will ensure those who commission services from pharmacies and
appliance contractors (DACs) are able to ensure services are targeted to areas of

health need, and reduce the risk of overprovision in areas of less need.

2.2 HWB duties in respect of the PNA

The legislation containing the HWB's specific duties in relation to PNAs can be found

in appendix 2, however in summary the HWB must:

Page 17



o produce its first PNA which complies with the regulatory requirements;

o publish its first PNA by 1 April 2015;

o publish subsequent PNAs on a three yearly basis;

o publish a subsequent PNA sooner when it identifies changes to the need for
pharmaceutical services which are of a significant extent, unless to do so would
be a disproportionate response to those changes; and

o produce supplementary statements in certain circumstances.

2.3 The scope of this PNA: Contractors and services

2.3.1 Contractors

NHS England must keep lists of contractors who provide pharmaceutical services in
the area of the HWB. The principal types of contractor are:

o Pharmacy contractors — Individual pharmacists (sole traders), partnerships of
pharmacists or companies who operate pharmacies. Who can be a pharmacy
contractor is governed by The Medicines Act 1968. All pharmacists must be
registered with the General Pharmaceutical Council, as must all pharmacy

premises.
Within this group there are:

o  Community pharmacies — These are pharmacies which provide services
to patients in person from premises in (for example) high street shops,
supermarkets or adjacent to doctors’ surgeries. As well as dispensing
medicines, they can sell medicines which do not need to be prescribed but
which must be sold under the supervision of a pharmacist. They may also,
but do not have to, dispense appliances. Community pharmacies operate
under national terms of service set out in schedule 4 of the 2013
regulations and also in the Pharmaceutical Services (Advanced and
Enhanced Services) (England) Directions 2013 (the 2013 directions).

10

Page 18



Local pharmaceutical services (LPS) contractors — A small number of
community pharmacies operate under locally-agreed contracts. While
these contracts will always include the dispensing of medicines, they have
the flexibility to include a broader or narrower range of services (including
services not traditionally associated with pharmacy) than is possible under
the national terms of service, and so can be more tailored to the area they

serve.

Distance-selling pharmacies (DSPs) — These pharmacies cannot
provide most services on a face-to-face basis. They operate under the
same terms of service as community pharmacies, so are required to
provide the same essential services and to participate in the clinical
governance system, but there is an additional requirement that they must
provide these services remotely. For example a patient may post their
prescription to a distance selling pharmacy and the contractor will
dispense the item and then deliver it to the patient's address by post or
using a courier. Distance selling pharmacies therefore interact with their
customers via the telephone, email or a website and will deliver dispensed
items to the customer’s preferred address. Such pharmacies are required
to provide services to people who request them wherever they may live in
England, and cannot limit their services to particular groups of patients
(though it is recognised that these pharmacies may not be best placed to
provide urgent or acute medication).

Dispensing appliance contractors (DACs) — DACs supply appliances such as

stoma and incontinence aids, dressings, bandages etc. They cannot supply

medicines. There are no restrictions on who can operate as a DAC. DACs

operate under national terms of service set out in schedule 5 of the 2013

regulations and also in the 2013 directions.

Dispensing doctors — Medical practitioners authorised to provide drugs and

appliances in designated rural areas known as “controlled localities”. Dispensing

doctors can only dispense to their own patients. They operate under national

terms of service set out in schedule 6 of the 2013 regulations.

11

Page 19



The services that a PNA must include are defined within both the NHS Act 2006 and
the 2013 regulations.

2.3.2 Pharmaceutical services provided by pharmacy contractors

Unlike for GPs, dentists and optometrists, NHS England does not hold contracts with
most pharmacy contractors (the exception being Local Pharmaceutical Services
contractors). Instead, as noted above, they provide services under terms of service

set out in legislation.

Pharmacy contractors provide three types of service that fall within the definition of

pharmaceutical services.

2.3.2.1 Essential services

All pharmacies must provide these services. There are six essential services:

o Dispensing of prescriptions — The supply of medicines and appliances
ordered on NHS prescriptions (both electronic and non-electronic), together with
information and advice, to enable safe and effective use by patients and carers,
and maintenance of appropriate records. Also the urgent supply of a drug or

appliance without a prescription at the request of a prescriber.

o Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions — The management and dispensing
of repeatable NHS prescriptions for medicines and appliances in partnership
with the patient and the prescriber. Repeatable prescriptions allow, for a set
period of time, further supplies of the medicine or appliance to be dispensed
without additional authorisation from the prescriber, if the dispenser is satisfied

that it is appropriate to do so.

o Disposal of unwanted drugs — Acceptance by community pharmacies, of
unwanted medicines which require safe disposal from households and
individuals. NHS England is required to arrange for the collection and disposal

of waste medicines from pharmacies.

12

Page 20



o Promotion of healthy lifestyles — The provision of opportunistic healthy
lifestyle and public health advice to patients receiving prescriptions who appear
to have particular conditions, and pro-active participation in national/local
campaigns, to promote public health messages to general pharmacy visitors

during specific targeted campaign periods.

o Signposting — The provision of information to people visiting the pharmacy,
who require further support, advice or treatment which cannot be provided by
the pharmacy, but is available from other health and social care providers or
support organisations who may be able to assist the person. Where appropriate,

this may take the form of a referral.

o Support for self-care — The provision of advice and support by pharmacy staff
to enable people to derive maximum benefit from caring for themselves or their

families.

Note: where a pharmacy contractor chooses to supply appliances as well as
medicines, the requirements of the appliance services (listed below in section 2.3.8)

also apply.

While not classed as separate services, pharmacies may also provide the following

as enhancements to the provision of essential services:

o Dispensing of electronic prescriptions received through the Electronic
Prescription Service (EPS) — The ability for the pharmacy to receive
prescriptions details from doctors’ surgeries electronically. EPS Release 1
involved paper prescriptions including a bar code which the pharmacy could
scan to retrieve an electronic copy of the patient’s details and the medication
prescribed. EPS Release 2 involves the prescription details being sent entirely

electronically by the GP surgery to the pharmacy nominated by the patient.

o Access to the NHS Summary Care Record — The pharmacy has access to an
electronic summary of key clinical information (including medicines, allergies

and adverse reactions — and possibly additional information if the patient

13

Page 21



consents) about a patient, sourced from the patient’'s GP record to support care
and treatment. This can, for example, be used to confirm that a patient
requesting an emergency supply of a medicine has been prescribed that

medicine before.

2.3.3 Advanced services

Pharmacies may choose whether to provide these services or not. If they choose to
provide one or more of the advanced services they must meet certain requirements
and must be fully compliant with the essential services and clinical governance

requirements.

o Medicines use review and prescription intervention services (more commonly
referred to as the medicines use review or MUR service) — The improvement of
patient knowledge, concordance and use of their medicines through one-to-one
consultations to discuss medicine understanding, use, side effects and
interactions, and reduce waste, and if necessary making recommendations to

prescribers.

o New medicine service — The promotion the health and wellbeing of patients
who are prescribed a new medicine or medicines for certain long term
conditions, by providing support to the patient after two weeks and four weeks
with the aim of reducing symptoms and long-term complications, and enabling
the patient to make appropriate lifestyle changes and self-manage their

condition.

o Influenza vaccination service — The provision of influenza vaccinations to
patients in at-risk groups, to provide more opportunities for eligible patients to

access vaccination with the aim of sustaining and maximising uptake.

o Urgent medicines supply service (pilot), known as NUMSAS — To provide, at
NHS expense, urgent supplies of repeat medicines and appliances for patients
referred by NHS 111, and so reduce demand on the urgent care system,

particularly GP Out of Hours providers. This service is a national pilot running
14

Page 22



until 31 March 2018.

o Stoma appliance customisation service — The modification to the same
specification of multiple identical parts for use with a stoma appliance, based on
the patient’s measurements (and, if applicable, a template) to ensure proper use

and comfortable fitting, and to improve the duration of usage.

o Appliance use review service (AUR) — The improvement of patient
knowledge, concordance and use of their appliances through one-to-one
consultations to discuss use, experience, storage and disposal, and if

necessary making recommendations to prescribers.

2.3.4 Enhanced services

The 2013 directions contain a list of enhanced services which NHS England may

commission, and broadly describe the underlying purpose of each one.

NHS England may choose to commission enhanced services from all or selected
pharmacies to meet specific health needs, in which case it may develop an

appropriate service specification.

NHS England currently commissions the following enhanced services in Torbay:

o On demand availability of specialist drugs.

Other enhanced services which may be, but are not currently, commissioned by
NHS England are:

o Antiviral collection service

o Anticoagulation monitoring

o Care home service

o Disease specific medicines management service
o Emergency supply service

o Gluten free food supply service

o Home delivery service
15

Page 23



o Independent prescribing service

o Language access service

o Medication review service

o Medicines assessment and compliance support service
o Minor ailment scheme

o Needle and syringe exchange

o Patient group direction service

o Prescriber support service

o Schools service

o Screening service

o Stop smoking service

o Supervised administration service

o Supplementary prescribing service

Some of the above services may be commissioned by CCGs or local councils, but in
such cases those services are not ‘pharmaceutical services’ for the purposes of this
PNA. See section 2.4 for further details. However commissioning of this service may
transfer to Clinical Commissioning Groups in the near future, in which case it would

cease to be an enhanced service and would become a locally commissioned service.

2.3.5 Clinical governance

Underpinning the provision of all of these services is the requirement on each
pharmacy to participate in a system of clinical governance. This system is set out

within the 2013 regulations and comprises:

o a patient and public involvement programme, including production of a leaflet
setting out the services provided and carrying out a patient questionnaire

o a clinical audit programme

o a risk management programme

o a clinical effectiveness programme

o a staffing and staff programme

o an information governance programme

o a premises standards programme.

Page 24

16



2.3.6 Opening hours

Most pharmacies are required to open for at least 40 hours per week, and these are
referred to as core opening hours. However many choose to open for longer and
these hours are referred to as supplementary opening hours — but a pharmacy can
decide to stop providing supplementary hours by giving notice to NHS England (see

below in section 2.6).

As part of an application to open a new pharmacy, an applicant may offer to open for
more than 40 core hours per week (for example, promising to open for a minimum of

50 hours per week), and may also open supplementary hours in addition.

If an application is granted and the pharmacy subsequently opens the core and
supplementary opening hours set out in the initial application become the pharmacy’s

contracted opening hours.

Between April 2005 and August 2012, some contractors were able to open new
premises using an exemption under which they agreed to have 100 core opening
hours per week (referred to as 100 hour pharmacies). These pharmacies are required
to be open for 100 hours per week, 52 weeks of the year (with the exception of
weeks which contain a bank or public holiday, or Easter Sunday). Although the
exemption for new 100 hour pharmacies no longer applies, existing 100 hour
pharmacies remain under an obligation to be open for 100 hours per week. In
addition these pharmacies may open for longer hours.

2.3.7 Recent changes to the contractual arrangements for pharmacies

In late 2016 the Department of Health announced some changes to the contractual

framework for pharmacies. These included:

e a reduction in funding of 4% in 2016/17 and a further reduction of 3.4% in
2017/18

¢ the introduction of the urgent medicines supply service advanced service as a
17

Page 25



pilot

¢ the introduction of a Pharmacy Access Scheme (PhAS)

e the introduction of a Quality Payment Scheme (QPS)

e allowing the consolidation of pharmacies, in effect providing a way for a
pharmacy to close without creating an opportunity for another pharmacy to
open instead

The PhAS runs until 31 March 2018 and provides some transitional funding to limit
the impact of the funding reductions on eligible pharmacies. Pharmacies are eligible
for the scheme if they:

e were open on 1 September 2016,
e are more than 1 mile by road from the nearest pharmacy, and

e are not in the top 25% largest pharmacies.

While the Pharmacy Access Scheme is currently expected to end before this PNA
takes effect, information regarding which pharmacies are included on it has been
included in this PNA because it may be relevant to considering which pharmacies
could be regarded as providing an essential service to their communities and which

may be more vulnerable to reductions in funding.

There is currently one pharmacy in Torbay included on the PhAS:
. Poolearth Pharmacy (Shiphay), 11 Collaton Road, Torquay, TQ2 7HH

The Quality Payments Scheme (QPS) also runs until 31 March 2018 and allows all

pharmacies to earn some additional funding for meeting a number of criteria.

e provide medicines use reviews or the new medicines service, or be registered
for the urgent medicines supply service pilot

e keep its entry on the NHS Choices website up-to-date

e Dbe able to send and receive email using the secure NHS mail system, and

e use the Electronic Prescription Service

If they are eligible, a pharmacy can earn different amounts of funding for:
18

Page 26



e producing a patient safety report (in particular identifying learning from
incidents and near misses)

e ensuring that 80% of pharmacists and pharmacy technicians have had
safeguarding children and vulnerable adults training (level 2)

e ensuring that 80% of all staff are trained as Dementia Friends

e becoming a Healthy Living Pharmacy (level 1). Current healthy pharmacies
can be found here: https://www.rsph.org.uk/our-services/registration-healthy-

living-pharmacies-levell/reqister.html

e identifying, using specified criteria, asthma patients who should be referred to
an appropriate clinician for an asthma review

e increasing use of the NHS Summary Care Record

e publishing the results of their annual patient experience survey on the NHS
Choices website

e keeping their entry in the NHS 111 Directory of Services up-to-date.

It is not currently known whether the QPS will continue after 31 March 2018, either in

its current form or with changes.

2.3.8 Pharmaceutical services provided by dispensing appliance contractors

As with pharmacy contractors, NHS England does not hold contracts with DACSs.
Their terms of service are also set out in schedule 5 of the 2013 regulations and in
the 2013 directions.

2.3.9 Appliance services

DACs provide the following services that fall within the definition of pharmaceutical

services:

o Dispensing of prescriptions — The supply of appliances ordered on NHS
prescriptions (both electronic and non-electronic), together with information and
advice and appropriate referral arrangements in the event of a supply being

unable to be made, to enable safe and effective use by patients and cargers.
1

Page 27


https://www.rsph.org.uk/our-services/registration-healthy-living-pharmacies-level1/register.html
https://www.rsph.org.uk/our-services/registration-healthy-living-pharmacies-level1/register.html
https://www.rsph.org.uk/our-services/registration-healthy-living-pharmacies-level1/register.html

Also the urgent supply without a prescription at the request of a prescriber.

Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions — The management and dispensing
of repeatable NHS prescriptions for appliances in partnership with the patient

and the prescriber.

Home delivery service — To preserve the dignity of patients, the delivery of
certain appliances to the patient’s home in a way that does not indicate what is

being delivered.

Supply of appropriate supplementary items — The provision of additional
items such as disposable wipes and disposal bags in connection with certain

appliances.

Provision of expert clinical advice regarding the appliances — To ensure
that patients are able to seek appropriate advice on their appliance to increase
their confidence in choosing an appliance that suits their needs as well as
gaining confidence to adjust to the changes in their life and learning to manage

an appliance.

Signposting — Where the contractor does not supply the appliance ordered on
the prescription passing the prescription to another provider of appliances, or

giving the patient contact details for alternative providers.

All DACs must provide the above services.

DACs may also receive electronic prescriptions through the Electronic Prescription

Service (EPS) where they have been nominated by a patient.

2.3.10 Advanced services

DACs may choose whether to provide the appliance advanced services or not. If

they do choose to provide them then they must meet certain requirements and must

be fully compliant with their terms of service and the clinical governance

20

Page 28



requirements. There are two appliance advanced services — for descriptions of these

services see section 2.3.3 above.

o Stoma appliance customization

o Appliance use review.

2.3.11 Clinical governance

As with pharmacies, DACs are required to participate in a system of clinical
governance. This system is set out within the 2013 regulations and comrpises:

o a patient and public involvement programme, including production of a leaflet
setting out the services provided and carrying out a patient questionnaire

o a clinical audit programme

o a risk management programme

o a clinical effectiveness programme

o a staffing and staff programme

e an information governance programme.

2.3.12 Opening hours

DACs are required to open at least 30 hours per week and these are referred to as
core opening hours. They may choose to open for longer and these hours are
referred to as supplementary opening hours — but a DAC can decide to stop
providing supplementary hours by giving notice to NHS England (see below in

section 2.6).

As part of an application to open a new DAC, an applicant may offer to open for more
than 30 core hours per week (for example, promising to open for a minimum of 40

hours per week), and may also open supplementary hours in addition.

2.3.13 Pharmaceutical services provided by dispensing doctors

The 2013 regulations allow doctors to dispense to eligible patients in rural ajpas

Page 29



called controlled localities where access to pharmacies can be difficult.
This PNA is required to include maps of the controlled localities within the HWB’s

area however there are no such localities in Torbay, and no dispensing doctors.

2.4 Locally commissioned services

Local councils and CCGs may also commission services from pharmacies and DACSs,
however these services fall outside the definition of pharmaceutical services. For the
purposes of this document they are referred to as locally commissioned services.
They are included within this assessment where they affect the need for
pharmaceutical services, or where the further provision of these services would

secure improvements or better access to pharmaceutical services.

2.4.1 Services commissioned by Torbay council

Supervised consumption of substance misuse medicines

This service involves the client consuming methadone or buprenorphine under the
direct supervision of a pharmacist in a pharmacy. There is a compelling evidence to
support the effectiveness of substance misuse supervised administration services

with long term health benefits to substance misusers and the whole population.

Needle exchange

This is an integral part of the harm reduction strategy for drug users. It aims to:

o Reduce the spread of blood borne viruses (BBVS) e.g. Hepatitis B, Hepatitis C,
HIV

o Provide a gateway into treatment services

o Provide a referral point for service users to other health and social care services

There is a compelling evidence to support the effectiveness of needle exchange
services in reducing the spread of BBVs with long term public health benefits to drug

users and the whole population.

Emergency hormonal contraception (EHC)
22

Page 30



There is a strong evidence base for the use of EHC in reducing unplanned or
unwanted pregnancies especially within teenage years. Its use forms part of an
overall national strategy to reduce the rate of teenage pregnancy with England. The
rate of teenage pregnancy in Torbay is reducing, although it remains one of the
highest rates in the South West.

Whilst GP practices are instrumental in contraception provision, in some
circumstances female residents will either prefer, or will need, the relative anonymity
of attending a pharmacy to access EHC. The drug levonorgestrel is used for EHC
under the scheme commissioned by Torbay Council from pharmacies. Through this
scheme levonorgestrel is supplied under a PGD to women who meet the criteria for
inclusion of the PGD and service specification. It may also be bought as an over the
counter medication from pharmacies, however the user must be 16 years or over,
hence the need for a PGD service within pharmacies which provides access from 13
to 24 years of age. Anyone who requests EHC, will also be encouraged to take a
chlamydia screen at the same time, as part of an integrated provision of sexual health

services in pharmacies.

In addition the contraception and sexual health clinics (formerly known as family

planning clinics) provide contraceptive services.
Chlamydia screening

This programme is commissioned as part of the Chlamydia Screening Progamme in
Torbay.

The aim of service is to improve the quality and accessibility of sexual health services
to young people between the ages of 16—24 and increase the uptake of Chlamydia
screens in young women and young men who have had an unprotected sex episode,
thereby increasing the number of identified cases and opportunities for treatment and
partner management. Pharmacists are commissioned to opportunistically signpost a
young person between the ages of 16-24 (who are not presenting for EHC) to the

counter-top Chlamydia screening kit.

NHS health checks

23

Page 31



This screening programme was introduced in Torbay to help prevent heart disease,
stroke, diabetes, kidney disease and certain types of dementia. Everyone between
the ages of 40 and 74 years, who has not already been diagnosed with one of these
conditions or have certain risk factors, is eligible to have a check (once every five
years) to assess their risk of cardiovascular disease. All people identified with a

medium or high risk are given support and advice to help them manage their risk.
Smoking cessation

Stopping smoking is one of the single most effective health care interventions that
can be offered.

Working alongside the specialist provider of Smoking cessation services and GP
practices, pharmacies provide behavioural support as well as Nicotine Replacement
Therapy and access to medication for people who want to give up smoking. Unlike
other providers, pharmacies offer a walk-in service across a wide number of opening

hours.
TB Directly Observed Therapy

Tuberculosis is a treatable, infectious disease that is one of the leading causes of
death for adults in the developing world. The prevalence of TB in Devon County is
low. The treatment regimen for tuberculosis, recommended by the World Health
Organisation and National Institute for Clinical Excellence, consists of a combination
of specific antibiotics. A daily regime, using combination tablets is usually used,;
however some people need more support or monitoring — known as Directly
observed Therapy, or DOT. In this instance, the drugs are given individually three
times per week, on a Monday, Wednesday and Friday and pharmacies are
commissioned to observe the consumption of the medication, similar to supervised

consumption.

2.4.2 Services commissioned by South Devon and Torbay CCG

Minor ailments
The Community Pharmacy Minor Ailments Service is commissioned via a PGD
from the CCG and its purpose is to ensure that patients can access self-care

24

Page 32



advice for the treatment of specific ailments and, where appropriate, can be
supplied with a prescription only medicine under a PGD, to treat their ailment.
This provides an alternative location from which patients can seek advice and
treatment, rather than seeking treatment via a prescription from their GP, out of

hours (OOH) provider, walk-in centre or accident and emergency.
The specific ailments covered by the PDG are:

o Bacterial conjunctivitis
o Impetigo
o Nappy rash

o Uncomplicated urinary tract infections

2.5 Other NHS services

Other services which are commissioned or provided by NHS England, Torbay
Council and South Devon and Torbay CCG, which affect the need for pharmaceutical
services, are also included within the PNA. These include hospital pharmacies and

the GP out of hours service.

2.6 Changes to the existing provision of pharmaceutical services

A pharmacy or DAC can apply to NHS England to change their core opening hours —
applications normally need to be submitted 90 days in advance of the date on which
the contractors wishes to implement the change. NHS England will assess the
application against the needs of the population of the HWB area as set out in the

PNA to determine whether to agree to the change in core hours or not.

If a pharmacy or DAC wishes to change their supplementary opening hours they

simply notify NHS England of the change, giving at least three months’ notice.

Dispensing doctors do not have to seek approval or give advance notice of any
changes to their opening hours.

A person who wishes to buy an existing pharmacy or DAC must apply to NHS

England. Provided that the purchaser agrees to provide the same services and
25

Page 33



opening hours as the current contractor, change of ownership applications are

normally approved.

A contractor which wishes to relocate to different premises also needs to apply to
NHS England. Generally a relocation will only be allowed if all groups of patients who
use the pharmacy at its current location would find the new location not significantly
less accessible.

A contractor can cease providing pharmaceutical services if it gives three months’

notice to NHS England. 100 hour pharmacies are required to give six months’ notice.

Two pharmacies (which could belong to the same contractor, or different contractors)
can apply to consolidate their premises on to one site, in effect closing one of the
sites. This does not apply to distance-selling pharmacies or DACs. A consolidation
application can only be approved if NHS England is satisfied that doing so will not
result in the creation of a gap in pharmaceutical services. If an application is
approved then it is not possible for anyone else to apply to open a pharmacy in the
same area by submitting an unforeseen benefit application claiming that a gap has
been created.

If a new pharmacy opens in or near a controlled locality any dispensing doctors in the
area will no longer be able to dispense medicines to any patients who live within 1.6
kilometres (about 1 mile) of that pharmacy. However NHS England may decide to
allow a transitional period after the pharmacy opens during which the doctors can still

dispense to patients living near the pharmacy.

2.7 How the assessment was undertaken

2.7.1 PNA steering group

The HWB has overall collective responsibility for the development and publication
and of the PNA. Torbay HWB established a PNA steering group across the
geographical footprint of Devon County (encompassing the local authorities of

Devon, Plymouth and Torbay), the purpose of which was to ensure that the HWB
26

Page 34



develops a robust PNA that complies with the 2013 regulations and the needs of the
local population. The membership of the steering group ensured all the main
stakeholders were represented and a list of the group’s members can be found in

appendix 3.

2.7.2 PNA localities

The steering group agreed to use the same locality boundaries for the PNA as the
local authority boundary of Torbay.

2.7.3 Other sources of information

Information was gathered from NHS England, South Devon and Torbay CCG, Devon

LPC and Torbay council regarding:

o services provided to residents of the HWB'’s area, whether provided from within
or outside of the HWB'’s area

o changes to current service provision

o future commissioning intentions

o known housing developments within the lifetime of the PNA

o any other developments which may affect the need for pharmaceutical services.

The JSNA and Torbay’s joint health and wellbeing strategy provided background

information on the health needs of the population.

2.7.4 Equality and safety impact assessment

Torbay council uses equality analysis as a tool to ensure that everyone can access its
services and that no particular group is put at a disadvantage. Equality impact
assessments (EIAs) are carried out when policies, strategies, procedures, functions
and services are developed and reviewed. The staff who develop the policy or
service complete a template which gives them a series of prompts to consider how to
promote equality and avoid unlawful discrimination. They consider the following nine

protected characteristics as part of the assessment: -

Page 35



o Gender reassignment

. Race

o Disability
. Age

o Sex

o Sexual orientation
o Religion or belief
o Pregnancy and maternity

o Marriage and civil partnership

The EIA for the PNA can be found in appendix 4.

2.7.5 Consultation

The statutory 60 day consultation commenced 4" December 2017 till the 2™

February 2018. A report on the consultation can be found in appendix 7 (P. 99).

28

Page 36



3 Overview of Torbay

3.1 Introduction
This section details the key components of Torbay’s population’s age, sex, ethnicity

and deprivation. This data compares the Torbay average against the national

averages where available.
Torbay is located on the South Coast of Devon and is predominantly an urban area.

Figure 1. Map of Torbay

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey. 100022695
\© pyrig g h y 8 ) 29

Page 37




3.2 The population

Torbay’s population remains relatively unchanged over the last 10 to 15 years, unlike
the England average which shows a 7.7% increase (Table 1). The population of
Torbay is older than the England average, with a greater proportion of the population

over the age of 50 years. There are noticeable differences in the 0-4 and 20-39 age

groups compared to England (Figure 2).

Figure 2: Population pyramid for Torbay compared to England, 2016 ONS mid-

year resident population estimates

-

2% 3% 4%

—England

5%

Source: ONS Mid-year population estimates

Table 1: Mid-year population estimates for Torbay, 2006-2016

All Age Torbay England
2006 131,900 50,965,200
2008 132,100 51,815,900
2010 131,400 52,642,500
2012 131,500 53,493,700
2014 133,000 54,316,600
2016 133,900 55,268,100
% change
1.5% 7.8%

(2006 to 2016)

Source: Mid-Year population estimates, Office for National Statistics (rounded to nearest 100).

Page 38




It is estimated that Torbay’s population will increase by around 8,600 (6.4%) by 2030
(Table 2). The largest increase will be seen in the population aged 85 years and over
(56.9%), whilst it is estimated there will be a 7.7% reduction in those of working age
(45-64 years).

Table 2: Sub-national population projections for Torbay, 2017-2030

Age group 2017 2018 2022 2026 2030 %

Oto 14 21,100 21,300 21,900 22,100 22,000 4.3%
1510 29 20,600 20,400 20,000 19,900 20,500 -0.59%
30to 44 19,900 19,800 20,400 21,000 21,200 6.5%
45 to 64 37,500 37,600 37,200 36,200 34,600 -7.7%
651to 84 30,200 30,700 32,500 34,700 36,900 22.2%
85+ 5,100 5,200 5,800 6,600 8,000 56.9%
All ages 134,500 135,100 137,700 140,500 143,100 6.4%

Source: Sub-national population projections, Office for National Statistics (rounded to nearest 100)

3.3 ‘Protected Characteristics’ (Equality Act 2010)

The Equality Act 2010 sets out nine personal characteristics that are protected by the
law:*

e Age

e Disability

e Gender reassignment

e Marriage and civil partnership

e Pregnancy and maternity

e Race

¢ Religion or belief

o Sex

e Sexual orientation

Under the Act, people are not allowed to discriminate, harass or victimise another
person because they have any of the above protected characteristics. There is also
protection against discrimination where someone is perceived to have one of the
protected characteristics or where they are associated with someone who has a
protected characteristic. Government departments, service providers, employers,

education providers, providers of public functions, associations and membership

! http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/private-and-public-sector-guidance/guidance-all/protected-
characteristics 31

Page 39



http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/private-and-public-sector-guidance/guidance-all/protected-characteristics
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/private-and-public-sector-guidance/guidance-all/protected-characteristics

bodies and transport providers all have a responsibility under the Act.

In the following paragraphs, the nine protected characteristics have been described
at the Torbay level. Where available, information at the locality level can be found on
Torbay’s JSNA website* The protected characteristics should be considered when
examining whether or not existing pharmaceutical services provision meets need,
consequently, due regard is given to these characteristics within the ‘Market Entry’

regulations.

3.3.1 Age

Torbay currently has a population of 134,500. Torbay has a higher proportion in all
age groups from 50-90+, for both Males and Females, than the national population.

Conversely Torbay has a lower proportion in all age groups from 0-44 than nationally.

3.3.2 Disability

According to the 2011 Census, 10.0% of Torbay residents reported having a long-
term health problem or disability that limits their day-to-day activities a lot and has
lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months (including problems related to old
age). This was the second highest in the South West region. According to the 2011
Census, 41.7% of Torbay residents reported their general health as ‘very good’
placing Torbay lower down the Local Authority rankings, however Torbay does rank
very high for those rating their health as only ‘Fair’. Both Bad health (5.8%) and Very
bad health (1.7%) have higher percentages in Torbay than in England (England
4.2%, 1.2% respectively), this equates to 9,892 people over both categories.

3.3.3 Faith, religion or belief

According to the 2011 Census, Christianity is the most common religion in Torbay
with 63.3%. 27.5% of the Torbay population stated they had no religion. Both are
higher than the national average. Numbers for each of the other main categories are
below 750 persons (0.5%) each and range from 0.03% Sikh to 0.5% Other Religion.
Of the 0.5% of the population who reported Other Religion; 177 people reported they

were Pagan and 246 people were Spiritualist.

? http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/ 32

Page 40



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/

3.3.4 Gender - including marriage, pregnancy and maternity

Overall 51.5% of Torbay's population are female (ONS mid-2016 estimates).
According to the 2011 Census, of those aged 16 and over, 46.6% are married — the
same as the national average. There were 1,462 live births in 2012 with numbers
increasing steadily and peaking in 2011 at 1,499. Going forward, local estimates
suggest the number of births per year for the coming 5 years to be in the order of

1,400 per year.

3.3.5 Gender reassignment

In 2010 it was estimated nationally that the number of gender variant people
presenting for treatment was around 12,500. Of these, around 7,500 have undergone
transition. The median age for treatment for gender variation is 42 years. There is

no precise number of the trans population in Torbay.

3.3.6 Race

There is relatively little ethnic diversity in Torbay. According to the 2011 Census
94.8% of Torbay’'s population considered themselves White British. This is
significantly higher than the England average (79.8%). Torbay has 3,260 (2.5%)
resident ethnic minority population (excluding white ethnic groups). Of these, 1,420
residents (1.1%) are Mixed/Multiple ethnic background, 1,353 (1%) Asian/Asian
British, 251 (0.2%) Black British and 236 (0.2%) Other ethnic Group.

Table 3: Ethnic group for Torbay, 2011

White Mixed/ Asian/Asi  Black/African/ Other
multiple an British  Caribbean/ ethnic
ethnic Black British group
groups

Torbay 97.5% 1.1% 1.0% 0.2% 0.2%
England 85.4% 2.3% 7.8% 3.5% 1.0%

Source: LC2109EW!Is — 2011. Census table, Office for National Statistics

3.3.7 Sexual Orientation - including Civil Partnership
33

Page 41



0.3% of the Torbay population are registered in a same-sex civil partnership (national
average is 0.2%). 2.6% of people in Torbay are separated and still either legally
married or legally in a same-sex civil partnership. There is also no precise local data
on numbers of Leshian, Gay and Bi-sexual (LGB) people in Torbay but it is nationally
estimated at 5.0% to 7.0%. This would mean that approximately 5,464 — 7,650

people aged 16 years and over in Torbay are LGB.

3.4 Material deprivation

Deprivation covers a broad range of issues and refers to unmet needs caused by a
lack of resources of all kinds, not just financial. Deprivation measures attempt to
identify communities where the need for healthcare is greater, material resources are
fewer and as such the capacity to cope with the consequences of ill-health are less.
People are therefore deprived if there is inadequate education, inferior housing,
unemployment, insufficient income, poor health, and low opportunities for enjoyment.
A deprived area is conventionally understood to be a place in which people tend to

be relatively poor and are relatively likely to suffer from misfortunes such as ill-health.

The English Indices of Deprivation 2015 use 37 separate indicators, organised
across seven distinct domains of deprivation which can be combined, using
appropriate weights, to calculate the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2015 (IMD 2015).
This is an overall measure of multiple deprivation experienced by people living in an

area. When analysing IMD data it is important to bear in mind the following:

e Itis not an absolute measure of deprivation.

e Not all people living in deprived areas are deprived and vice versa.

e It cannot be compared over time because an area’s score is affected by the
scores of every other area; so it is impossible to tell whether a change in score
is a real change in the deprivation level of an area, or whether it is due to the

scores of other areas going up or down.

The IMD 2015 score is calculated for every Lower Super Output Area (LSOA) in
England. LSOAs are part of a geographical framework developed for the collection

and publication of small area statistics. Torbay is made up of 89 LSOAs. An L3840A

Page 42



typically contain a population of around 1,500.

The IMD 2015 score can be used to rank every LSOA in England according to their
relative level of deprivation. Out of 32,844 LSOAs in England, Torbay has 28 LSOAs
in the 20% most deprived. Torbay is ranked 46th out of the 326 local authority
districts in England (1=most deprived; 326=least deprived). This places Torbay in the
bottom 20% of local authorities in England.

Torbay is ranked as the most deprived local authority area in the South West region.
Figure 3 shows the IMD 2015 ranks for the 89 LSOAs in Torbay

Figure 3: 2015 Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD)

/ THE ENGLISH INDICES OF DEPRIVATION 2015 \

RANK OF INDEX OF MULTIPLE DEPRIVATION

2015 Multiple Deprivation
(LSOA rank)
B Top 10% in England (14)
B 10+%to 20% (14)

B 20+%to 30% (15)
O 30+%to 40% 9)
[J 40+%to 50% (10)
O 50+%to 60% (12)
0 60+%to 70% (6)
[0 70+%to 80% (6)
(] 80+%to 90% (3)
[0 90+% to 100% 0)

— LSOA boundary
“= Ward boundary

PublicHealth

-] [

Source: UK Department for Communities and Local Government, 2015
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100022695

Source: English Index of Multiple Deprivation 2010, Department for Communities and Local Government

3.5 Car ownership (relevance to accessing pharmaceutical
services)

Based on the 2011 Census, car ownership in Torbay is above the national average at
81.8% (Table 4). Car ownership is lower in Torquay (79.9%) compared to Paignton &
Brixham locality (84.1%). 35

Page 43



Table 4: Car or van availability by Torbay locality, 2011

No cars or l1carorvan 2 cars or 1 or more

vans in in vans in cars or vans
household household household in
household
Torbay 18.2% 42.1% 39.7% 81.8%
England 19.5% 39.0% 41.4% 80.5%

Source: LC4109EW. Census 2011, Office for National Statistics

3.6 Mosaic breakdown alternative

Mosaic is a dataset produced by Experian as a cross-channel consumer classification
system designed to help users understand the demographics, lifestyles, preferences
and behaviours of the UK adult population in detail. This is achieved by allocating
individuals and households (by postcode) into one of 15 ‘Groups’ and 66 detailed
‘Types’. Using postcode data from the 2015 GP registration database, the top three

Mosaic groups in Torbay are:

1. F Senior Security (Elderly people with assets who are enjoying a comfortable
retirement) 19.6% of postcodes in Torbay

2. L Transient Renters (single people privately renting low cost homes for the

short term) - 14.5% of postcodes in Torbay

3. N Vintage Value (Elderly people reliant on support to meet financial or

practical needs) — 10.6% of postcodes in Torbay

36
Page 44



Figure 4: Mosaic groups (based on postcodes) across Torbay

Your area or file: .
Torbay compared to England population . Experlan

Comparison area or file: Mosaic Public Sector
National - England (Population)

Date:  01/10/2017

Mosaic Public Sector classifies all consumers inthe United Kingdom by allocating them to one of 15 Groups and 66 Types. These paint a rich
picture of UK citizens interms of their socio-economic and socio-cultural behaviour.

Mosaic Public Sector Groups Your arealfile % Comp. % Pen. % Index
0 100 200
IA Country Living 38 114 3203337 595 0.00 19
I B Prestige Positions 215 645 3923430 729 0.01 89
IC Gty Prosperity 6 018 2418976 450 0.00 4
I D Domestic Success 132 396 4698954 873 0.00 45
I E Suburban Stability 291 874 3270026 6.08 0.01 144
I F Senior Security 652 1957 4401414 818 0.01 239
IG Rural Reality 30 090 2905648 540 0.00 17

H Aspiring Homemakers 314 943 5164,013 960 0.01 98

I Urban Cohesion 75 225 3486375 648 0.00 35

J Rental Hubs 302 9.07 3959916 736 0.01 123

K Modest Traditions 243 730 2411770 448 0.01 163

L Transient Renters 484 1453 3438627 639 001 227
M Family Basics 162 486 4,347,048 808  0.00 60
N Vintage Value 353 1060 3,091,881 575 0.01 184

O Municipal Challenge 34 102 3091844 575 0.00 18

[ [ [ — e —( —

Total 3,331 100 53,813,259 100 0.01 100

The profile presented in figure 4 shows the distribution of Torbay postcodes (3,331)
compared to the England population. Torbay has a higher proportion of F senior
Security compared to the England average, with some 652 postcodes identified, or

around 19.6% of the population.

37

Page 45



4 General health needs of Torbay

This section details the overall health profile for Torbay. This data includes both

positive and negative areas of the population’s health.

4.1 Introduction

Health Profiles, published by Public Health England (PHE), provide an overview of
the general health of the local population. They present a set of key indicators that,
through comparison with other areas and with the national average, can highlight
potential problems locally. They are designed to help local government and health
services identify problems and decide how to tackle them to improve health and
reduce health inequalities. Torbay’s Health Profile for 2017 is included overleaf
(Figure 5) followed by the Child Health Profile also produced by PHE (Figure 6).

4.2 Public Health England’s Health Profile for Torbay 2017

The profile can be viewed on the following page.

Page 46



Figure 5: The Health summary for Torbay 2017

Health summary for Torbay

The chan below Shows how e heallh of peopile in this area compares wilh Ihe res! of England. This area's resull for each indicalor is shown as a circke. The average rale for
England is shown by the black line, which i always &l the cenire of the chan. The range of results for &l local areas in England is shown a3 & grey bar. A red circle means.
thal this area is significantly worse than England for that indicalor; however, a green circle may still indicate an important public healih problem.
@ Significantly worse than England average Regional average® England average
O Not significantly Giflerent from England average EHNMME I | ::fm
25m 75
@ Significantly befier than England average percentse perentile
O not comparen
Period Local Local Eng  Eng Eng
Damain Indicatns count  value  value  worst England range besst
1 Deprivation score (D 2015) 2015 na 288 218 420 0 | 50
I 2 Children in low income families (under 16s) 2014 5325 236 2041 392 el 6.6
'
3 Statutory homelessness 2015M6 44 0.7 08
E 4 GCSEs achieved 201516 7683 566 57TE 448 o 78T
é 5 Violent crime (violence oflences) 516 2508 218 172 387 ® | 45
& Long ferm unemployment 2016 324 42 37 138 [ 0.4
= 7 Smoking slalus at time of defivery 2015M6 174 150 1068 260 ® | 18
ig 8 Breastleeding initiation 201415 778 ' 743 472 | & w2a
E £ 9 Dbese chidren (Year 6) 201516 235 180 188 Z85 10+ 9.4
nl
B 10 Admission episodes for sicohol-specifc 2013114 - 1516 51 G678 374 1213 ® | 10.5
g conditions {uncer 1Bs)t
11 Under 18 coneeplions 2015 S0 2280 208 438 21 ¢ 5.4
o B g 12 Smoking prevalence in aduts 2016 ne 167 155 257 ol + 43
Q
5 g i’ 13 Percentage of physically aclive adults 2015 na 536 570 448 Qo 1 e 698
£ 14 Expess weighl in adults 2013-15 ne B84 B48 782 ® 465
15 Cancer diagnosed at early stage 2015 387 544 524 380 (el 631
=
! 18 Hospital stays for seli-hamt 2015018 473 3988 1965 6353 ® 4| 55.7
=
§ 17 Hospital stays for alcohol-relaled harmt 2015016 1216 8859 647 1,163 [ ] 3 374
® 18 Recored disbeles 2014115 7865 68 B4 02 e 33
; 19 Incidence of TB 2013-15 24 60 120 858 (o] 0.0
i 20 New sexually ransmitted infections (STI) 2016 558 7138 785 3,288 (o] 223
21 Hip fraciufes in people aged 65 and overt 2015N6 226 G256 589 B20 o anz
22 Life expectancy at birth (Male) 2013-15 na 78O 795 743 [ 1 B3.4
I
8 23 Life expectancy at birth (Female) 2013-15 ~a B33 831 794 D+ B5.T
T 24 Infant mortality 2013-15 20 47 39 8.2 oW 0.8
g 25 Killed 8nd sefously injured on foads 2013-15 133 333 385 1037 0 10.4
T 26 Sukide rale 2013-15 46 131 104 174 [ Y| 56
% 27 Smoking related deaths 2013-15 801 2811 2835
g 28 Under 75 mortality rate: candiovascular 2013-15 332 797 T4E 1376 ol & 43.1
2 23 Under 75 monality rate: cancer 2013-15 562 1331 1388 1948 [o1% BE.6
! 30 Excess winler deaths Aug 2012 - Jul 373 230 188 360 o4 69
2015
Indicator notes
1 Index of Mulfiple Deprivation (IMD) 2015 2 % children (under 16) in low income families 3 Eligible homeless people nat in priority need, crude rate per 1,000 households
45 A*C induding English & Maths, % pupils at end of key stage 4 resident in local authority 5 Recorded violence against the person crimes, crude rabe per 1,000 population
& Crude rate per 1,000 population aged 16-64 7 % of women who smoke a1 time of delivery & % of all mothers who breasteed fheir babies in the first 4Bhirs afler delivesy
9 % school children in Year & (age 10-11) 10 Persons under 16 admitied fo hospital due fo slcohol-sp conditions, crude rate per 100,000 population 11 Under-18
conceplion rate per 1,000 females aged 15 fo 17 (crude rate) 12 Cument smokers (aged 18 and over), Annual Population Survey 13 % adulls (aged 16 and ower) achieving at
least 150 ming physical activity per week, Active People Survey 14 % aoulls (aged 16 and over) dassified as overweight of obage, Active People Survey |5 Experimental
statistics - % of cancers diagnosed at stage 1 or 2 16 Direclly age sex standardised rate per 100,000 population 17 Admissions invalving an alcohol-relaled primary disgnosis
or an aicohok-related external cause {namow definiion), direclly age standardised rate per 100,000 population 18 % people (aged 17 and over) on GP registers with &
ded dagnosis of diabetes 19 Crude rate per 100,000 population 20 Al new diagnoses (excluding chlamydia under age 25), crude rate per 100,000 population aged 15 to
64 21 Directly age rate of pency admigsions, per 100,000 population aged 65 and over 22. 23 The average number of years a person would expect io
ive based on conlemporary monality rales 24 Rate of deaths in infants aged under 1 year per 1,000 live birhs 25 Rate per 100,000 population 26 Direcily age standardised
maortality rate from suicide and injury of undetenmined intent per 100,000 poputation (aged 10 and over) 27 Directly age standartised rate pes 100,000 population aged 35 and
over 28 Direcily age standandisad rale per 100,000 population aged under 75 29 Directly age stancardised rate per 100,000 population aged under 75 30 Ralio of excess
winler deatns (observed winter deaths minUs expected Ceaths based On NON-WINter JEaths) 10 BVETAREe NON-WIrler deams (IMee years)
+Indicator has had methodological changes 8o is not directly comparable with previously released values. € "Regional” refers 1o the former govemment regions.
#% \/alue based on an average of monthly counts x' Walse not published for data quality reasons $' There is a data quality issue with this valie

If 25% or more of areas have no data then the England range is mot displayed. Pleage send any enquiries to heslihprafiles@ohe gov.uk
You may re-use tis infermation (not including leges) free of charge in any format or medium, uncer the lems of the Ogen Government Licence. To view this licence, visit

&

Page 47



Indicators where Torbay’s value is better than the England average:

e New sexually transmitted infections (STI)

e |ncidence of TB

Indicators where Torbay’s value is worse than the England average:
e Children in low income families (under 16s)
¢ Violent crime (violence offences)
e Long term unemployment
e Smoking status at time of delivery
e Admission episodes for alcohol-specific conditions (under 18s)
e Excess weight in adults
e Hospital stays for self-harm
e Hospital stays for alcohol related harm
e Recorded diabetes

e Life expectancy at birth (male)

Indicators where Torbay’s value is not significantly different to the England average:
e GSCE achieved (5 A*-C incl. English and Maths)
e Obese children (Year 6)

e Under 18 conceptions

e Smoking prevalence in adults

e Percentage of physically active adults

e Hip fractures in people aged 65 years and over
e Life expectancy at birth (females)

e Infant mortality

¢ Killed and seriously injured on roads

e Suicide rate

e Smoking related deaths

e Under 75 mortality rate: cardiovascular disease
e Under 75 mortality rate: cancer

e EXxcess winter deaths 40

Page 48



4.3 The Child Health Profile for Torbay 2017

Figure 6 : The Child Health Profile for Torbay 2017

Page 49

41



Mo significant change
™ Increasing / decreasing and getting better

1'& Increasing / decreasing and getting worse
=  Trend cannot be calculated

Notes and definitions
1 Mortality rate per 1,000 Fve biths (aged under 1 year),
20132015

2 Directly standardised rate per 100,000 ehildren aged
1-17 years, 2013-2015

3 % children immunised against measies, mumps and
rubella (first dose by age 2 years), 201516

4 % children Qg & course of imm

againat diphiheria, tetanus, polio, pertussis and Hib by
age 2 years, 201516

5 % children in care with up-lo-date immunisations, 2016
€% chilcren achieving a good level of develapmeant
within Early Years Foundation Stage Profile, 2015116

7 % pupis achieving 5 or more GCSEs or equivalent
including maths and English, 201516

8 % children looked afler achieving 5 of more GCSES of
equivalent including maths and English, 2015

9 % not in education, employment or braining as a
proportion of total 16-18 year akds known to ocal
authority, 2015

10 Rate per 100,000 af 10-17 year alds redaiving their
first repdimand, waming or conviction, 2015

Torbay Child Health Profile March 2017

The chart below shows how children's health and wellbeing in this area compares with the rest of England. The local result for each indicator is shown as a
circle, against the range of results for England shown as a grey bar. The line at the centre of the chart shows the England average.

© Mot significantly different from the England average

@ Significantly better than England average
@ Significantly worse than England average

Localno. Local Eng.
Indicator peryear* value ave.
E £ 1 Infant mortality 7 47 38
& 2 Child mortality rate (1-17 years) - 3 14.1 11.9
s 5 3 MMR vaccination for one dosa (2 years) W 1445 952 910
ﬂg 4 Dtap/ IPV | Hib vaccination (2 years) | © 90% to 95% 1480 ©7.5 952
5 Children in care immunisations 185 841 872
6 Children achieving a good level of development at the end of reception = 1,027 706 €93
, 7 GCSEsachieved (5 A"C inc. English and maths) - 783 =6 578
ﬁ 8 GCSEs achieved (5 A*C inc. English and maths) for children in care = - - 128
E £ 9 1618 year olds nat in education, employment of training J 180 38 42
3 g 10 First fime entrants to the youth justice system J sz ar0a 3ess
© % 11 Children in low income famibes (under 16 years) Josss me 204
g 12 Family homelessnass 20 0.3 19
13 Children in care + 220 80
14 Children kiled and seriously injured (KSI) on England's roads - 4 166 170
15 Low birth weight of term babies 40 31 28
16 Cbese children (4-5 years) 133 85 8.3
17 Obese children (10-11 yaars) 235 180 198
2 18 Children with one or more decayed, missing or filled teath - - X6 248
i £ 19 Hospital admissions for dental caries {0-4 years) = 50 BET4 2414
= & 20 Under 18 conceptions J er o7 228
21 Teenage mothers 16 12 0.9
22 Parsons under 18 admitted i hospital for alcohol-specific condiions . 15 61.5 366
23 Hospital admissions due to substance misuse (15-24 years) - 22 1604 954
24 Smoking status at time of delivery J 174 150 1086
25 Breastfeeding initiation - - - 743
26 Breastfeeding prevalenca at 6-8 weeks after birth - - - 432
£ 27 ASE attandances (0-4 years) 4t 388 5423 sers
g g 28 Hospital admissions causad by injuries in children (0-14 years) 263 1266 1042
E 5 29 Hospital admissions causad by injuries in young pecple (15-24 years) T 360 2508 1341
30 Hospital admissions for asthma {under 19 years) 4 1720 2024
31 Hospital admissions for mental health conditions + a3 1704 858
32 Hospital admissions as a result of self-harm (10-24 years) 4 237 11670 4305

11 % of chiltven aged unoer 16 years iving in families in
receipt of oul of work benefils of lax credits where their
reported income s less than 60% median income, 2014
12 Statulory ha with dep
children or pregnant wamen per 1,000 householss,
21818

13 Rate of children looked afler af 31 March per 10,000
papulation aged under 18 years, 2016

14 Crude rate of children aged 0-15 years who were
killed or sesiously injured in read raffic actidents per
100,000 popuation, 2013-2015

15 Percentage of ive-barn babies, borm at berm, weighing

less than 2,500 grams, 2015
18 % school children in R year classified as
obese, 2015016

17 % school children in Year € dassified as abese,
21816

18 % children aged 5 years with one or mone decayed,
missing or Mled 1eeth, 201415

18 Crude rale per 100,000 (aged 0-4 years) for hospital
admisgions for dental casies, 2013/14-2015M8

20 Under 18 conception rale pes 1,000 females aged
15-17 years, 2014

England average Regional average
25th 75&1‘
percentie pencentila
Eng. Eng.
worst best
7.8 20
207 53
89.3 ar.7
730 og.2
267 100.0
sa7 78.7
44.8 748
6.4 34.6
79 15
8218 1268
382 7.0
10.0 0.1
164 [ ] 21
49.3 14
438 13
147 51
285 L 2 11.0
861 14.1
1,143.2 [ 82
az4 a4
22 02
828 [ ] 10.8
3453 [ ] 34.1
260 18
472 229
180 765
1,836.1 3350
207.4 535
2802 720
5616 84.3
1798 @ 338
14447 0l 1025

*Mumbers in italics are calculated by dividing the total number for the three year period by three to give an average figure
Where data is not available or figures have been suppressed, this is indicated by a dash in the appropriate box

21 % of defivery episodes where the molher is aged less
than 18 years, 201518
22 Persons admilled 1o hospital due to alcohol-apecific
conditions — under 18 year alds, enude rate per 100,000
population, 2012113-201415
23 Directly standardised rate per 100,000 (sged 15-24
years) for hospital A0missions for SUbSIance misuse,
201314-2015/18
24 % of mothers smeking at ime of delivery, 201516
25 % of mothers initiating breastieading, 2014115
26 % of mothers breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks, 2015116
27 Crude rale per 1,000 (aged 0-4 years) of ARE
aftendances, 201516
28 Crude rale per 10,000 (aged 0-14 years) for
emergency hospital admissions following injury, 201518
29 Cruge rale per 10,000 (aged 15-24 years) for

pency hospital admissions following injury, 2015H6
30 Crude rale per 100,000 (aged 0-18 years) for

pency hospital admissions for asthma, 201516
31 Crude rale per 100,000 (aged 0-17 years) for hoapital
admisgions for mental health, 201518
32 Direcily standardised rate per 100,000 (aged 10-24
years) for hospital admissions for gell-harm, 201516

Torbay - March 2017

chimat@phe_gov_uk | www.gov.ukiphe | hitps:#fingertips_phe.orguk/

Various indicators where Torbay’s value is better than the England average:

¢ MMR vaccination for one dose (2 years)

Page 50

42




e Dtap /IPV / Hib vaccination (2 years)
e Family homelessness

e A&E attendances (0-4 years)

Various indicators where Torbay’s value is worse than the England average:

e Children in low income families (under 16 years

e Children in care

e Hospital admissions for dental caries (0-4 years)

e Under 18 conceptions**

e Persons under 18 admitted to hospital for alcohol-specific conditions
e Hospital admissions due to substance misuse (15-24 years)

e Smoking status at time of delivery

e Hospital admissions caused by injuries in children (0-14 years)

e Hospital admissions caused by injuries in young people (15-24 years)
e Hospital admissions for mental health conditions

e Hospital admissions as a result of self-harm (10-24 years)

Various indicators where Torbay’s value is not significantly different to the England

average.

¢ Infant mortality

e Child mortality rate (1-17 years)

e Children in care immunisations

e Children achieving a good level of development at the end of reception
e GCSEs achieved (5 A*-C inc. English and maths)

e First time entrants to the youth justice system

e Children killed and seriously injured (KSI) on England’s roads
e Low birth weight of term babies

e Obese children (4-5 years)

e Obese children (10-11 years)

e Children with one or more decayed, missing or filled teeth

e Teenage mothers

e Hospital admissions for asthma (under 19 years)

Page 51

43



** pased on 2014 data, publication of the child health profile was prior to publication of data

for 2015 (included in the health profile above)

4.4 Housing growth and significant housing developments

Torbay’s growing population (see Table 2) means that the overall demand for
pharmaceutical services will continue to grow, particularly for services relating to the
older age groups. For example, it is predicted that the number of 65+ year olds in
Torbay will increase by 33% from 2014 to 2030.

There are a number of planned or commenced developments that could impact on
the anticipated demand for pharmaceutical services in Torbay (Figure 7). These
include:

The South Devon Link Road, has improved travel time into and out of the Bay. The
improved access to Torbay and South Devon is expected to bring lasting economic
benefits, leading to the creation of nearly 8,000 jobs in South Devon, with around
3,500 of these in Torbay®. . The road was recently completed (2015) and it is
anticipated that Torbay will increasingly see the impact of this new link through
increased demand for growth in the coming years. The increase in population and
therefore pharmaceutical demands are unknown at this stage.

Preparation for a new railway station at Edginswell, Torquay. Planning permission
has been granted and the Council is exploring means to deliver this station in
partnership with Network Rail. The exact date of delivery is unknown at this stage.
Expansion of Torbay Hospital, including further residential properties in the Shiphay
area of Torquay (SDT3 Torquay Gateway — Figure 7). Shiphay anticipates a build of
745 homes which will accommodate approximately 1,600 residents.

Developments in Paignton (SDP 3.2/3/4/5 Paignton North & Western Area - Figure
X); at Great Parks, Collaton St Mary and Whiterock will all increase Torbay’s
population further. The biggest development at Collaton St Mary (SDP 3.3 Paignton
North & Western Area) anticipates a build of 2,625 homes which will accommodate
approximately 5,300 residents, although completion may not be for another 15 years.

® http://www.southdevonlinkroad.co.uk/ 44

Page 52



http://www.southdevonlinkroad.co.uk/

Figure 7: Map showing the anticipated development areas for Torbay based on

the 20 year Local plan (Spatial Planning, Torbay Council).

/

/ KEY DIAGRAM

Strategic Delvery Areas
[: Polcy 20T Torgusy
D Poicy 20P1 Paignion
D Polcy 2081 Brivnam

Detailed 30T, SDF & SOB Folicles Y

[Future Growth Areas (Poiickes 831 8 £32)
are alocated within 3073, SDP3.3, SDP3.4

a3p822
— Main R03d Nebwork "
P TN
i S
{ "
/ N
! b L,
( 1 5
T
! N
l g =N
ol N\ )
P \2DT2 Terquay Town {
\Centre & Harbour %
N =y
N /
# 4

TOR BAY

- PAIGNTON

e —
e

/' 3DP4 Ciennon
Lelcurs Hub

\ o =i
} ;@zaﬂlmfmﬂ\m. ”
} ) r@r:wuwmmm)//

~ <
N

L : ' 7 - v
l/ ’
DE3.1 Brixham Urhan Fringe &'
4 P g,:.g, 30832 a/rpmnqn'u
=y

South Hams District

of Outctanding Natural

Scale 1:40,000 \
tis map s based Lpon Ordnance Survey materdal with permission of Cranance Survey on behalf of the Corbajer Crown copyright
horised repraduoction nfinges Crown copyright and may lead 1 Jrosecuion o dvl proceedings. LAOTSTER a3

45

Page 53




5 Identified patient groups — particular health issues

The following patient groups have been identified as living within the HWB's area:

e Those sharing one of more of the following protected characteristics:

O

o

o

o

Age;

Disability which is defined as a physical or mental impairment, that has
a substantial and long-term adverse effect on the person’s ability to
carry out normal day-to-day activities;

Gender reassignment;

Marriage and civil partnership;

Pregnancy and maternity;

Race which includes colour, nationality, ethnic or national origins;
Religion (including a lack of religion) or belief (any religious or
philosophical belief)

Sex;

Sexual orientation.

e Homeless

e Students

e Tourists

Although some of these groups are referred to in other parts of the PNA, this section

focusses on their particular health issues.

5.1 Age

e Health issues tend to be greater amongst the very young and the very old

e The number of chronic conditions increases with age

5.2 Disability

e There is a strong relationship between physical and mental ill health; being

physically disabled can increase a person’s chances of poor mental health and

vice versa

46
Page 54



Increased likelihood of co-morbidity of disabling conditions

5.3 Gender re-assignment

Transgender individuals can face discrimination and harassment; they may be

possible targets for hate crime

5.4 Marriage and civil partnership

Victims of domestic violence are at high risk of serious injury or death.

5.5 Pregnancy and maternity

There are many common health problems that are associated with pregnancy
such as backache, constipation and sleeplessness. Additionally there are

health issues such as morning sickness that are specific to pregnancy.

5.6 Race

Ethnic differences in health are most marked in the areas of mental wellbeing,
cancer, heart disease, HIV, TB and diabetes.

An increase in the number of older BAME people is likely to lead to a greater
need for provision of culturally sensitive social care and palliative care.

BAME populations may face discrimination and harassment and may be

possible targets for hate crime.

5.7 Religion and belief

Possible link with ‘honour based violence’ which is a type of domestic violence
motivated by the notion of honour and occurs in those communities where the
honour concept is linked to the expected behaviours of families and
individuals.

Female genital mutilation is related to cultural, religious and social factors
within families and communities although there is no direct link to any religion
or faith. It is a practice that raises serious health related concerns.

There is a possibility of hate crime related to religion and belief.

47

Page 55



5.8 Sex

e Inequalities in health are greater for men; there is a difference in life
expectancy of 8.9 years for men between electoral wards in Torbay, and 5.2

years for women (2013/15).

5.9 Sexual orientation

e Gay or leshian individuals may be possible targets for hate crime

e Certain sexual health issues may be more prevalent in gay and lesbian
populations eg gay men are in a higher risk group for HIV.

e Research suggests that gay and lesbian people may be less likely to be
screened for certain conditions meaning problems are not picked up as early
as they could be.

e Mental illness, such as depression and anxiety, is more common amongst

lesbian, gay and bisexual people.

5.10 Homeless

e Homeless Link completed a nationwide study of the health needs of homeless
people in 2014, Key findings of the audits conducted on homeless people
were:

o 80% reported some form of mental health problem (diagnosed or
undiagnosed)

o 45% had a diagnosed mental health problem (compared to 25 in the
general population)

o 39% are currently, or in recovery from, misusing drugs

o 27% are currently, or in recovery from, misusing alcohol

o Almost 50% used drugs or alcohol to cope with mental health issues

o Close to 66% consumed more than the recommended daily allowance
of alcohol, each time they drunk

o 73% had physical health issues, of which 41% said this was a long term

condition.

* http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-
attachments/The%20unhealthy%20state%200f%20homelessness%20FINAL.pdf 48

Page 56



http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-attachments/The%20unhealthy%20state%20of%20homelessness%20FINAL.pdf
http://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-attachments/The%20unhealthy%20state%20of%20homelessness%20FINAL.pdf

In addition, homelessness is a key risk factor for TB due to the transmission

risks of sleeping rough or in overcrowded accommodation.

5.11 Students

Torbay has 3 grammar schools which draw young people on a daily basis from
both Torbay and the surrounding areas of South Devon.
Torbay also has South Devon College, based in Paignton, which has a wide
variety of academic and vocational courses, as well as adult learning and
university degree courses, which draws young people and adult students from
a wide area of South Devon.
Health considerations for this patient group include (but are not limited to):

o Mumps

o Chlamydia testing

o Contraception, including EHC provision

o Mental health problems are more common among students than the

general population.

Torbay is highly popular with foreign students with a significant number of
young people staying with host families in Torbay and the surrounding area.
These students can be from a diverse range of countries and therefore may
bring, or be susceptible to, a range of foreign diseases or ailments.

5.12 Tourists

Torbay has a seasonal influx of tourists into the area, who may suffer from a
range of health issues which may need pharmacy support. These could range
from simple colds through to issues such as sunburn as well as more

complicated prescribing regimens that need to continue to be maintained.

49

Page 57



6 Health needs that can be met by pharmaceutical
services

6.1 Introduction
Everyone will at some stage require prescriptions to be dispensed irrespective of

whether or not they are in one of the groups identified in section 5. This may be for a
one-off course of antibiotics or for medication that they will need to take, or an
appliance that they will need to use, for the rest of their life in order to manage a long
term condition. This health need can only be met within primary care by the provision
of pharmaceutical services, be that by pharmacies, DACs or dispensing doctors, and

is applicable to the following themes.

Coupled with this is the safe collection and disposal of unwanted or out of date
dispensed drugs. Both NHS England and pharmacies have a duty to ensure that
people living at home, in a children’s home or in a residential care home can return

unwanted or out of date dispensed drugs for their safe disposal.

Many of the pharmacies in Torbay will offer a collection and delivery service on a

private basis.

Distance selling pharmacies are required to deliver all dispensed items and this will
clearly be of benefit to people who are unable to access a pharmacy. As noted earlier
DACs tend to operate in the same way and this is evidenced by the fact that the vast
majority of items dispensed by DACs were dispensed at premises some considerable

distance from Torbay.

Mental health

As well as supply medicines for the treatment of mental health problems, pharmacies
can provide accessible and comprehensive information and advice to carers about
what help and support is available to them. This is part of the signposting essential

service.

Smoking

Smoking cessation is commissioned as a locally commissioned service 5gmd

Page 58



pharmacies are just one of several providers of this service. As smoking cessation is
commissioned by the council, it is not envisaged that within the lifetime of this PNA

there is or will be a need for it to be commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services.

Long term conditions

In addition to dispensing prescriptions, pharmacies can contribute to many of the

public health issues relating to many long term conditions as part of the essential

services they provide:

o Where a person presents a prescription, and they appear to have diabetes, be at
risk of coronary heart disease (especially those with high blood pressure), smoke
or are overweight, the pharmacy is required to give appropriate advice with the
aim of increasing that person’s knowledge and understanding of the health
iIssues which are relevant to their circumstances.

o Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six public health campaigns each
calendar year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for
these campaigns are selected by NHS England and could include long term
conditions.

o Signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers of services or support.

o Provision of the four advanced services will also assist people to manage their

long term conditions in order to maximise their quality of life.

6.2 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)

The purpose of the JSNA is to provide an objective view of the health and wellbeing
needs of the population. JSNA identifies “the big picture” in terms of the health and
wellbeing needs and inequalities of a local population. It provides an evidence base
for commissioners to commission services, according to the needs of the population.
A JSNA is not a needs assessment of an individual, but a strategic overview of the
local community need — either geographically such as local authority / localities or for
specific groups such as younger or older people or people from different

backgrounds

JSNA is not a standalone document but a suite of documents, web tools and

presentations which help to analyse the health needs of populations to inform and
51

Page 59



guide commissioning of health, wellbeing and social care services within local
authority areas. JSNA will be the means by which local leaders work together to
understand and agree the needs of the local population. JSNAs, along with health
and wellbeing strategies will enable commissioners to plan and commission more
effective and integrated services to meet the needs of the South Devon and Torbay
population, in particular for the most vulnerable, and for groups with the worst health
outcomes, and to help reduce the overall inequalities that exist.

Helping people to live longer and healthier lives is not simply about the healthcare
received through GPs or at hospital, it is also about the wider social determinants of
where we live and work. The collective action of agencies is needed today to promote
the health of tomorrows older population. Preventing ill health starts before birth, and
continues to accumulate throughout individual’s lives. A life course approach enables
an understanding of needs and risks to health and wellbeing at different points along
the path of life. For example, our needs as babies and in our early years differ
significantly to our needs and risks to health and wellbeing as we enter adulthood or
retirement. Understanding the risks to health and wellbeing at different points along
the path of life enables opportunities to promote positive health and wellbeing and to
prevent future ill health, or to understand the potential burden of disease that may

need to be considered in delivering services.
JSNA in Torbay is presented across the life course:

Population Overview sets the scene for the current & future population structure

across South Devon and Torbay. It includes top level population overviews

e Starting Well is about understanding the needs of the population through
pregnancy, birth and for the first few years of life. This includes understanding the
anticipated need for maternity services, health visiting services and early years’

services.

e Developing Well is about understanding the needs of the population between the
ages of 5 and 24. This includes understanding the anticipated needs for schools and
the developing health and wellbeing needs of this age group.

e Living and Working Well is about understanding the needs of the working age
population. This includes understanding the lifestyles and health outcomes

experienced by this group, and the risks that prevent positive health and wellbeing,

Page 60



e Ageing and Dying Well is about understanding the needs of those from around 65
years and over. It is about reducing and preventing long term conditions, promoting

active aging and tackling inequalities into older age.

Torbay's JSNA can be  accessed through the  following link:

http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/

A written narrative JSNA for 2018 to 2020 is due for publication in December 2018;

this will be accessible through the website.

Figure 8: Home page of the Torbay JSNA website

South Devon and Torbay Knowledge and Intelligence

Sharing knowledge and intelligence
to understand the needs of the & MCend

Tavistack
community s
This website provides an opportunity to bring together knowledge and o
intelligence from different perspectives, to enable a wider understanding
of the needs within the South Devon and Torbay community.

Saltash
Plymouth

The information contained within this website forms a wider Joint
Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNA) for South Devon and Torbay. JSNAs
provide an analysis of the health needs of populations to inform and

X B : ) . MOOT 15 5822017 Google  Terms of Use | Report 2 map error
guide commissioning of health, well-being and social care services.

Interactive Tools Needs Assessment and Strategy

Intelligence Forum Performance Frameworks

Health and Wellbeing Knowledge and Intelligence

2014 © Torbay Council | Contact Us | Terms and Conditions | Privacy and Cookies

53

Page 61


http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/

7 Provision of pharmaceutical services

7.1 Necessary services

The PNA is required to make statements on current provision and gaps in
‘necessary pharmaceutical services’ provided by community pharmacists. This
section considers those services provided by community pharmacies that fall within
the definition of ‘essential pharmaceutical services’ commissioned by NHS England.
NHS England oversees the provision of these services. Essential services are

provided by all community pharmacies and are centrally funded. They are:

e The dispensing of prescriptions

e The dispensing of repeatable prescriptions

e The acceptance and disposal of unwanted medicines returned by patients
e Signposting to other providers of health and social care services

e Promotion of healthy lifestyles

e Support for self-care.
Relevant and necessary services

¢ Medicines Use Reviews and Prescription Intervention Service (may only be
provided by a community pharmacy).

¢ New Medicines Service (may only be provided by a community pharmacy).

On-demand availability of specialist drugs is commissioned by NHSE as a local
enhanced service, and is necessary to ensure people have access to a specified list

of products during extended hours of opening.

NHS England commissions this service from selected pharmacies, chosen to
ensure appropriate geographical coverage and because they have long opening
hours. Not all of the pharmacies which provide this service may be open on
bank/public holidays and NHS England considers that to associate providing this
service with a requirement to be open on holidays would discourage pharmacies

from providing the service. Therefore coverage may be sparser on such days.
54

Page 62



7.2 Current provision of necessary services

There are currently 37 pharmacies in Torbay (see figure 9).
28 pharmacies are owned by national pharmacy chains:

e 9 by Boots Pharmacy

e 8 by Day Lewis Pharmacy

e 6 by Well Pharmacy (Best way National Chemists)
e 4 by Lloyds pharmacy

e 1 by Superdrug Pharmacy.

4 pharmacies are owned by a local chain, Poolearth, and 5 pharmacies are owned by
independent providers.

There are two 100 hour pharmacies (Boots Pharmacy at Wren Retail Park, Torquay

and Lloyds Pharmacy at Sainsbury’s, Brixham Road, Paignton).

There are no pharmacies with local pharmaceutical services contracts, distance-
selling pharmacies, dispensing appliance contractors or dispensing doctors in

Torbay.
Since the last PNA was published two pharmacies have closed in Torbay:

e Boots Pharmacy on Tor Hill Road in Torquay closed in January 2017 (i.e.
2016/17)

e Boots Pharmacy on Winner Street in Paignton closed in July 2017 (i.e.
2017/18).

No new pharmacies have opened since the last PNA was published. cc

Page 63



Over the last four years provision in Torbay has been as follows:

Pharmacies Px
Number of
_ Number of per o fees | Fees per
Year Population _ prescription
pharmacies | 100,000 . per | pharmacy
ees
population head
2013/14 132,075 40 30.3 3,326,696 | 25.2 83,167
2014/15 132,984 40 30.1 3,389,775 | 25.5 84,744
2015/16 133,373 39 29.2 3,408,911 | 25.6 87,408
2016/17 133,883 39 29.1 3,368,944 | 25.2 86,383
2017/18* 134,000 37 27.6 3,368,944 | 25.1 91,053
South
3,200,213
West . 637 19.9 57,812,665 | 18.1 90,758
(in 2015)
15/16
England | 54,786,327
_ 11,688 21.3 995,277,392 | 18.2 85,154
15/16 (in 2015)
Notes:

* assumption that the number of prescription fees for 2017/18 is the same as 2016/17

1. Figures include pharmacies that were open at any point during the financial year. Therefore,

the figure for 2016/17 will not match the number of current open pharmacies in section 7.2, as

the latter takes into account pharmacies that may have opened or closed since 2016/17.

2. Populations are based ONS mid-year population estimates. The population for each financial

year is taken as the mid-year estimate for the first of the two years that make up the financial

year. For example, for 2013/14 the population is taken as the mid-year estimate for 2013.

3. The South West population figure excludes Dorset, Poole, Bournemouth, Wiltshire, Swindon,

Gloucestershire, Bath and North East Somerset as these are not in the NHS England region

definition.

Page 64

56




The number of pharmacies in Torbay fell by 1 between 2013/14 and 2016/17. The
number of items dispensed rose by almost 2.5% between 2013/14 and 2015/16, but
then fell by 1.2% in 2016/17. Overall, the number of items dispensed rose by 1.3%
between 2013/14 and 2016/17.

Nationally the number of pharmacies has risen only very slightly in the last few years:
in 2015/16 there were 11,688, up 14 from the previous year. The number of
prescription items dispensed has increased a little faster: in 2015/16 approximately
995.3 million items were dispensed, up 1.7% on the previous year.

The number of pharmacies per 100,000 population in Torbay (27.6 in 2017/18) is
higher than the South West and national figures (19.9 and 21.3 respectively),
however when considering the higher number of fees per resident population; the
increased elderly, daytime transient and tourist populations, there is a slightly higher
number of fees per pharmacy in Torbay (91,053 in 2017/18) than either the South
west or National levels (90,758 and 85,154 respectively). In considering these two
facts, it is concluded that this does not equate to a significant difference and therefore

suggests Torbay is neither over nor under served in terms of pharmacy provision.

7.3 Current provision outside the HWB'’s area

As stated above, distance-selling pharmacies are required to provide the essential
services to patients anywhere in England, and will deliver medication to a patient’s
home address. Their services are therefore available to residents of the HWB’s area.
In addition to those located within the HWB area, there are numerous such
pharmacies located around the country. An alphabetical list of distance-selling

pharmacies IS available at www.nhs.uk/service-search/pharmacies/

InternetPharmacies

DACs generally supply appliances by home delivery, and are required to do so for
certain types of appliance. Their services are therefore available to residents of the
HWB'’s area. As at February 2017 there were 111 DACs in England, including those
located within the HWB area. An alphabetical list of DACs is available at

www.nhs.uk/service-search/pharmacies/AppliancePharmacies

57

Page 65


http://www.nhs.uk/service-search/pharmacies/InternetPharmacies
http://www.nhs.uk/service-search/pharmacies/InternetPharmacies
http://www.nhs.uk/service-search/pharmacies/AppliancePharmacies

Figure 9: Location of pharmacies in and around Torbay

Page 66

58



© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100016969

7.4 Access to premises

59

Page 67



Torbay’s population is served by 37 pharmacies, with well over 95% of the population
within a 5 minute car journey of a pharmacy, and the total population being within a
10 minutes car journey of a pharmacy. Pockets of Torbay not covered in the following

map are the coast line and golf courses.

Figure 10: drive times around pharmacies in Torbay

Abbotskerswell Goffinswell

minutes

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100016969

60
Page 68



7.4.1 Access to the essential services (core plus supplementary opening

hours)

e 7 pharmacies are routinely open 7 days per week: 4 in Torquay and 3 in
Paignton

e 23 pharmacies are open Monday to Saturday only. 16 pharmacies close at or
before 1pm on Saturdays. 7 pharmacies close after 1pm on Saturdays.

e 7 pharmacies open Monday to Friday only.

e 1 pharmacy is open before 8am Monday to Friday: Lloyds Pharmacy in
Paignton

e 4 pharmacies open later than 6.30pm Monday to Friday, 2 in Paignton and 2 in
Torquay

NHS England has a duty to ensure that residents of the HWB’s area are able to
access pharmaceutical services every day. Pharmacies and DACs are not required
to open on public and bank holidays, or Easter Sunday, although some choose to
do so. NHS England asks each contractor to confirm their intentions regarding
these days and where necessary will direct a contractor or contractors to open on
one or more of these days to ensure adequate access.

61

Page 69



Figure 11: Pharmacy services across Torbay

4

Coffinswell

enhead
ignheac

2 L. 100 hour contract

Services

@ (33 © New Medicine Service

@ (33 O Medicines utilisation review
Core hours

@ (3 @ Evening opening

@ (18 @ saturday moming opening
@ (10 @ saturday afternoon opening
v AI’O Sunday opening
Commissioned services

@ |3 O Spacialist drugs service

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100016969

Page 70

62



Figure 12: Earliest opening time and latest closing time for any given

pharmacy, by day of the week

S N\

Sunday 9:30 AM 12:00 AM

Monday 7:00 AM 12:00 AM

Tuesday 7:00 AM 12:00 AM

12:00 AM

Torbay

Wednesday 7:00 AM

Thursday 7:00 AM 12:00 AM

Friday 7:00 AM 12:00 AM

Saturday 7:00 AM 12:00AM

12.00AM 2:00AM 4:00AM 6:00AM 8:00AM 10:00 AM 12.00PM 2:00PM 4:00PM 6:00PM 8:00 PM 10:00 PM 12:00 AM/

\ Time

Note:

1. Earliest opening and latest closing times are based on current total opening hours

I.e. core plus supplementary opening hours

7.4.2 Access to Medicines Use Review (MUR)

All of the pharmacies in Torbay provided MURs in 2016/17. Out of a maximum
possible of 15,600 MURs which could have been carried out, 11,949 MURs were
performed in 2016/17 (76.6%). Five pharmacies provided the maximum number of
MURs recommended (400), 12 provided more, while 3 provided between 390 and
399 MURs. A total of 20 pharmacies provided 390 or more MURS.

7.4.3 Access to New Medicines Service (NMS)
37 of the 39 pharmacies provide NMS in 2016/17. A total of 3,043 NMSs were
undertaken in 2016/17.

7.4.4 Access to the ‘on demand availability of specialist medicines’ enhanced
service

NHS England selects pharmacies to provide this service in order to ensure adequate

coverage, and in particular tries to choose pharmacies with long opening hours in

order to ensure availability in the evenings and at weekends.

3 pharmacies (1 in Paignton, 2 in Torquay) provided this service in 2016/17. It was

also provided by pharmacies in the neighbouring HWB area, in Newton Abbot and
63

Page 71



Teignmouth.

7.4.5 Access to dispensing of appliances

Some, but not all, pharmacies dispense appliances. DACs dispense appliances,
usually by home delivery.

All of the pharmacies dispensed some appliances during 2016/17, while 21

dispensed appliances that require measuring or fitting.

7.5 Other relevant services

Other relevant services are services there are not defined as necessary but have

secured improvement or better access to pharmaceutical services.
For the purposes of this PNA, ‘other relevant services’ includes:

o the advanced services not classed as ‘necessary’ (influenza vaccination and
urgent supply, stoma appliance customization and AUR)

o services commissioned from pharmacies by South Devon and Torbay CCG or
Torbay council

o other NHS services

o services provided by other organisations.

7.6 Advanced services

7.6.1 Influenza vaccination advanced service

This service has not been included within the definition of ‘necessary services’
because, if it were not provided by pharmacies, an equivalent service would be
available from GP surgeries. 34 pharmacies in Torbay provided NHS influenza
vaccinations in 2016/17, giving a total of 3,741 vaccinations.

7.6.2 Stoma appliance customisation advanced service
Only 2 pharmacies appear to provide this service themselves, with a total of 48 stoma

customisations provided in 2016/17. However many stoma appliances will be
64

Page 72



dispensed by DACs based around the country, who may provide this service.

7.6.3 Appliance Use Review (AUR) advanced service
No pharmacy in Torbay provided this service in 2016/17. However many appliances

will be dispensed by DACs based around the country, who may provide this service.

7.6.4 Urgent supply advanced service (NUMSAS)

This service has not been included within the definition of ‘necessary services’

because:

o it is currently a pilot and whether it will continue to be commissioned is not
known

o if it were not provided as an advanced service, patients could obtain an urgent

supply as a private service from a pharmacy.
7.7 Services commissioned by the CCG or Council
As noted in section 2.4, the CCG or council may commission pharmacies or DACs to
provide services.

7.7.1 Services commissioned by the CCG

Currently 37 pharmacies are commissioned in Torbay to provide the Minor Ailments
Service. In April — July 2017 (The period when the new Minor Ailment Services were

commissioned), 116 people accessed the Minor Ailment Service in Torbay.

7.7.2 Services commissioned by the council

Supervised consumption of substance misuse medicines

19 pharmacies were commissioned to provide this service by Torbay council in
2016/17. 5,813 doses of sublingual Subutex and 45,448 doses of Methadone were
supervised in pharmacies In 2016/17.

65

Page 73



Needle exchange
15 pharmacies were commissioned in Torbay to provide needle exchange services in
2016/17. The following number of packs was provided through pharmacies In
2016/17:

e 1ml packs — 6,021

e 2ml packs — 4,019

e Blue needle packs — 3,226

e Green needle packs — 1,754

¢ Orange needle packs — 1,151
Emergency hormonal contraception (EHC)

27 pharmacies were commissioned in Torbay to provide EHC services in 2016/17.
482 provisions of EHC were supplied to Torbay residents through pharmacies In
2016/17.

Chlamydia screening

3 pharmacies were commissioned in Torbay in 2016/17 to provide the Chlamydia
Counter top kit service (not including those who provide chlamydia screening as part
of the EHC provision). In total 30 pharmacies were commissioned to provide
Chlamydia screening and 159 people were tested for chlamydia from the Kkits

provided through pharmacies.
NHS health checks

In 2016/17, this service was only commissioned through GP practices with a small
ancillary outreach contract commissioned through Devon Doctors. No pharmacies

were directly commissioned in Torbay to provide NHS Health Checks.
Smoking cessation

In 2016/17, 7 pharmacies were commissioned in Torbay to provide stop smoking

services. In 2016/17 8 people quit smoking through pharmacies.

66
Page 74



B DOT

In 2016/17, 24 pharmacies were commissioned in Torbay to provide TB DOT

services. In 2016/17 no-one received TB DOT services through pharmacies.

7.8 Other NHS services

7.8.1 Hospital pharmacies

Hospital pharmacies reduce the demand for the dispensing essential service as
prescriptions written in the hospital are dispensed by the hospital pharmacy service.
Some hospital pharmacies are operated by commercial providers which manage
outpatient dispensing services, but they are not able to dispense prescriptions issued
by other prescribers, for example GP surgeries.

There is one hospital in Torbay, which has a pharmacy on site, although this is not an
NHS community pharmacy and therefore does not dispense FP10 prescriptions; it
only dispenses hospital outpatient prescriptions. This pharmacy is based on the main
hospital site at Lowes Bridge in Torquay.

7.8.2 Personal administration of items by GPs

Under their medical contract with NHS England there will be occasion where a GP

practice personally administers an item to a patient.

Generally when a patient requires a medicine or appliance their GP will give them a
prescription which they take to their preferred pharmacy. In some instances however
the GP will supply the item against a prescription and this is referred to as personal
administration as the item that is supplied will then be administered to the patient by
the GP or a nurse. This is different to the dispensing of prescriptions and only applies
to certain specified items for example vaccines, anaesthetics, injections, intra-uterine

contraceptive devices and sutures.

For these items the practice will produce a prescription however the patient i%7not

Page 75



required to take it to a pharmacy, have it dispensed and then return to the practice for

it to be administered.

Personal administration thus reduces the demand for the dispensing essential

service.

7.8.3 GP Out of Hours service

Beyond the normal working hours GP practices open, there is an out of hours service
operated as an initial telephone consultation where the doctor may attend the
patients home or request the patient access one of the clinics. The clinics and
travelling doctors have a stock of medicines and, in appropriate cases, may issue
medicines from stock, for example:

o a full course of antibiotics for an infection, or

o sufficient pain relief medication to tide them over until a prescription can be

dispensed.

Alternatively the service may issue a prescription for dispensing at a pharmacy.

7.9 Services provided by other organisations

It has been assessed that there are no other services, provided by other

organisations in Torbay that is applicable to the PNA.

68

Page 76



8 Conclusion

8.1 Current provision

Torbay HWB has had regard to the pharmaceutical services referred to in this PNA
in seeking to identify those that are necessary, have secured improvements or
better access, or have contributed towards meeting the need for pharmaceutical

services in the area of the HWB.

8.2 Necessary services: current gaps in provision

There are currently no gaps in pharmaceutical provision in Torbay, and thus there is
currently no need for a new pharmacy in Torbay.

With regards to the ‘on demand availability of specialist drugs’ enhanced service,
current provision is considered to be adequate and thus there are no gaps. If a need
for this provision to be extended is identified then NHS England (or the CCG’s if
commissioning of this service transfers to them) could commission additional existing
pharmacies to provide it. Therefore it would not be necessary for new pharmacies to
open in order to meet any such need, and accordingly there is not a gap.

8.3 Necessary services: future gaps in provision

We recognize that there are housing developments proposed, especially in Collaton
St Mary, however, this is not expected to be progressed significantly in the life of this
PNA. However, there would be a future need if the housing developments
accelerated, and 1,500 or more houses were built within Collaton St Mary.

Across the rest of Torbay there are not expected to be any gaps in pharmaceutical
provision and thus there is currently no future need for a new pharmacy elsewhere in
Torbay.

We recognise increasing demand pressure in primary care, and that the role of
community pharmacy may significantly change, as a result, over the lifetime of this
PNA. The direction of travel for primary care, as set out in the GP Forward View, is
for GP services to become available from 8am to 8pm, and for pharmacies to

become the first point of contact with health services for some health issues.gl is

Page 77



anticipated that pharmacies’ business interests will lead them to adapt their provision
of pharmaceutical services to these changes, although innovative approaches in
contractual arrangement may be needed in some locations to support these changes.
Across the existing services in Torbay there is unused capacity for further MUR and
NMS services; as a result there is no gap in provision and no need for additional
capacity.

With regards to the ‘on demand availability of specialist drugs’ enhanced service,
future provision within this PNA is considered to be adequate and thus there will not
be any future gaps. If a need for this provision to be extended is identified then NHS
England (or the CCG’s if commissioning of this service transfers to them) could
commission additional existing pharmacies to provide it. Therefore it would not be
necessary for new pharmacies to open in order to meet any such need, and

accordingly there is not a gap.

8.4 Other relevant services: current and future gaps in provision

With regards to Influenza vaccination advanced service, current provision is deemed
to be adequate and there are not expected to be any future demands for this service
over the lifetime of this PNA.

The NHS Urgent Medicine Supply Advanced Service (NUMSAS) is a pilot service
and due to be evaluated in due course. Therefore the PNA will not comment on the
adequacy of provision at the present time however the future commissioning plans for
this service may be know when the final PNA is published.

Services commissioned through the local authority and CCG, as well as other
relevant NHS services, are represented in the PNA for reference but are outside the
scope for assessment of need and therefore no statement will be made in this

document as to the adequacy of these services.

70

Page 78



Appendix 1. Acronyms and definitions

A&E accident and emergency

AUR appliance use review

BAME black and Asian minority ethnic

CCG clinical commissioning group

CHD coronary heart disease

COPD chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
DAC dispensing appliance contractor

DH Department of Health

DRUM dispensing review of the use of medicines
DSP distance-selling pharmacy

DSQS dispensary services quality scheme
EHC emergency hormonal contraception
EIA eqguality impact assessment

EPS electronic prescription service

GIRES Gender identity research and education society
GUM genito—urinary medicine

HIV human immunodeficiency virus

HSCIC Health and Social Care Information Centre
HSV herpes simplex virus

HWB health and wellbeing board

IHS integrated household survey

IMD index of multiple deprivation

JSNA joint strategic needs assessment
LAPE local alcohol profiles for England
LARC long—acting reversible contraception
LGBT lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender
LPS local pharmaceutical services

LSOA lower layer super output area

LTC long term condition

MSM men who have sex with men

MSOA medium layer super output area

MUR medicines use review

NCMP national child measure programme

71

Page 79



NCSP national chlamydia screening programme

NMS new medicine service

NHSCB NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England)
NUMSAS NHS urgent medicine supply advanced service
OCuU opiate or crack cocaine user

ONS Office for national statistics

PCT primary care trust

PGD patient group direction

PHO public health observatories

PhAS pharmacy access scheme

PNA pharmaceutical needs assessment

POPPI projecting older people population information
QOF quality and outcomes framework

QPS Quality Payment Scheme

SADL simple aid to daily living

SMR standardised mortality rate

STI sexually transmitted infections

B tuberculosis

UK United Kingdom

The 2013 directions — The Pharmaceutical Services (Advanced and Enhanced

Services) (England) Directions 2013, as amended

The 2013 regulations — The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended

72

Page 80



Appendix 2: Legislation relating to PNAs

Section 128A of the NHS Act 2006, as amended by the Health and Social Care Act
2012, sets out the requirements for HWBs to develop and update PNAs and gives

the Department of Health powers to make regulations.

Section 128A Pharmaceutical needs assessments

(1)

(2)

3)

Each Health and Well-being Board must in accordance with regulations--

(@)
(b)

assess needs for pharmaceutical services in its area, and

publish a statement of its first assessment and of any revised assessment.

The regulations must make provision--

(@)
(b)

(©)

(d)

as to information which must be contained in a statement;

as to the extent to which an assessment must take account of likely future
needs;

specifying the date by which a Health and Well-being Board must publish
the statement of its first assessment;

as to the circumstances in which a Health and Well-being Board must

make a new assessment.

The regulations may in particular make provision--

(@)
(b)

(©)
(d)

as to the pharmaceutical services to which an assessment must relate;
requiring a Health and Well-being Board to consult specified persons
about specified matters when making an assessment;

as to the manner in which an assessment is to be made;

as to matters to which a Health and Well-being Board must have regard

when making an assessment.

The regulations referred to are the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical

Services) Regulations 2013, as amended, in particular Part 2 and Schedule 1.

73

Page 81




Part 2: Pharmaceutical needs assessments

3. Pharmaceutical needs assessments

(1)

(2)

The statement of the needs for pharmaceutical services which each HWB is
required to publish by virtue of section 128A of the 2006 Act(1) (pharmaceutical
needs assessments), whether it is the statement of its first assessment or of any
revised assessment, is referred to in these Regulations as a “pharmaceutical

needs assessment”.

The pharmaceutical services to which each pharmaceutical needs assessment
must relate are all the pharmaceutical services that may be provided under

arrangements made by the NHSCB for—

(@) the provision of pharmaceutical services (including directed services) by a

person on a pharmaceutical list;

(b) the provision of local pharmaceutical services under an LPS scheme (but

not LP services which are not local pharmaceutical services); or

(c) the dispensing of drugs and appliances by a person on a dispensing
doctors list (but not other NHS services that may be provided under
arrangements made by the NHSCB with a dispensing doctor).

4. Information to be contained in pharmaceutical needs assessments

(1)

(2)

Each pharmaceutical needs assessment must contain the information set out in
Schedule 1.

Each HWB must, in so far as is practicable, keep up to date the map which it
includes in its pharmaceutical needs assessment pursuant to paragraph 7 of
Schedule 1 (without needing to republish the whole of the assessment or

publish a supplementary statement).

5. Date by which the first HWB pharmaceutical needs assessments are to be

published

74

Page 82



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/part/2/made#f00049

Each HWB must publish its first pharmaceutical needs assessment by 1st April 2015.

6. Subsequent assessments

(1)

(2)

3)

After it has published its first pharmaceutical needs assessment, each HWB
must publish a statement of its revised assessment within 3 years of its previous

publication of a pharmaceutical needs assessment.

A HWB must make a revised assessment as soon as is reasonably practicable
after identifying changes since the previous assessment, which are of a
significant extent, to the need for pharmaceutical services in its area, having

regard in particular to changes to—

(@) the number of people in its area who require pharmaceutical services;
(b) the demography of its area; and

(c) the risks to the health or well-being of people in its area,

unless it is satisfied that making a revised assessment would be a

disproportionate response to those changes.

Pending the publication of a statement of a revised assessment, a HWB may
publish a supplementary statement explaining changes to the availability of
pharmaceutical services since the publication of its or a Primary Care Trust’s
pharmaceutical needs assessment (and any such supplementary statement

becomes part of that assessment), where—
(@) the changes are relevant to the granting of applications referred to in
section 129(2)(c)(i) or (ii) of the 2006 Act; and
(b) the HWB—
() is satisfied that making its first or a revised assessment would be a
disproportionate response to those changes, or

(i) is in the course of making its first or a revised assessment and is
satisfied that immediate modification of its pharmaceutical needs
assessment is essential in order to prevent significant detriment to

the provision of pharmaceutical services in its area.

75

Page 83




(4)

Where chemist premises are removed from a pharmaceutical list as a
consequence of the grant of a consolidation application, if in the opinion of the
relevant HWB the removal does not create a gap in pharmaceutical services

provision that could be met by a routine application—
(@) to meet a current or future need for pharmaceutical services; or
(b) to secure improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services,

the relevant HWB must publish a supplementary statement explaining that, in its
view, the removal does not create such a gap, and any such statement

becomes part of its pharmaceutical needs assessment

7. Temporary extension of Primary Care Trust pharmaceutical needs

assessments and access by the NHSCB and HWBs to pharmaceutical needs

assessments

(1)

(2)

Before the publication by an HWB of the first pharmaceutical needs assessment
that it prepares for its area, the pharmaceutical needs assessment that relates
to any locality within that area is the pharmaceutical needs assessment that
relates to that locality of the Primary Care Trust for that locality immediately

before the appointed day, read with—

(@) any supplementary statement relating to that assessment published by a
Primary Care Trust under the 2005 Regulations or the 2012 Regulations;

or

(b) any supplementary statement relating to that assessment published by the
HWB under regulation 6(3).

Each HWB must ensure that the NHSCB has access to—

(@ the HWB’s pharmaceutical needs assessment (including any
supplementary statement that it publishes, in accordance with regulation

6(3), that becomes part of that assessment);

(b) any supplementary statement that the HWB publishes, in accordance with
regulation 6(3), in relation to a Primary Care Trust’s pharmaceutical needs

assessment; and

76

Page 84




3)

(c) any pharmaceutical needs assessment of a Primary Care Trust that it
holds,

which is sufficient to enable the NHSCB to carry out its functions under these

Regulations.

Each HWB must ensure that, as necessary, other HWBs have access to any
pharmaceutical needs assessment of a Primary Care Trust that it holds, which
is sufficient to enable the other HWBs to carry out their functions under these

Regulations.

8. Consultation on pharmaceutical needs assessments

(1)

(2)

When making an assessment for the purposes of publishing a pharmaceutical
needs assessment, each HWB (HWB1) must consult the following about the
contents of the assessment it is making—

(@) any Local Pharmaceutical Committee for its area (including any Local
Pharmaceutical Committee for part of its area or for its area and that of all
or part of the area of one or more other HWBS);

(b) any Local Medical Committee for its area (including any Local Medical
Committee for part of its area or for its area and that of all or part of the
area of one or more other HWBS);

(c) any persons on the pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing doctors list for
its area;

(d) any LPS chemist in its area with whom the NHSCB has made
arrangements for the provision of any local pharmaceutical services;

(e) any Local Healthwatch organisation for its area, and any other patient,
consumer or community group in its area which in the opinion of HWB1
has an interest in the provision of pharmaceutical services in its area; and

(f) any NHS trust or NHS foundation trust in its area;

(g) the NHSCB; and
(h) any neighbouring HWB.

The persons mentioned in paragraph (1) must together be consulted at least

77

Page 85




3)

(4)

()

(6)

once during the process of making the assessment on a draft of the proposed

pharmaceutical needs assessment.

Where a HWB is consulted on a draft under paragraph (2), if there is a Local
Pharmaceutical Committee or Local Medical Committee for its area or part of its
area that is different to a Local Pharmaceutical Committee or Local Medical
Committee consulted under paragraph (1)(a) or (b), that HWB—

(@ must consult that Committee before making its response to the

consultation; and

(b) must have regard to any representations received from the Committee

when making its response to the consultation.

The persons consulted on the draft under paragraph (2) must be given a
minimum period of 60 days for making their response to the consultation,
beginning with the day by which all those persons have been served with the
draft.

For the purposes of paragraph (4), a person is to be treated as served with a
draft if that person is notified by HWB1 of the address of a website on which the
draft is available and is to remain available (except due to accident or
unforeseen circumstances) throughout the period for making responses to the

consultation.

If a person consulted on a draft under paragraph (2)—
(a) istreated as served with the draft by virtue of paragraph (5); or
(b) has been served with copy of the draft in an electronic form,

but requests a copy of the draft in hard copy form, HWB1 must as soon as is
practicable and in any event within 14 days supply a hard copy of the draft to
that person (free of charge).

9. Matters for consideration when making assessments

(1)

When making an assessment for the purposes of publishing a pharmaceutical

needs assessment, each HWB must have regard, in so far as it is practicable to

a4

Page 86




do so, to the following matters—

(@)

the demography of its area;

(b) whether in its area there is sufficient choice with regard to obtaining

(©)
(d)

(€)

pharmaceutical services;

any different needs of different localities within its area;

the pharmaceutical services provided in the area of any neighbouring
HWB which affect—

()
(ii)

the need for pharmaceutical services in its area, or

whether further provision of pharmaceutical services in its area would
secure improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services,

or pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its area; and

any other NHS services provided in or outside its area (which are not

covered by sub-paragraph (d)) which affect—

()
(ii)

the need for pharmaceutical services in its area, or

whether further provision of pharmaceutical services in its area would
secure improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services,

or pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its area.

(2) When making an assessment for the purposes of publishing a pharmaceutical

needs assessment, each HWB must take account of likely future needs—

(@)

(b)

to the extent necessary to make a proper assessment of the matters

mentioned in paragraphs 2 and 4 of Schedule 1; and

having regard to likely changes to—

(i)

(i)
(i)

the number of people in its area who require pharmaceutical

services,
the demography of its area, and

the risks to the health or well-being of people in its area.

Schedule 1: Information to be contained in pharmaceutical needs assessments

79

Page 87




1. Necessary services: current provision

A statement of the pharmaceutical services that the HWB has identified as services

that are provided—

(@) in the area of the HWB and which are necessary to meet the need for

pharmaceutical services in its area; and

(b) outside the area of the HWB but which nevertheless contribute towards
meeting the need for pharmaceutical services in its area (if the HWB has

identified such services).

2. Necessary services: gaps in provision

A statement of the pharmaceutical services that the HWB has identified (if it has) as
services that are not provided in the area of the HWB but which the HWB is
satisfied—

(@) need to be provided (whether or not they are located in the area of the
HWB) in order to meet a current need for pharmaceutical services, or

pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its area;

(b) will, in specified future circumstances, need to be provided (whether or not
they are located in the area of the HWB) in order to meet a future need for
pharmaceutical services, or pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in

its area.

3. Other relevant services: current provision

A statement of the pharmaceutical services that the HWB has identified (if it has) as
services that are provided—

(@) in the area of the HWB and which, although they are not necessary to
meet the need for pharmaceutical services in its area, nevertheless have
secured improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services in its

area,

(b) outside the area of the HWB and which, although they do not contribute

towards meeting the need for pharmaceutical services in its area,

80

Page 88




nevertheless have secured improvements, or better access, to

pharmaceutical services in its area,

(c) in or outside the area of the HWB and, whilst not being services of the
types described in sub-paragraph (a) or (b), or paragraph 1, they
nevertheless affect the assessment by the HWB of the need for

pharmaceutical services in its area.

4. Improvements and better access: gaps in provision

A statement of the pharmaceutical services that the HWB has identified (if it has) as
services that are not provided in the area of the HWB but which the HWB is
satisfied—

(@) would, if they were provided (whether or not they were located in the area
of the HWB), secure improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical
services, or pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its area,

(b) would, if in specified future circumstances they were provided (whether or
not they were located in the area of the HWB), secure future

improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services, or

pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its area.

5. Other NHS services

A statement of any NHS services provided or arranged by a local authority, the
NHSCB, a CCG, an NHS trust or an NHS foundation trust to which the HWB has had

regard in its assessment, which affect—

(@) the need for pharmaceutical services, or pharmaceutical services of a

specified type, in its area; or

(b) whether further provision of pharmaceutical services in its area would
secure improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services, or
pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its area.

6. How the assessment was carried out

An explanation of how the assessment has been carried out, and in particular—

o

Page 89




(@) how it has determined what are the localities in its area;
(b) how it has taken into account (where applicable)—
() the different needs of different localities in its area, and

(i) the different needs of people in its area who share a protected

characteristic; and

(c) areport on the consultation that it has undertaken.

7. Map of provision

A map that identifies the premises at which pharmaceutical services are provided in
the area of the HWB.

Finally, specifically in relation to controlled localities, regulation 39 provides:

39. Process of determining controlled localities: formulation of the NHSCB’s

decision

(2) Once it has determined whether or not an area is or is part of a controlled
locality, the NHSCB must—

(a) if it determines that the area is to become or become part of a controlled

locality, or is to cease to be part of a controlled locality—

() delineate precisely the boundary of the resulting controlled locality on

a map,
(i)  publish that map, and

(i) make that map available as soon as is practicable to any HWB that

has all or part of that controlled locality in its area;

(4) A HWB to which a map is made available under paragraph (2)(a)(iii) must—

(@) publish that map alongside its pharmaceutical needs assessment map

(once it has one); or

82

Page 90




(b)

include the boundary of the controlled locality (in so far as it is in, or part of
the boundary of, the HWB’s area) in its pharmaceutical needs assessment

map (once it has one).

83

Page 91




Appendix 3: Steering Group membership

Name Job Title Organisation
Dave Bearman Chair Devon, Cornwall and Isles of
Scilly Pharmacy Local
Professional
Network
Janet Newport Contracts Manager Devon, Cornwall and Isles of
Scilly Area Team, NHS
England
Kirsty Hill Senior Public Health | Devon County Council
Information Analyst,
Sue Taylor Chief Officer Devon Local Pharmaceutical
Committee
Robert Nelder Consultant in Public Health | Plymouth City Council
Intelligence
Claire Turbett Advanced Public Health | Plymouth City Council
Practitioner
David Ward Assistant Contract Manager - | NHS England
Pharmacy
Doug Haines Public Health Analyst Torbay Council
lan Tyson Acting Head of Public Health | Torbay Council
Improvement
Karen Acott Executive Partner Wallingbrook Health Group
(dispensing GP practice
representative)

We acknowledge the support and contributions from colleagues in Public Health

England.

84

Page 92



Appendix 4. Equality impact assessment

STAGE 1: What is being assessed and by whom?

What is being assessed - including
a brief description of aims and

objectives?

The purpose of the pharmaceutical needs assessment (PNA) is to
assess and set out how the provision of pharmaceutical services
can meet the health needs of the population of a Health and
Wellbeing Board’'s (H&WB’s) area for a period of up to three
years, linking closely to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA). Whilst the JSNA focusses on the general health needs of
the population of Torbay, the PNA looks at how those health
needs can be met by pharmaceutical services commissioned by
NHS England.

If a person (a pharmacy or a dispensing appliance contractor)
wants to provide pharmaceutical services, they are required to
apply to NHS England to be included in the pharmaceutical list for
the H&WB’s area in which they wish to have premises. In general,
their application must offer to meet a need that is set out in the
H&WB’s PNA, or to secure improvements or better access
similarly identified in the PNA. There are however some
exceptions to this, in particular applications offering benefits that
were not foreseen when the PNA was published (‘unforeseen

benefits applications’).

As well as identifying if there is a need for additional premises,
the PNA will also identify whether there is a need for an additional
service or services, or whether improvements or better access to
existing services are required. ldentified needs, improvements or
better access could either be current or will arise within the
lifetime of the PNA.

Whilst the PNA is primarily a document for NHS England to use to
make commissioning decisions, it may also be used by local
authorities (LAs) and Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). A

robust PNA will ensure those who commission services from

s35)

Page 93




STAGE 1: What is being assessed and by whom?

pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors (DACs) are
able to ensure services are targeted to areas of health need, and

reduce the risk of overprovision in areas of less need.

Author lan Tyson
Department and Service Commissioning Team, Public Health Department
Date of Assessment October 2017

STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact

Protected Evidence and [Any adverse [Actions Timescale and
Characteristics information (e.g.|impact? who is

data and feedback) responsible?
(Equality Act) See the guidance

on how to make

this judgement.

Age Torbay has a|Pharmaceutical |The predicted [NHSE.
population of around|services will be|population Throughout the
133,900 (2016 mid|provided on the|increases within age |life of the

year estimates) basis of clinical|bands has been|document.
The population of need -  this|estimated. The
Torbay is older than document document will be
the England average, specifies the |reviewed in three
. needs within|years’ time. It is
with a greater
Torbay. Any|assumed the age-

proportion of the

population over the missing provision [specific predictions

age of 50 years. should have been | of population growth

There are noticeable identified in the|will be within

differences in the 0-4 document and [tolerance, which will

and 20-39 age groups should therefore [ensure provision of

compared to England have a positive |pharmaceutical

impact. services in  an

equitable manner.

86

Page 94




STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact

Protected

Characteristics

(Equality Act)

Evidence and
information (e.g.
data and feedback)

Any adverse

impact?

See the guidance
on how to make

this judgement.

Actions

Timescale and
who is

responsible?

Disability

According to the 2011
Census, 10.0% of
Torbay residents
reported having a
long-term health
problem or disability
that limits their day-
to-day activities a lot
and has lasted, or is
expected to last, at
least 12  months
(including  problems
related to old age).
This was the second
highest in the South
West region.
According to the 2011
Census, 41.7% of
Torbay residents
reported their general
health as ‘very good’
placing Torbay lower
down the Local
Authority  rankings,
however Torbay does
rank very high for
those rating their
health as only ‘Fair.
Both Bad health
(5.8%) and Very bad
health (1.7%) have

higher percentages in

The provision of
adequate
pharmaceutical
services
responds to these
statistics  (which
potentially show a
relatively high
demined  when
compared to
national
averages). The

aim of the

document is to
enable the
provision of

adequate and
appropriate
pharmaceutical
services to meet
the needs of this

population.

The document aims
to meet the needs
identified. The
document will be
reviewed in three
years’ time. It is
assumed provision
of pharmaceutical
services in
accordance with the
recommendations in
the report will result
in an equitable
distribution of

services.

NHSE.
Throughout the
life of the

document.

Page 95

87




STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact

Protected

Characteristics

(Equality Act)

Evidence and
information (e.g.
data and feedback)

Any adverse

impact?

See the guidance
on how to make

this judgement.

Actions

Timescale and
who is

responsible?

Torbay than in
England (England
4.2%, 1.2%
respectively), this
equates to 9,892
people over both

categories

Faith/Religion
Belief

or

According to the 2011
Census, Christianity
is the most common
religion in Torbay with
63.3%. 27.5% of the
Torbay population
stated they had no
religion. Both are
higher  than  the
national average.
Numbers for each of
the other main
categories are below
750 persons (0.5%)
each and range from
0.03% Sikh to 0.5%
Other Religion. Of the
0.5% of the
population who
reported Other
Religion; 177 people
reported they were
Pagan and 246

people were

Pharmaceutical
services are not
targeted at any
particular religion.
The aim of the
document is to
ensure the
provision of
adequate and
appropriate
pharmaceutical
services to meet
the needs of this

population.

The document aims
to meet the needs
identified. The
document will be
reviewed in three
years’ time. It is
assumed provision
of  pharmaceutical
services in
accordance with the
recommendations in

the report will result

n an equitable
distribution of

services.

NHSE.
Throughout the
life of the

document.

Page 96

88




STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact

Protected

Characteristics

(Equality Act)

Evidence and
information (e.g.
data and feedback)

Any adverse

impact?

See the guidance
on how to make

this judgement.

Actions

Timescale and
who is

responsible?

Spiritualist.

Gender - including

marriage,
pregnancy

maternity

and

Overall 51.5% of
Torbay’s population
are female (ONS mid-
2016 estimates).
According to the 2011
Census, of those
aged 16 and over,
46.6% are married —
the same as the
national average.
There were 1,462 live
births in 2012 with
numbers increasing
steadily and peaking
in 2011 at 1,499.
Going forward, local
estimates suggest the
number of births per
year for the coming 5
years to be in the
order of 1,400 per

year.

The need for
pharmacy
services in
relation to sexual
health have been
identified  within
the document.
This will ensure
provision of
adequate and
appropriate
pharmaceutical
services to meet
the needs of this

population.

The document aims
to meet the needs
identified. The
document will be
reviewed in three
years’ time. It is
assumed provision
of pharmaceutical
services in
accordance with the
recommendations in
the report will result
in an equitable
distribution of

services.

NHSE.
Throughout the
life of the

document.

Gender

Reassignment

In 2010 it was
estimated nationally

that the number of

The PNA aims to

ensure adequate

The document aims

to meet the needs

NHSE.
Throughout the

provision of | identified. The |life of the
gender variant people pharmaceutical [document will be|document.
presenting for services reviewed in three
89

Page 97




STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact

Protected Evidence and [Any adverse [Actions Timescale and
Characteristics information (e.g.|impact? who is
data and feedback) responsible?
(Equality Act) See the guidance
on how to make
this judgement.
treatment was around |throughout years’ time. It is
12,500. Of these,|Torbay taking into|assumed provision
around 7,500 have [consideration any|of pharmaceutical
undergone transition. | particular needs | services in
The median age for|identified. accordance with the
treatment for gender|Gender-related recommendations in
variation is 42 years.|pharmaceutical |the report will result
There is no precise|needs should|in an equitable
number of the trans|have been | distribution of
population in Torbay. [identified  within [services.
the document to
ensure provision
of adequate and
appropriate
pharmaceutical
services to meet
the needs of this
population.
Race There s relatively Pharmaceutical |The document aims|NHSE.
litle ethnic diversity in services are not|{to meet the needs|Throughout the
Torbay. According to targeted at alidentified. The |life of the
the 2011  Census specific ethnic |document will be [document.

94.8% of Torbay's
population considered
themselves White
British. This is
significantly higher
than the England
average (79.8%).
Torbay has 3,260
(2.5%) resident ethnic

minority  population

group. The PNA
attempts to
ensure provision
of adequate and
appropriate
pharmaceutical
services to meet
the needs of the

population.

reviewed in three
years’ time. It is
assumed provision
of pharmaceutical
services in
accordance with the
recommendations in
the report will result
in an equitable

distribution of

Page 98




STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact

Protected Evidence and [Any adverse [Actions Timescale and
Characteristics information (e.g.|impact? who is
data and feedback) responsible?
(Equality Act) See the guidance
on how to make
this judgement.
(excluding white services.

ethnic groups). Of
these, 1,420
residents (1.1%) are
Mixed/Multiple
ethnic  background,
1,353 (1%)
Asian/Asian British,
251 (0.2%) Black
British and 236
(0.2%) Other ethnic
Group.

There are some
diseases  which
are more
prevalent

amongst specific
ethnic groups
however the
PNA, if
successful,  will
ensure adequate
services to meet
any additional

needs.

Sexual Orientation

-including

Partnership

Civil

0.3% of the Torbay
population are
registered in a same-
sex civil partnership
(national average is
0.2%). 2.6% of
people in Torbay are
separated and still
either legally married
or legally in a same-
sex civil partnership.
There is also no
precise local data on
numbers of Lesbian,
Gay and Bi-sexual
(LGB) people in
Torbay but it is

nationally —estimated

Pharmaceutical
services are not
targeted people
with a specific
sexual
orientation. The
PNA  attempts
ensure provision
of adequate and
appropriate
pharmaceutical
services to meet
the needs of the

population.

The document aims
to meet the needs
identified. The
document will be
reviewed in three
years’ time. It is
assumed provision
of pharmaceutical
services in
accordance with the
recommendations in
the report will result
in an equitable
distribution of

services.

NHSE.
Throughout the
life of the

document.

Page 99

91




at 5.0% to 7.0%. This

would mean that

approximately 5,464
— 7,650 people aged
16 years and over in
Torbay are LGB.

92

Page 100



Appendix 5: List of contractors and opening times

Pharmacy name

Babbacombe Pharmacy,
Poolearth, 100 Reddenhill
Road, Babbacombe,
Torquay, TQ1 3NT

Boots pharmacy, Boots
UK Ltd, 11 Fore Street,
Brixham, TQ5 8AA

Boots pharmacy, Boots
UK Ltd, 6 Bolton St,
Brixham, TQ5 9DE

Boots pharmacy, Boots
UK Ltd, 12-14 Victoria
Street, Paignton, TQ4 5DN

Boots pharmacy, Boots
UK Ltd, 1 Cherrybrook
Square, Hookhills Road,
Paignton, TQ4 7LY

Boots pharmacy, Boots
UK Ltd, Wren Retail Park,
Torquay, TQ2 7BJ

Boots pharmacy, Boots
UK Ltd, 66-68 Union Street,
Torquay, TQ2 5PS

Boots pharmacy, Boots
UK Ltd, 9 The Strand,
Torquay, TQ1 2AA

Boots pharmacy, Boots
UK Ltd, 27 Fore Street, St
Marychurch, Torquay, TQ1
4PU

Boots pharmacy, Boots
UK Ltd, 8 Fore Street, St
Marychurch, Torquay, TQ1
4ANE

Broadway pharmacy,
Churston Broadway,
Dartmouth Road,
Paignton, TQ4 6LE

Day Lewis Pharmacy, Day
Lewis plc, Compass House
Medical Centre, King
Street, Brixham, TQ5 9TF

Day Lewis Pharmacy, Day
Lewis plc, 52 Fore Street,
Brixham, TQ5 8DZ

Day Lewis Pharmacy, Day
Lewis plc, 28 Walnut Road,

Monday

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1730

0830-1400
1430-1730

0830-1300
1400-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-2400

0900-1330
1400-1730

0900-1330
1400-1730
From 4/6/17
to 2/9/17
0900-1330
1400-1800

0900-1330
1400-1800

0830-1300
1330-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0900-1800

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1800

Tuesday

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1730

0830-1400
1430-1730

0830-1300
1400-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-2400

0900-1330
1400-1730

0900-1330
1400-1730
From 4/6/17
to 2/9/17
0900-1330
1400-1800

0900-1330
1400-1800

0830-1300
1330-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0900-1800

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1800

Wednesday

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1730

0830-1400
1430-1730

0830-1300
1400-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-2400

0900-1330
1400-1730

0900-1330
1400-1730
From 4/6/17
to 2/9/17
0900-1330
1400-1800

0900-1330
1400-1800

0830-1300
1330-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0900-1800

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1800

Thursday

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1730

0830-1400
1430-1730

0830-1300
1400-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-2400

0900-1330
1400-1730

0900-1330
1400-1730
From 4/6/17
to 2/9/17
0900-1330
1400-1800

0900-1330
1400-1800

0830-1300
1330-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0900-1800

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1800

Page 101

Friday

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1730

0830-1400
1430-1730

0830-1300
1400-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-2400

0900-1330
1400-1730

0900-1330
1400-1730
From 4/6/17
to 2/9/17
0900-1330
1400-1800

0900-1330
1400-1800

0830-1300
1330-1730

0900-1300
1330-1730

0900-1800

0900-1730

0900-1300
1400-1800

Saturday

0900-1700

0900-1300
1400-1730

0830-1400

0900-1300
1400-1730

0900-1300

0830-2400

0900-1300
1400-1730

0900-1330
1400-1730
From 4/6/17
to 2/9/17
0900-1330
1400-1800

0900-1300

0900-1300

0900-1300

Closed

0900-1300

Closed

Sunday

Closed

1000-1600
from 16/7/17
to 10/9/17

Closed

1000-1600

Closed

0930-2400

1030-1630

1030-1630
From 4/6/17
to 2/9/17
1030-1700

Closed

Closed

Closed

Closed

Closed

Closed

93



Chelston, TQ2 6HS

Day Lewis Pharmacy, Day

Lewis plc, 237 Torquay

Road, Preston, Paignton, 0900-1730 0900-1730 0900-1730 0900-1730 0900-1730 0900-1200 Closed
TQ3 2HW

Day Lewis Pharmacy, Day
Lewis plc, Units 2&3,
Pembroke House, 266-276 0830-1300 0830-1300 0830-1300 0830-1300 0830-1300

Torquay Road, Paignton, ~ 1400-1830  1400-1830  1400-1830  1400-1830  1400-1830  0030-1300 Closed
TQ3 2EZ

Day Lewis Pharmacy, Day

Lewis plc, 99 Foxhole 09001300  0900-1300  0900-1300  0900-1300  0900-1300 oo oo Closed

Road, Paignton, TQ3 3SU 1400-1800 1400-1800 1400-1800 1400-1800 1400-1800

Day Lewis Pharmacy, Day

Lewss plc, 19 lisham Road, 0 1300 0000-1300  0900-1300 09001300 0900-1300
gﬂ'SWOOd’Torq“ay' Tl 14001800  1400-1800  1400-1800  1400-1800  1400-1800  0900-1300  Closed

Day Lewis Pharmacy, Day

Lewis plc, Bronshill Road, 0900-1300 0900-1300 0900-1300 0900-1300 0900-1300 Closed Closed
Torquay, TQ1 3HD 1400-1800 1400-1800 1400-1800 1400-1800 1400-1800

Dowricks Chemist,

Chelston Hall, Old Mill

Road, Torquay, TQ2 6HW 0900-1730 0900-1730 0900-1730 0900-1730 0900-1730 0900-1300 Closed
Hele Pharmacy, 111 Hele

Road, Torquay, TQ2 7PS 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1800 Closed Closed

Lloyds Pharmacy, Lloyds

Pharmacy Ltd, 11 Palace

Avenue, Paignton, TQ3 0830-1830 0830-1830 0830-1830 0830-1830 0830-1830 0830-1730 Closed
3EF

Lloyds Pharmacy, Lloyds

Pharmacy Ltd,

Sainsbury's, Brixham 0700-2300 0700-2300 0700-2300 0700-2300 0700-2300 0700-2200 1000-1600
Road, Paignton, TQ4 7PE

Lloyds Pharmacy, Lloyds

Pharmacy Ltd, 168 Barton

Hill Road, Torquay, TQ2 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1730 Closed
8HN

Lloyds Pharmacy, Lloyds
Pharmacy Ltd,
Sainsbury's, The Willows,
Nicholson Road, Torquay,
TQ2 7THT

0830-2100 0830-2100 0830-2100 0830-2100 0830-2100 0830-2000 1000-1600

Mayfield Pharmacy,

Mayfield Medical Centre,

37 Totnes Road, Paignton, 08:00-20:00  08:00-20:00  08:00-20:00  08:00-20:00  08:00-20:00  09:00-18:00  10:00-16:00
TQ4 5LA

Sherwell Valley Pharmacy,
Poolearth, 37 Sherwell
Valley Road, Chelston,
Torquay, TQ2 6EJ

0900-1300 0900-1300 0900-1300 0900-1300 0900-1300

1330-1730  1330-1730  1330-1730  1330-1730  1330-1730 Closed Closed

Shiphay Pharmacy,
Poolearth, 11 Collaton 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1800 0900-1300 Closed
Road, Shiphay, Torquay,

94

Page 102



TQ2 7HH

Torwood Street Pharmacy,
37a Torwood Street,
Torquay, TQ1 1ED

Watcombe Pharmacy,
Poolearth, 69 Fore Street,
Watcombe, Torquay, TQ2
8BP

Well pharmacy, Bestway
National Chemists Ltd, 9
New Road, Brixham, TQ5
8LZ

Well pharmacy, Bestway
National Chemists Ltd, 2-3
Churchill Court, Bolton
Street, Brixham, TQ5 9DW

Well pharmacy, Bestway
National Chemists Ltd46B
Dartmouth
RoadPaigntonTQ4 5AQ

Well pharmacy, Bestway
National Chemists Ltd, 1-5
Palace Avenue, Paignton,
TQ3 3EF

Well pharmacy, Bestway
National Chemists Ltd19
Croft RoadTorquayTQ2
5UA

Well pharmacy, Bestway
National Chemists Ltd, 159
St Marychurch Road,
Babbacombe, Torquay,
TQ1 3HP

Superdrug Pharmacy,
Superdrug Stores Plc, 83-
85 Union Street, Torquay,
TQ1 3DG

0900-1700

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-1800

0800-1800

0830-2000

0900-1730

0830-1800

0900-1800

0830-1730

0900-1700

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-1800

0800-1800

0830-1800

0900-1730

0830-1800

0900-1800

0830-1730

0900-1700

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-1800

0800-1800

0830-1800

0900-1730

0830-1800

0900-1800

0830-1730

0900-1700

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-1800

0800-1800

0830-1800

0900-1730

0830-1800

0900-1800

0830-1730

Page 103

0900-1700

0900-1300
1330-1730

0830-1800

0800-1800

0830-1800

0900-1730

0830-1800

0900-1800

0830-1730

Closed

Closed

0900-1300

0900-1300

0900-1130

0900-1700

0900-1300

0900-1300

0900-1730

Closed

Closed

Closed

Closed

Closed

Closed

Closed

Closed

None

95



Appendix 6: List of contractors and advanced, enhanced
and locally-commissioned services provided

Pharmacy

Contractor and address

Appliances
requiring
measuring
and fitting

Medicines
Use Reviews

New
Medicines
Service

Appliance
Use Reviews

Stoma
Appliance
Customisati
ons

Flu
Vaccinations

FK340

Bestway National
Chemists Ltd, 9 New
Road, Brixham, TQ5
8LZ

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FJIP75

Bestway National
Chemists Ltd, 2-3
Churchill Court,
Bolton Street,
Brixham, TQ5 9DW

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FAO41

Bestway National
Chemists Ltd, 1-5
Palace Avenue,
Paignton, TQ3 3EF

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FPA99

Bestway National
Chemists Ltd, 46B
Dartmouth Road,
Paignton, TQ4 5AQ

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FKF90

Bestway National
Chemists Ltd, 159 St
Marychurch Road,
Babbacombe,
Torquay, TQ1 3HP

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FMJ40

Bestway National
Chemists Ltd, 19
Croft Road, Torquay,
TQ2 5UA

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FD894

Boots UK Ltd, 11
Fore Street, Brixham,
TQ5 8AA

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FD839

Boots UK Ltd, 6
Bolton St, Brixham,
TQ5 9DE

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FVPO1

Boots UK Ltd, 12-14
Victoria Street,
Paignton, TQ4 5DN

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FEW47

Boots UK Ltd, 1
Cherrybrook Square,
Hookhills Road,
Paignton, TQ4 7LY

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FJo01

Boots UK Ltd, 9 The
Strand, Torquay,
TQ1 2AA

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FLH76

Boots UK Ltd, 8 Fore
Street, St
Marychurch,
Torquay, TQ1 4NE

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FX241

Boots UK Ltd, 27
Fore Street, St
Marychurch,
Torquay, TQ1 4PU

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

Page 104

96




FIN75

Boots UK Ltd, 66-68
Union Street,
Torquay, TQ2 5PS

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FEW75

Boots UK Ltd, Wren
Retail Park, Torquay,
TQ2 7BJ

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FKQ69

Broadway pharmacy,
Churston Broadway,
Dartmouth Road,
Paignton, TQ4 6LE

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FKEOS

Day Lewis plc, 52
Fore Street, Brixham,
TQ5 8Dz

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FWC17

Day Lewis plc,
Compass House
Medical Centre, King
Street, Brixham, TQ5
9TF

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FAF97

Day Lewis plc, 28
Walnut Road,
Chelston, TQ2 6HS

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FELG62

Day Lewis plc, Units
2&3, Pembroke
House, 266-276
Torquay Road,
Paignton, TQ3 2EZ

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FTX29

Day Lewis plc, 237
Torquay Road,
Preston, Paignton,
TQ3 2HW

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FLE57

Day Lewis plc, 99
Foxhole Road,
Paignton, TQ3 3SU

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FEW76

Day Lewis plc, 19
llsham Road,
Wellswood, Torquay,
TQ1 2JG

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FEC86

Day Lewis plc,
Bronshill road,
Southover, Torquay,
TQ1 3HD

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FXL17

Dowricks Chemist,
Chelston Hall, Old

Mill Road, Torquay,
TQ2 6HW

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

FLG36

Hele Pharmacy, 111
Hele Road, Torquay,
TQ2 7PS

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FROO7

Lloyds Pharmacy Ltd,
11 Palace Avenue,
Paignton, TQ3 3EF

No

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

FHL28

Lloyds Pharmacy Ltd,
Sainsbury's, Brixham
Road, Paignton, TQ4
7PE

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FM400

Lloyds Pharmacy Ltd,
Sainsbury's, The
Willows, Nicholson
Road, Torquay, TQ2
THT

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

Page 105

97




FPHG68

Lloyds Pharmacy Ltd,
168 Barton Hill Road,
Torquay, TQ2 8HN

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

FTX34

Mayfield Pharmacy,
Mayfield Medical
Centre, 37 Totnes
Road, Paignton, TQ4
5LA

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FJP38

Poolearth, 100
Reddenhill Road,
Babbacombe,
Torquay, TQ1 3NT

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

FV361

Poolearth, 37
Sherwell Valley
Road, Chelston,
Torquay, TQ2 6EJ

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

FLD28

Poolearth, 11
Collaton Road,
Shiphay, Torquay,
TQ2 7HH

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

FJE51

Poolearth, 69 Fore
Street, Watcombe,
Torquay, TQ2 8BP

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

FM565

Superdrug Stores
Plc, 83-85 Union
Street, Torquay, TQ1
3 DG

No

Yes

No

No

No

Yes

FJ134

Torwood Street
Pharmacy, 37a
Torwood Street,
Torquay, TQ1 1ED

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

Page 106

98




Appendix 7: Consultation report
The consultation period ran from Monday 4th December 2017 to Friday 2nd

February 2018. The Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBSs) for Plymouth, Devon and
Torbay held the consultation process for each of their PNAs at the same time to aid
organisations who were asked to respond to consultations for more than one area

at the same time.

The method of consultation was agreed by the PNA Steering Group. Individual
areas also liaised with their Health and Wellbeing Boards regarding the consultation
process. The consultation was hosted on the Torbay Consultation
webpage. The survey questions were designed to gather feedback on whether the
requirement of the PNA had been met and to offer opportunity to highlight any
gaps. The web link for the consultation was emailed directly to the following

organisations:

e Devon Local Pharmaceutical Committee

e Devon Local Medical Committee

e Persons on the pharmaceutical list and any dispensing doctors for the area

e Any LPS chemist in Torbay with whom NHS England has made
arrangements for the provision of local pharmaceutical services

e Healthwatch Devon

e NHS England Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly Area Team

e Devon Health and Wellbeing Board

¢ Plymouth Health and Wellbeing Board

e Torbay Health and Wellbeing Board

e Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust

e Northern Devon Healthcare Trust

e Devon Partnership NHS Trust

There were 3 responses to the online consultation received for Torbay.

These responses represented:

e Pharmacists (1 response)
e The Clinical and Effectiveness and Medicines Optimisations Team for NHS
South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group (1 response)

Page 107



e The Devon Local Pharmaceutical Committee (1 response)

Overall consultation feedback regarding the PNA was very positive. A small
number of minor corrections to accuracy of data were identified and these have
been corrected including correcting a pharmacy identified as providing the

Pharmacy Access Scheme.

The main areas or themes that received comments are summarised briefly below.

Opening hours

Opening hours of pharmacies in all districts for each day of the week were outlined
in the main document including maps of provision at weekends. With regard to back
holidays, pharmacies and DAC are not required to open on public and bank
holidays, although some do choose to. NHS England asks each contractor to
confirm their intentions regarding these days and where there necessary will direct
a contractor or contractors to open on one or more of these dates to ensure

adequate access.

Ability of pharmaceutical services to support primary care moving towards 8am-8pm
availability was considered. The direction of travel for primary care, as set out in the
GP Forward View, is for GP services to become available from 8am to 8pm, and for
pharmacies to become the first point of contact with health services for some health
issues. It is anticipated that pharmacies’ business interests will lead them to adapt
their provision of pharmaceutical services to these changes, although innovative
approaches in contractual arrangement may be needed in some locations to

support these changes.

Changes to QPS and Healthy Living pharmacy scheme

The Quality Payment Scheme and Healthy Living Pharmacy scheme are both
optional schemes, with pharmacies able to opt in and out and not deemed a
necessary pharmacy service. Therefore, any changes will not impact on gaps of
provision within the current PNA.

Maps of urgent care and other services
Maps of pharmacies were provided to meet the statutory requirements of the PNA.

Mapping of availability on different days of the week and the coverage provideﬂ) by

Page 108



dispensing practices is also included to enable gaps to be recognised. Mapping of
other services such as urgent care centres was not included due to the fluidity of
such services over the lifetime of the PNA.

10

Page 109



Agenda Iltem 8

DEVELOPING THE JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY AND THE WORK

PROGRAMME OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

BRIEFING NOTE TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

1. JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment sets out the needs of the population of Torbay against the range of the
determinants of health and wellbeing. The Assessment paints of picture where, despite a vibrant tourism
industry and an environment that attracts many to make this their home, there are also many areas and many
of its people who lead challenging lives.

Relatively high levels of deprivation, a low wage economy, poor levels of qualification and issues with poor
housing have resulted in some children growing up in relative poverty where inequalities are evident within
the educational and health indicators. This in term leads to disparities in lifestyle choices, in illness and
disability and ultimately in health and care needs and costs.

The stark fact is that a female living in the most deprived area of Torbay will live, on average 8.9 years less and
a male 5.2 years less than a person in the least deprived area.

The JSNA findings can be summarised as:

» The population of Torbay is ageing more than other areas of the country and it is expected that the
over 85 population will double over next twenty years

» Levels of deprivation are increasing with 45% living in an area in the top 20% most deprived in
England for indoor environment quality

» Torbay is the most deprived local authority in the South West and inequalities have been widening as
relative deprivation worsens

» There are relatively high levels of residents with low qualifications, low earnings and who are benefit
claimants

» House prices are, on average, £40,000 less than England average but to buy them costs nearly 7 times
the average salary.

» Housing conditions are an area of concern with higher percentage of private rented; significantly
lower social rented.

» Homelessness and insecurity of tenure are rising: 24 people were street homeless at the last count
» Violent crime rate significantly higher than England.
» Anti-social behaviour is significantly higher (than England and CIPFA group)

For children:

» Thereis good early years educational achievement against national standard, but a gap is emerging
between poorer and better off students especially at secondary school.

» 1lin4children live in poverty and there are issues of debt and food insecurity

Page 110



>

>

There are issues with how families live their lives with almost 1 in 5 mothers smoking during
pregnancy, low numbers breastfeeding and 1 in 3 children overweight by age 11

The rate of Children Looked After is also high

For adolescents:

» There are lifestyle issues with significantly worse rates of specific admissions for alcohol and higher
prevalence of smoking
» There are significantly higher numbers of admissions for self-harm
» There are social / behavioural issues with high numbers of young people claiming benefits and high
rates of first time entrants to Youth Justice System
For adults:
» There are lifestyle/Behavioural challenges
—  Smoking rates remain higher -17% of over 16’s smoking compared to 15%
—  Physically active rate of 66%, similar to national rate of 65%
— Hospital admissions rates for alcohol specific conditions 79% higher than England
— Those classified as overweight or obese is 61%, this is the same as England
» There is high prevalence of a range of chronic conditions (Diabetes, Depression, Hypertension, CVD,

COPD). This has led to high levels of preventable admissions

For older adults:

>

>

Many people chose to retire to Torbay and most live full and happy lives.

However, the numbers with co-morbidities (more than one health condition) is expected to rise by a
third in the next ten years

Frailty and dementia is also estimated to rise
Age-related dependency and unpaid carer levels are significantly higher than nationally

Rates of long-term support needs are significantly higher than England

SYSTEM PRIORITIES

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment would indicate the priorities for Torbay Council and its partners to

address — as a system — are:

1.

vk wnN

Working together, at scale, to promote good health and wellbeing and prevent iliness and
interventions from statutory agencies

Enable children to have the best start in life and address the inequalities in their outcomes
Build emotional resilience in young people

Create places where people can live healthy and happy lives

Support those who are vulnerable and living complex lives, addressing the factors that result in
vulnerability

Page 111



6. Enable people to age well
7. Promote good mental health

Question: Does the Board agree that these are appropriate priorities for the health and
wellbeing system, as a whole, in Torbay?

3. PARTNERSHIP PLANS, STRATEGIES AND PRIORITIES

Torbay has a long history of partnership working with a range of partnership bodies in place with their own
“strategic” plans.

These plans address the system priorities set out above with the diagram on the following page showing the
strategies and plans with their current priorities.

|II

Underneath these sit a range of “tactical” policies including:

e  Prevention Strategy

e Healthy Torbay Framework

e Mental Health Strategy

e Devon-wide Emotional Health and Wellbeing Transformation Plan
e Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy

e Housing Strategy

e Annual Strategic Agreement between the Council, CCG and ICO

4. WAYS OF WORKING
Health and Wellbeing Boards were established to:

e Agree the long-term strategy for improving the health and wellbeing of the people of Torbay.

e Oversee the implementation of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

e Promote integration throughout the health and wellbeing system to ensure delivery against the
Board’s priorities.

However, the integration of health and social care in Torbay was well established before the requirement to
appoint Health and Wellbeing Boards. Similarly, and as referenced in the previous section, many other
partnerships have been in place in Torbay for a number of years.

Whilst further work is needed, and, indeed, is in place, to further integrate and improve outcomes for our local
population, it has been difficult to find a role of the Health and Wellbeing Board in Torbay that adds value to
the systems already in place.

A workshop facilitated by the Local Government Association was held on 27 February 2018 to discuss these
issues. It was recognised that, given the system priorities cover many areas and that these are being
addressed by a number of established organisations and partnership arrangements, that the Board needed
assurance that issues were being addressed. It also needed to identify areas where it could add value.

A suggested solution in order to organise the work of the Health and Wellbeing Board was to identify:

e |Issues to Watch —these are areas where the Board is interested but only needs a watching brief on
delivery, probably though oversight of key outcomes (i.e. the Board will trust that other organisations
and/or partnerships are delivering the system priorities)

Page 112



Issues to Sponsor — these are areas that the Board will actively promote delivery of but leaves others
to do this delivery, seeking only assurance of outputs and outcomes from this work (i.e. the Board
may need to encourage integration and partnership working to deliver the system priorities).

Areas of Focus — these are areas where the Board will need to have some more direct involvement
and debate and assure itself of some of the detail of delivery (i.e. the Board will be seeking a
commitment to action from its partner members).

Page 113



vy TT abed

Children and
Young People's
Plan

Children get the best
start in life

The impact on children
and families from key
risks is reduced

Education outcomes for
all children and young
people are improved

Young people are
healthy, make positive
choices and influence

their own future

Partnership Plans, Strategies and Priorities

Torbay
Safeguarding
Children Board
Business Plan

Promote the welfare of
children and young
people who are
vulnerable to abuse

Respond to new
legislation and joint
inspection criteria to
ensure the Board fulfills
its statutory duties

Torbay Adult

Community Sustainability
Safety Your Future - and Safeguarding
Partnership Your Torbay Transformation  Board Business
Plan Plan Plan

Prevention and early
intervention

A strong confident
orbay, with unified
political, business and
community leadership

Domestic abuse and
sexual violence

Asset based
interventions for
safeguarding in the

Alcohol and the night community

time economy Integrated care model

A great place to do
business and where
companies grow and

succeed .
Primary care

Re-offending
Mental health and

vulnerability

Cyber crime
Mental health and

A great place for
learning disabilities

everyone to thrive

Child sexual exploitation
. Domestic violence and
Acute' h'ospltal'and N
specialist services

A premier tourist resort
for the 21st Century

Modern slavery

Productivity
Hate crime

A vibrant and support Best use of resources
commuity and voluntar f
Prevent - Counter Zector v Children anld young
people

terrorism

Ageing Well
Programme

Strengthen the voice of
older people

Develop a Positive
Ageing Vision for Torbay



Page 115



5. IDENTIFYING AREAS OF FOCUS

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to consider the partnership plans, strategies and priorities in order to
assess:

Questions: How does this suite of plans address the system priorities?
What are the duplications?
What are the gaps?

Should the duplications and gaps form the areas of focus for the Health and Wellbeing
Board?

Which are the issues to watch and sponsor?

The table on the next page provides an initial analysis of how the priorities from each plan fit

against the system priorities and suggests areas to watch and sponsor and for focus.

Page 116



/TT abed

System Priorities

1. Working together, at scale, to promote good
health and wellbeing and prevent illness and
interventions from statutory agencies

Priorities from partnership plans and strategies

Young people are healthy, make positive choices and
influence their own future (Children and Young
People’s Plan)

Prevention and early intervention (STP)

Integrated care model (STP)

Primary care (STP)

A vibrant and supported community and voluntary
sector (Your Future — Your Torbay)

Gaps and
Duplication

Watch/Sponsor/Focus

Development of Local
Care Partnership —
Watch
Implementation of
Prevention Strategy —
Sponsor

2. Enable children to have the best start in life Children get the best start in life (Children and Young | Is there a partnership | Addressing inequalities
and address the inequalities in their People’s Plan) arrangement ensuring | in children’s outcomes —
outcomes Education outcomes for all children and young people | that these priorities Focus

are improved (Children and Young People’s Plan) are aligned and work
Promote the welfare of children and young people joined up?

who are vulnerable to abuse (TSCB Business Plan) Potential Gap

Child sexual exploitation (Community Safety Plan)

Children and young people (STP)

Adverse Childhood Experience (JSNA)

3. Build emotional resilience in young people Emotional Health and Wellbeing Transformation Plan Implementation of the
Young people are healthy, make positive choices and Emotional Health and
influence their own future (Children and Young Wellbeing
People’s Plan) Transformation Plan —

Sponsor

4, Create places where people can live healthy | Alcohol and the night time economy (Community Implementation of

and happy lives Safety Plan) Healthy Torbay —
Cyber crime (Community Safety Plan) Sponsor

Hate crime (Community Safety Plan)

Prevent — Counter terrorism (Community Safety Plan)
A great place to do business and where companies
grow and success (Your Future — Your Torbay)

A great place for everyone to thrive (Your Future —
Your Torbay)




gTT abed

A premier tourist resort for the 21 Century (Your
Future — Your Torbay)
My Home, My life Housing Strategy

Support those who are vulnerable and living
complex lives, addressing the factors that
result in vulnerability

The impact on children and families from key risks is
reduced (Children and Young People’s Plan)
Domestic abuse and sexual violence (Community
Safety Plan)

Re-offending (Community Safety Plan)

Modern slavery (Community Safety Plan)

Mental health and learning disabilities (STP)
Domestic violence and abuse (TASB Business Plan)
A vibrant and supported community and voluntary
sector (Your Future — Your Torbay)

Domestic abuse =
Duplication across at
least three plans

No coherent strategy
to address adults with
multiple complex
needs ie 1 or more of
homelessness,
offending, poor
mental health, Drug
and alcohol abuse,
domestic abuse /
sexual violence

Implementation of the
Domestic Abuse and
Sexual Violence Strategy
— Focus

Development of a
strategy to tackle the
challenges faced by
those with multiple
complex needs — Focus

Enable people to age well

Acute hospital and specialist services (STP)

Asset based interventions for safeguarding in the
community (TASB Business Plan)

Strengthen the voice of older people (Ageing Well)
Develop a positive ageing vision for Torbay (Ageing
Well)

A vibrant and supported community and voluntary
sector (Your Future — Your Torbay)

Impact of the Ageing
Well Programme —
Watch

Promote good mental health

Mental health and learning disabilities (STP)
Mental health and vulnerability (TASB Business Plan)

Implementation of the
Mental Health Strategy -
Sponsor




6TT abed

Sponsor Watch

eImplementation of Prevention eDevelopment of Local Care
Strategy Partnership

eAddressing inequalities in eImpact of the Ageing Well
children's outcomes Programme

eImplementation of Healthy
Torbay

eImplementation of the Mental
Health Strategy

eImplementation of the Emotional
Health and Wellbeing
Transformation Plan

Focus

eAddressing inequalities in outcomes for children

eImplementation of the Domestic Abuse and Sexual
Violence Strategy

eDevelopment of a strategy to tackle the challenges
faced by those with multiple complex needs




6. WORK PROGRAMME

It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Work Programme be developed around the
following principles:

e Areas to watch — Performance monitoring reports to be presented twice a year

e  Areas to sponsor — Highlight reports to be presented twice a year with lead organisations being asked
to identify any blockages within the system. This will enable the Board to discuss potential solutions
building on its role to promote integration across the system.

e Areas of focus — Each partner organisation to identify specific issues of concern for inclusion within
the Action Plan of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. These issues will then form the basis of
meetings of the Board, enabling proactive debate, leading to solutions owned by the system.

Question: Are these acceptable principles with which to develop both the Action Plan of
the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Work Programme of the Health and
Wellbeing Board?

7. MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD
The membership of the Board currently comprises:

e Chair — Executive Lead for Health and Wellbeing

e  Four additional councillors (cross party)

e  Torbay Council — Director of Children Service’s

e Torbay Council — Director of Adult Social Care

e  Torbay Council — Director of Public Health

e  South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group
e NHSEngland

o Healthwatch Torbay

Non-voting co-opted members:

e South Devon Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

o Devon Partnership NHS Trust

e Community Development Trust

e Devon and Cornwall Police and Crime commissioner

e  Arepresentative of the primary care sector be appointed (if feasible)
e  Arepresentative from Torbay schools

Nominations to fill these latter two co-options have not yet been received.

It is recommended that the membership of the Board be expanded to include the chairman of the following
partnerships/boards:

e Safer Communities Torbay

e Torbay Safeguarding Children Board
e Torbay Safeguarding Adults Board

e Torbay Together

Page 120



Questions: Is it agreed that the membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board should be
extended as recommended?

Page 121



Agenda Item 9

Improving the health, care and wellbeing of
the people of South Devon and Torbay through
a Local Care Partnership

A discussion document

This paper has been developed to create the opportunity for discussion and
contribution from local partners and stakeholders as we work together on
strengthening our partnership on the next step in our health and care
integration journey.

The development of a Local Care Partnership for South Devon and Torbay is set
within the context of an emerging Devon Integrated Care System (ICS). An ICS is
not the creation of a new organisation, but rather a strengthening of partnership
working with health and care organisations working more closely together than ever
before to the benefit of our population.

The Devon ICS will include a single integrated strategic commissioner; a number of
local place-based care partnerships — including one for South Devon and Torbay; a
mental health care partnership and shared NHS corporate services.

The NHS Constitution and Local Authority Constitution will remain at the heart at
everything we do, meaning anyone can receive high-quality NHS care, free at the
point of access, whenever they need it. People will still see a GP when they need it
and there will still be hospital care. Social care will continue to operate as it does
now but integration will mean services are increasingly organised around the needs
of individuals and not organisational boundaries.

There is no change to legislation, statute or constitutions. The role of the Health and
Wellbeing Boards will remain and options on governance of these strengthened
integrated arrangements will need to be explored. Similarly, the role of scrutiny
committees will remain a key function so it is important that Scrutiny members are
involved in the planning for these integrated arrangements. Overview and Scrutiny
committees are invited to include Integrated Care System and Local Care
Partnership governance in their work programmes.

1 Context
1.1 National Policy Direction

National policy direction for health and social care is very clear - the pursuit of
greater integration of health and social care to help frail and older people stay
healthy and independent, avoiding hospital stays where possible.

NHS Vision: To improve prevention and care for patients, as well as to place the
NHS on a more sustainable footing, the NHS Five Year Forward View (5YFV) called
for better integration of GP, community health, mental health and hospital services,
as well as more joined up working with home care and care homes. Current
government policy as reflected in “Next steps on the 5YFV” describes an ambition to
accelerate integration through system level sustainability and transformation
partnerships (STPs). Working together with patients and the public, NHS

Page 122



commissioners and providers, as well as local authorities and other providers of
health and care services, STPs will plan how best to provide care, including
improving the health and wellbeing of the population they cover.

Adult social care vision: In 2016 the Local Government Association, the
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services, the NHS Confederation of
Providers and NHS Clinical Commissioners published a vision for the integration of
adult social care (Stepping Up to the Place) and made a shared commitment,
focussing on:

Local systems to embed integration as ‘business as usual’

A collective approach to achieving integration by 2020

Consensus and action on the barriers to making integration happen
Dialogue with national policy makers on ensuring integration is effective
Ongoing testing and evaluation to develop the evidence base

1.2 Local Devon Context

Within this national context, Devon has been developing its integrated working and
there is much in place already. Since December 2016, partners in the health and
care system (via the Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) across
Devon have been working with a shared purpose to create a sustainable health and
care system that will improve the health, wellbeing and care of the population.

Health and care partners across Devon are now working together around a common
set of objectives and outcomes:

Outcomes for People

More people living independently in resilient communities.
More people choosing to live healthy lifestyles and fewer
people become unwell.

People have the knowledge, skills and confidence to better

Enhancing self-
care and
community
resilience

Integrating and
improving out of
hospital care

Delivering
modern, safe
and sustainable
services

manage their health conditions.

The health and care systems is equipped to intervene early
and rapidly to avert deterioration and escalation of problems.
More care is available in the community and fewer people
need to visit or be admitted to hospital.

People have greater control over health services and will be
equal partners in decisions about their care.

People who need treatment will be treated effectively and
quickly in the most appropriate care setting.

People go into hospital when necessary and will be discharged
efficiently and safely with the right support in their
community.

To support the most effective delivery of health and care and achieve the outcomes
of improving quality, lowering costs and enriching user experience through stronger
care integration, partners in Devon are planning to further develop partnership
working across health and care through the establishment of an Integrated Care
System (ICS).

Page 123



In an ICS commissioners and NHS providers, working closely with GP networks,
local authorities and other partners, agree to take shared responsibility (in ways that
are consistent with their individual legal obligations) for how they operate their
collective resources for the benefit of local populations. This goes alongside the
statutory duty of local authorities to co-operate with NHS partners. Collaboration and
partnership are key features and components of an ICS approach.

The NHS planning guidance 2018/19 is also clear that public engagement is
essential and as systems make shifts towards more integrated care, they are
expected to involve and engage with patients and the public, their democratic
representatives and other community partners.

An ICS is not an Accountable Care Organisation (ACO) which has been subject to
national consideration and debate including judicial challenge over any future
contractual arrangement. The ICS is not about changing organisational
accountability or privatisation of NHS or council services. Local authorities will
remain responsible for their existing statutory obligations. NHS statutory obligations
also remain unchanged.

The approach has potential to:

e greatly enhance how health and social care services are commissioned and
delivered to those living in our communities.

e result in services that are far more joined up, less confusing and better
coordinated especially for primary, secondary and social care.

e oversee — but not control - the use of the annual healthcare budget (£1.5
billion) and social care budget (£227 million) across Devon.

e It will also reduce the administration involved in managing these services.

The development of an ICS in Devon mirrors the approach being taken nationally by:

e creating more robust cross-organisational arrangements to tackle the
systemic challenges facing the NHS and social care;

e supporting population health approaches that facilitate the integration of
services focused on populations that are at risk of developing acute illness
and hospitalisation;

e delivering more care through re-designed community-based and home-based
services, including in partnership with social care, the voluntary and
community sector; and

e allowing systems to take collective responsibility for financial and operational
performance and health outcomes.

Agreement has been reached across the Devon STP partners to the following:

i) A single strategic health and adult social care commissioner for the
county;

Devon’s ambition is to have a single strategic commissioner for health and
social care, primary care and specialised commissioning. The three health
commissioners (two CCGs and NHSE) and three local authorities (Devon
County Council, Plymouth City Council and Torbay Council) are developing
plans for this. The first step will see the county’s two Clinical Commissioning

Page 124



Groups — NEW Devon CCG, and South Devon and Torbay CCG — working
together to:

» Manage the overall annual NHS budget of £1.5 billion.

» Set strategic direction for the healthcare services

» Co-commission services

> Develop plans for the future — including possible moves to take on
more specialised commissioning services and primary care services
from NHS England.

» Work more jointly with Local Authority Partners — where this is in the

best interests of population health and well-being.

NEW Devon CCG and South Devon and Torbay CCG have been aligning
their resources and executive teams to ensure that local health
commissioning is more streamlined and in a good position to become more
integrated with both local authorities and health commissioning currently
being undertaken at regional level (primary care and specialised
commissioning by NHSE). Consultation on a single CCG executive structure
is currently underway and due to be concluded at the end of February 2018
with implementation as soon as possible thereafter.

To support the development of integrated commissioning at strategic
commissioner level, joint arrangements with all 3 local authorities are being
explored, and local authority interfaces at Local Care Partnerships level will
need to be agreed.

A Mental Health Care Partnership for the county;

Mental health services will be placed on an equal footing as physical health
and ensure that specialist mental health services become more integrated
within primary and secondary care. To support this, commissioners and
providers for mental health will be working in a more joined up way with each
other and with the place based local care partnerships.

iii) 4 place-based Local Care Partnerships

1.3

These place-based partnerships will look at how budgets, services and
resources are planned and used for specific local populations across Devon -
one each for North, East, South Devon & Torbay and West, based on primary
care GP practice populations.. Prospective local care partnerships have been
asked to start working on proposals using a discussion document shared with
partners at the STP Organisation Design Programme Board.

Sharing of NHS corporate services
This will see key NHS corporate services (such as IT, finance and HR)

working as a shared service across Devon so that there is greater
cooperation, less duplication and greater efficiencies

South Devon and Torbay journey

Health and care partners across the South Devon and Torbay system are
recognised for the strength of partnership working culminating in the agreement to

Page 125



pool resources and services to establish one of England’s first truly integrated care
organisations (ICO).

Through the establishment of the ICO, partners have successfully brought together
adult social care (Torbay Council), community care and acute care into a single
provider organisation to deliver a new model of integrated care.

Phase one of our care model — which has “home first” as the defining feature —is
demonstrating tangible benefits and is being further refined as partners look to
optimise benefits for individuals. In creating the ICO, partners also entered into an
enabling financial Risk Share Agreement (RSA) to share and underpin financial risk.
This has been further refined in light of lived experience with partners signing up to a
further 3 years to 2021.

Whilst we have made progress, partners recognise there are further integration
opportunities to improve the health, care and wellbeing of the population of South
Devon and Torbay. This is based on a shared belief that service integration
supported by a population-based capitation budget will better meet the needs of
individuals and is the best way to meet the growing demand for services from the
population we support, within the resources available.

There is a genuine commitment to strengthen how we work together to better
support individuals. This is underpinned by a collective commitment to prioritise the
needs of individuals and the system over the needs of individual organisations,
based on a shared understanding and analysis of local challenges.

There is a general consensus that the best way to build on our achievements over
the next period is to establish a Local Care Partnership. Through this partnership
system partners would be in a position to deliver more than current arrangements
allow by moving to a population-based capitated budget; adopting a stronger risk-
enabling approach; and putting the good of the system above individual
organisations

This aligns with the wider system ambition of the Devon Sustainability and
Transformation Partnership (STP) where all partners have agreed to aplan to pursue
an Integrated Care System for Devon. This also aligns with national policy to support
devolved health and care systems to meet the triple aim of improving health equity,
closing the financial gap, and reducing unwarranted variation in quality.

2 Why a Local Care Partnership?

Whilst we have made good progress — the South Devon and Torbay system is
considered to be further ahead on care model integration and pooled resources than
many other parts of the country - partners recognise the opportunity to go further in
achieving our integration aspirations.

Having united around implementing a shared vision of integrated community-based
health and social care, senior health and care leaders have been considering what
the logical next step should be in our integration journey, given the following drivers
and national direction of travel:

e we are particularly affected by the growing national challenge of a rising
elderly population — the population is older on average than the rest of the

Page 126



country - and the corresponding increase in demand for services related to
frailty;

e challenge over sustainability of some services as a result of workforce
pressures across a range of services in all sectors including in primary care;

e infrastructure in some sectors not fit for purpose and requires access to
significant capital funding to bring up to standard;

e the vulnerability of the care home and domiciliary care sector, and the
pressures on social care and public health funding;

e NHS commissioners and providers are under great financial pressure
because of centrally-driven austerity measures and national funding allocation
changes;

e the “doing nothing” option will result in a £142m deficit across South Devon
and Torbay health and care system within 5 years (which contributes to a
£572m deficit across the Wider Devon STP footprint)- this is the health gap
only and does not include Devon social care deficit or public health.

e desire to maintain autonomy for our system

e national direction of travel with new care model sites implementing Integrated
Care System models and STPs (including Wider Devon) indicating intention
to pursue as part of their 5 year plans.

The scale of the current challenge facing health and social care is greater than any
faced previously and requires us to take full advantage of further opportunities to
redesign services and adopt working arrangements that better enable those
improvements.

We need to achieve a gear shift and adopt a population-based approach with all
incentives aligned to this. This includes:

e increasing involvement and engagement of individuals in the design, delivery
and improvement of services — ‘what’s important to me’ discussions focused
on empowerment and choice

e proactive management of population groups to inform early intervention and
prevention

e enhancing the range of services on offer

e accelerating the implementation of electronic care records and the use of
predictive tools to identify individuals who have higher than average health
and social care costs.

e making outcomes-based contracts a reality with budgets that cover the health
care needs of a defined population and pooling more resources eg public
health, primary care, housing, vol sector

e community health and social care teams can move at pace and realise the full
benefits of integration on the ground.

e integrated commissioning to facilitate the development of integrated models of
care

To enable the above we need to deliver more transformational change, and embrace
system not silo leadership. The best vehicle now available to achieve these
ambitions is through a Local Care Partnership.

Page 127



3 The additional outcomes we will achieve through a Local Care
Partnership

Setting a clear framework for what we want to achieve together as a Local Care
Partnership is important to help set the tone of future collaboration, the breadth of
our collective ambition and the depth of our joint working relationships so that we can
deliver better system outcomes.

We have begun to develop a framework that describes what chapter 2 of the care
model looks like. This has evolved from a framework representing the strategic
changes for the ICO into a system wide framework that represents the strategic
transformation programmes of work across all areas and organisations that deliver
the agreed system outcomes. We are proposing that this framework becomes the
work plan of the Local Care Partnership and resources prioritised accordingly.

Highlights of the framework for the next chapter in our integration journey include;

= Prevention and Early Intervention: Plans and priorities will have a focus on
preventing ill health in order to reduce the longer term trajectory of demand.
This will support the tackling of place-based socio economic health
determinants.

= Asset Based Community Development: Empower communities to take active
roles in their health and wellbeing and build community resourcefulness.

= Develop greater integration with primary care: Recognising the critical
gateway that primary care offer collaboratively support primary care to be fit
for the future and to maximise placed based outcomes of care.

= Mental Health: Improve provision for people with severe, long term mental
illness and those who also have physical health problems.

= Acute hospital and specialist services: Ensure clinical sustainability of
services through the development of Devon-wide clinical pathways and
networks.

= Children and Young people: Ensure seamless support and access and
enhance effective collaboration between adult and children’s services.

In pursuing Local Care Partnership status, partners need to be clear on the
additional outcomes we will deliver that cannot be achieve through current
arrangements.

e strengthened public engagement and community led partnerships which
support activated communities that drive behaviour changes within society.

e developing a more preventative and population health-based approach — eg
widening partnership to address the wider determinants of health — housing,
childhood poverty, education, transport and access to services.

e reducing health inequalities

e moving more care closer to home and moving away from dependencies on
bed based care

e improving pathways for clinical services through horizontal and or vertical
integration

e managing service pressures across the system and changing the long term
trajectory of demand

e strengthened relationships with primary care, Local government and
voluntary and independent sector

Page 128



4

Working with the Mental Health Care Partnership

We strongly believe that taking a whole-person approach to health and care is
essential if we are going to support our population to live happy and healthy lives.
We know that people with mental illness do not access physical health services in
the same way as people without mental illness. We also know that we are spending
money in the wrong places, for example expensive inpatient placements rather than
on keeping people well and avoiding escalation.

We would like to work with the Mental Health Care Partnership on the following
aspects:

5

Working together to deliver physical health checks for people with mental
illnesses,

Health and Wellbeing Hubs working with mental health teams to deliver
holistic wellbeing advice and support to our population to avoid people
becoming unwell

Work together to deliver IAPT support for people with long term conditions
Jointly review the requirements for housing and accommodation in order to
support the most vulnerable people in South Devon and Torbay

Jointly review the requirements for Core 24/7 psychiatric liaison

Work together to delivery better experience and outcomes for people with
dementia, including support for care homes

System working - building blocks for success

We believe we have the following critical success factors in place on which to build a
strong and effective Local Care Partnership for South Devon and Torbay

A collective commitment to prioritise the needs of people and the system at
the expense of the individual institutions, based on a shared understanding
and analysis of local challenges

The quality of relationships between all key players in the local system: GPs,
local authorities, CCGs, acute, mental health, ambulance and specialist
providers, voluntary and private sectors.

The quality and capacity of local leaders and their ability to engage and
mobilise the wider workforce, including clinicians, and engage with the public,
elected members and local politicians.

An absolute commitment to promoting independence utilising a strengths-
based, risk enablement approach.

A relentless focus on a small number of practical priorities and a drive for
practical improvements on the ground in chosen priority areas, rather than just
trying to build a grand plan.

Track record of delivering integrated care and sharing of resources and risk
including with the voluntary sector

Taking difficult decisions — building understanding and support for change in
order to develop sustainable services which better meet the needs of
individuals within resources available

Service user experience informing and influencing future developments — shift
from “what’s the matter with you” to “what’s important to you?”

Authentic stakeholder engagement with well- established community
engagement arrangements

Page 129



e A culture of pragmatism meets continuous improvement. Trying new things,
learning and making improvements if it doesn’t work.

e An unwavering focus on outcomes that deliver long term impacts for people
and the wider system, moving away from short term strategic decisions
towards transformation that seeks to address sustainability, equity of care and
embed behaviour changes in people over the next 5-10 years and beyond.

6 What will be the purpose of our Local Care Partnership?

The purpose of a Local Care Partnership is to enable commissioners and providers
of health and care to work together to better meet the health, care and wellbeing
needs of the populations they serve within the resources available. The emphasis is
on “Local” with an absolute focus on supporting what is important to local
communities.

Partners will want to come together with community representatives to agree the
scale of ambition and population health and care outcomes that the South Devon
and Torquay Local Care Partnership should be striving to achieve.

Having agreed the scale of opportunity and outcomes, partners will then design
appropriate working and reporting arrangements that enable greater pace of
decision-making and movement of resource in order to get things done.

The partnership is not an organisation and is supported by sovereign organisations
who are ultimately accountable for delivery. There will be some instances e.g. policy
change which will need organisational and member agreement first.

Public engagement, consultation and communication will ensure that the work of the
Local Care Partnership and any changes in service provision are informed and
understood by and take account of the needs of the community.

We want to ensure our engagement with local members is strong and will need to
discuss with current members how we can best achieve this through existing
structures and informal arrangements.

The Health and Wellbeing Boards of both Torbay and Devon County Councils will
continue to have a role in promoting integration through the health and wellbeing
system in their areas, ensuring delivery against their respective Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategies.

The health overview and scrutiny functions of both Torbay and Devon County
Councils will continue to provide overview and scrutiny of both service delivery and
potential variation of health and social care within their areas, taking account of the
views of the communities they serve. Overview and scrutiny committees will be
invited to include Integrated Care System and Local Care Partnership governance in
their work programmes.

Page 130



1. Outcomes

A draft set of outcome indicators have been developed by Local Authority and NHS
analysts working together. These are a set which have taken account of the three
Joint Strategic Needs Assessments, the STP Challenges and the current joint
outcome frameworks across South Devon and Torbay, Plymouth and Devon. They
have been discussed and developed at the Devon-wide Strategic Commissioning
Group

It was agreed at the Strategic Commissioning Group in March that delivery against
these outcomes would be at LCP level but that they may need to also reflect any
particular issues at this more local level.

It was also agreed that outcomes would be iterative and currently for example the
following are being considered;

» Ensuring adequate Children’s outcomes are represented
» Further work to develop quality and value for money indicators as well as
health and well-being outcomes

8. Conclusion

A Local Care Partnership offers South Devon and Torbay the opportunity to build on
our achievements over the next period, in the context of the national and Devon wide
directions of travel.

Through this strengthened partnership system partners will aim to deliver more than
current arrangements allow.

9 Next steps

Locally the ambition is that we work and learn together to explore this enhanced
model of partnership to achieve better outcomes and reduce health inequalities for
the populations we serve. We will be a learning partnership.

Partners are asked to comment on this discussion document and agree to take
part in a partner workshop being arranged by the CCG in early April to flesh
out the detail.

AW 09/03/18

Page 131



Agenda Item 10

TORBAY ™7~
Health- Wellbeing
BOARD
Working together for a healthier Torbay
Title: 2018-20 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Torbay
Wards Affected: All
To: Health and Wellbeing Board On: 28 March 2018
Contact: Gemma Hobson
Telephone: 01803 207311
Email: Gemma.hobson@torbay.gov.uk

1. Purpose
1.1  To consider the 2018-20 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Torbay

Local Authorities and Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) have equal and
explicit obligations to prepare JSNA, under the governance of the health and
well-being board

This is the 6th JSNA to be written for Torbay since 2007. This report highlights
the key challenges and issues facing the population of Torbay across the life
course, as well as highlighting areas of spend and opportunity. In addition to
this report, there is a series of two page profiles highlighting key population
outcomes across the life course and across different communities. This JSNA
presents the most acute levels of social challenge within the Torbay
population so far.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Board ratify the publication of the JSNA on the Torbay Council
website.

3. Supporting Information

3.1 The JSNA Narrative for Torbay is attached in the Background Papers.
4, Relationship to Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

4.1 This is the core JSNA for 2018-20

5. Relationship to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

5.1  Produced to provide the evidence base for the JHBS

6. Implications for future iterations of the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment and/or Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

QN&BAL', Page 132 m



6.1  Should this be approved then this will form the Torbay JSNA for 2018-20.

Appendices
None

Background Papers:
The following documents/files were used to compile this report:

[ FoF |
A

2018 - 2020 Torbay
JSNA FINAL.pdf

Page 133



2018 — 2020
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

for Torbay

2N

4 )
Joint Strategic
]ﬁNA’ Needs Assessment
\_ J

Page 134




Needs Assessment

CONTENTS J{ﬁ

Contents
Quick Facts about Torbay and Torbay resSidentsS: . ... 1
0T =1V o] o PP PP PP PPPPPPPPRPPRR 2
TS U1 1 1 0 =V PP 3
I ST e L o 1=\ AN (= VS 4
] 8 geTo I¥ o1 4 [0} o IH PP PP PP PP PPPPPPPPRPPPT 5
BACKGIOUNT ...t 5
The Structure 0f the JSINA ... et 6
LLITE COUISE .ttt 8
(00 ] 14012 11110 ] 1 - T TP TTTPTPP 9
JaXe (o [1i ol F= Ul o] £0] 1] (=TS TR 10
T T=To U= 11T 6= PO UUPPPPTNS 11
LA Lo =T e [y =T a1 =T gL TP 15
Prevention OPPOITUNITIES ... e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e ta b e e e eeeeeeennes 17
PUDIIC SECIOr @XPENITUTE ... e e e e e e e e e e e e et eeeeeeeeeennes 18
POPUIALION OVEIVIEW ... e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e et b e e e e e e e eeeeaaaa e e eeeeeeeeennes 24
Starting and developing WEll OVEIVIEW ........cccoo i 28
Living and WOTKING WEIl OVEIVIEW ........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiitbieiebeie bbb eeseeeseesnnneee 35
Ageing and dYiNgG WEll OVEIVIEW ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeee ettt 41
T U= =T Y o = 46

Page 135




QUICK FACTS

Quick Facts about Torbay and Torbay residents:

4 )
133,883 people live in
Torbay
(2016)

- _J
4 N

There are, on average,
3.8 births per day
(2014/16)

éa )

The average age in
Torbay is 44.8 years
(2016)

. J

(Housing conditions are\
worse in Torbay, with
45% living in the most

deprived quintile in
England for indoor

A.Joint Strategic
] Needs Assessment

N\ J
( )

There are, on average,
4.8 deaths per day
(2013/15)

\_ deprivation )

285 children were looked
after by the Local
Authority, equivalent to
112 per 10,000

N\ J

J

[There are, on average,
145 attendances
at A & E per day
With an average age of
43.8 years

(2017)

4 )

On an average day, the
spend across 6 public
sector organisations is
around £2.5M
(2015/16)

4 N
3.7% are aged 85 years
and over
(2016)

\ 4
4 )

Life expectancy at birth
83.3 years for females
78.9 years for males
(2013/15)

N\ _/

(There are, on average,\
170 admissions to
hospital per day
With an average age of
55.8 years

\_ (2016/17) )

( )

Around 66,400 (68%)
adults are overweight or

obese in Torbay
(2016)

\k (2016/17) )
4 )

Around 18,100 adults in
Torbay smoke
(2016)

N\ J

Page 136

\ J
é )

There are
12 GP practices, and
37 Pharmacies
Serving Torbay

N\ J




FOREWORD ]{,,{

Needs Assessment

Foreword

| am delighted that we have developed a report that provides a comprehensive picture of the key
iIssues facing the population of Torbay. It is important that we understand these issues, and that
we plan the services we deliver according to the health and well-being needs of the local

population.

The 2018 Joint Strategic needs Assessment (JSNA) brings together data from a range of
partners across the South Devon and Torbay community. It identifies key issues which leaders,

planners and commissioners can concentrate on for the following years.

As with other areas in the UK, we face a number of health and wellbeing issues in Torbay. The
statistics show that two out of every three adults are overweight, with one in four being deemed
obese. In primary schools, one in five children is obese by the time they reach Year 6.

We have an ageing population - one in four adults is aged over 65 and this statistic is increasing.
Torbay also has a high number of households which fall in the poverty category, high levels of
frailty, and there are high rates of alcohol related admissions to hospitals and mortality due to

corresponding liver disease.

With this in mind, it is vital for upstream interventions to be strengthened. By preventing ill health
in the first place through healthy lifestyles and choices, the healthier we can keep individuals,

society, and our health and economic systems.

| hope you enjoy reading this document and that it helps you better understand your community
or the community you serve and that you will use this document to help you plan services and

interventions that best suit your community needs.

Chair Torbay Health and Wellbeing Board

Page 137 2




EXEC SUMMARY ]{,,,

Needs Assessment

Exec Summary

This is the 6™ JSNA to be written for Torbay since 2007. This JSNA presents the most acute
levels of social challenge within the Torbay population so far.

The last 10 years has seen a consistent set of issues highlighted. The key challenges facing the
population and the organisations that serve the population are highlighted below.

¢ Inequalities have been widening as relative deprivation worsens; Torbay is ranked as the
most deprived local authority in the South West region
e Children
o The number of children looked after by the local authority remains amongst the
highest in England
o Around 1 in 4 children continue to live in households where income is less than
60% of the median income (living in poverty)
e Economy Torbay’s economy is amongst the weakest in England, and has declined in
recent years
e Risk taking behaviours
o Around 6 out of 10 adults in Torbay are overweight or obese
o Around 1 in 6 adults in Torbay smoke
o There are high levels of alcohol related admissions to hospital
o Torbay has high levels of self-harm in the population
e Vulnerable populations there are high levels of vulnerability in the population, with high
levels of specialist need cohorts and high levels of mental ill health
e Ageing population the number of people aged over 85 is expected to increase by around
3,000 (56%) over the next decade or so. With increasing numbers expected to be frail and
require support from health and social care services.
e Costs Public sector spend is around £2.5M per day in Torbay, across 6 areas. Spend
associated with an ageing population and a consequence of risk taking behaviours is

expected to increase.

There are opportunities for specific needs assessments to understand the specific needs of

defined cohorts, such as those with Learning Disabilities or children looked after.

This document is part of the JSNA in Torbay, a large part of the JSNA is the district, town and
electoral ward profiles which cover the life course. These can be found at:

www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

Page 138 3



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

THE TORBAY AREA

A'Joint Strategic
J Needs Assessment

The Torbay Area

and boasts many Blue Flag beaches.

Figure 1: An overview of the Torbay area

Torbay has a rich, diverse and proud heritage spanning many thousands of years. Torbay became
a popular holiday destination early in the 19th century, famed for its romantic quality, its balmy air
and perfect environment for relaxation and convalescence. It was the Victorians that coined the

phrase the ‘English Riviera’, likening the area to its French equivalent.

Subtropical plants and the celebrated Torbay Palm, flourishing within the special microclimate, add
to the Mediterranean feel, and these days the busy waterfronts are a hive of activity catering for
both working and pleasure craft. The three Riviera towns of Brixham, Paignton and Torquay

surround the natural, sheltered Bay which, with a south easterly aspect, forms an ideal suntrap

Torbay has the romance of a
seaside town, sandy beaches
and above-average warm
weather. With these
attractions, Torbay, of course,
has been a popular retirement
destination for many years.
This is reflected in the

population structure of Torbay.

Torbay area covers some 64
square kilometres (24.6 Sq
Miles) and takes in around 44
kilometres (27.7 miles) of

coastline.




Needs Assessment

INTRODUCTION ﬁ@

Introduction

Background

The Torbay JSNA is not a standalone document but a suite of documents, web tools and
presentations which help to analyse the health needs of populations to inform and guide
commissioning of health, wellbeing and social care services within the local authority area . The
JSNA is a means by which local leaders work together to understand and agree the needs of
the local population Bl. JSNAs, along with health and wellbeing strategies enable commissioners
to plan and commission more effective and integrated services to meet the needs of the Torbay
population B in particular for the most vulnerable, and for groups with the worst health outcomes,
and to help reduce the overall inequalities that exist.

This diagram of the commissioning cycle (fig 2) shows a way of breaking the cycle down into three
main stages: Strategic Planning, Providing Services, and Monitoring and Evaluation. The JSNA
supports the strategic planning by identifying the needs within communities. Understanding the

needs of the population informs and influences commissioning intentions and priorities.

Figure 2: Commissioning cycle

~

Helping people to live longer and healthier
lives is not simply about the healthcare
received through GPs or at hospital, it is

also about the wider social determinants

Strategic

planning of where we live and work ¥, The

collective action of agencies is needed

gt today to promote the health of tomorrow’s

\ older population. Preventing ill health
u U starts before birth, and continues to

& ._L‘ accumulate throughout individuals’ lives
| { \j 4

Source: http://commissioning.libraryservices.nhs.uk/

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act (2007) [/ required Primary Care
Trusts (PCTs) and Local Authorities to produce a JSNA of the health and well-being of their local

community. From April 2013, Local Authorities and Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) have

Page 140 5



http://commissioning.libraryservices.nhs.uk/

Needs Assessment

INTRODUCTION J{,,,

equal and explicit obligations to prepare JSNA, under the governance of the health and well-being
board @,

The approach to the JSNA in Torbay is to provide a collection of narrative and data interpretation
to support the community, the voluntary sector and statutory organisations across Torbay. This
approach then provides a consistency of multi-agency data to support strategies,

commisioning and needs assessments across Torbay, illustrated in figure 3 below.

Figure 3: Influences of JSNA

K“\

Provides consistent

. . Influences
intelligence for

organisational

Supports funding bid

needs assessments / applications

strategies

priorities

\-

The structure of the JSNA

This report represents a written JSNA narrative for Torbay. This report highlights the key
challenges and issues facing the population of Torbay across the life course, as well as
highlighting areas of spend and opportunity. In addition to this report, there is a series of two page
profiles highlighting key population outcomes across the life course and across different
communities. The structure of the JSNA is presented in figure 4 below.

Figure 5 shows that the written report is supported by a set of profiles for Torbay covering different
stages of the life course and across the different communities in Torbay. For example, the
electoral wards in Torbay each have a 2 page summary highlighting key outcomes for those aged

0 to 4 (starting well). Further details of the life course are presented below.

Figure 4. Structure of 2018 JSNA Figure 5: Structure of 2018 JSNA
4 A
e D ——
NEEDS ASSESSMENTS Written report for
Torbay
v I \ J
| |
SPECIFIC NEEDS ASSESSMENTS 4
1 set of Torbay profiles 3 sets of Town profiles 15 sets of Ward profiles
ISNA DEFINED COHORTS WITHIN THE ) ) ) . ) )
Population ovarview s Population overview Population overview
POPULATION LEVEL POPULATION Starting Well «  Starting Well Starting Well
STRATEGIC OVERVIEW Developing We #  Developing We Developing Well
Learnlng Dlsablllty Living & Working Well o Living & Working Well Living & Working Well
Children looked after Ageing & Dying Well ¢ Ageing & Dying Well Ageing & Dying Well
U " ~




INTRODUCTION

A.Jomt Strategic
J Needs Assessment

The content of the profiles was derived from a multi-agency workshop held in May 2017. The

workshop was attended with representation and contributions from the following areas;

Table 1: JSNA contributors

Public
Commissioners
Health Watch Torbay

Citizens Advice Bureau Torbay Health | Devon and Cornwall

Constabulary

Torbay Adult
commissioners
Children’s
commissioners

South

Clinical Commissioning group

Social Care Department for Work and

Pensions

Torbay services | Torbay Development Agency An Elected Member

Devon and Torbay | Torbay and South Devon NHS

Foundation Trust

Output from the workshop formed the content list for the profiles. There are 5 profiles for each
geographical area, covering the life course. In total there are 95 profiles, covering the life course

across Torbay, the towns and electoral wards.

Figure 6: Torbay Population overview profile —= EXAMPLE PROFILE

~

POPULATION OVERVIEW (ALL AGES) POPULATION OVERVIEW [ALL AGES)

AN OVERVIEW OF TORBAY — 2018/20

AN OVERVIEW OF TORBAY — 2018/20

How to read the profile below: The black line running down the middle of the spine chart is the England
The purpose of this profile is to give an overview of the needs of the population of Torbay. This is to
average, the circles (to the left or right) are the Torbay value, compared to the England average. The pink
provide a local summary of key statistics to help understand the population and improve outcomes.
diamonds represent the CIPFA nearest neighbour’'s average. The colours are explained in the key below.
For profiles of other local geographies and/or age groups please visit: www.southdevonandtorbay.info
( ~ . ooty
Torbay Unitary 4 P For mare info see the spine chart on page 2. 1 Averaguage 2015} orn wz| | oue st I oew =z
Authority {Devon) = . w8 =3 i . =1
[ S In 2016 there were around 133,900 people living = " ol et “ - =
8 o 3 w1 m1 . ' L
in Torbay. 1 in 4 residents are aged over 65 years. vess E &38| s . "
Yo EI - E . n
Compared to England, Terbay has an older . 0 I R . e
population profile as shown in Figure 1. oo sas| el ase =m v sa?
% ool ;e w1 a > e s
) o B x| 2 2 .1 EH
Fig 1: Population distribution of Torbay . ol mel e . . -
w 8| s g e e w3
= o 02| o a - 7
M el a5 e 25 - .
5 . LRI H e =7
Y 2| ma ow .1 ar
» s us| e e as
% w7 w1 m a 1o m
* sl 21 ® s rl a4
% u o w .1 a7
Headlines® (total population compared to nae 7 L e
s 4| manl oa 5 .0 a4
England and CIPFA nearest neighbours): £ 1 1use 1. 1
1 =
+ Torbay has a high proportion of I - e b — °
Source: ONS mid-year populston estimstes 2016, Charered Instine of - e ° = . =
compared to these of working age; i £ wa0o| Toao| Bmawn o 3 o
. - o 1| 114 0695, 0 e 0
* In Torbay around 1 in 3 people live in areas In general the population has steadily increased - e e e m . m
amongst the 20% most deprived in England; year on year and is projected to continue to do so = o °
o nars o4 ]
& Significantly more are divorced or separated; as shown in Figure 2
Key:
+ Almost 1in 4 privately rent accommodation; . . . ® Soeem @ Sonar O tcimad @ Sang Sakws  Sorcimeem | Gwwdemws 0RO Cim@n W GIkG  Giedd
Fig 2: Population trend over time
& Housing quality and fuel poverty is worse; Yoy
- 15, %ot househaics wha privately rent accommadston (CEISUS]
+ Crime and domestic abuse is lower; however 125,000 Eae——— Indicator notes: 15 % of rousshoic: wh socaly et acconmodton [ENSLD
B0 T - o
- P . 0t popustionbin n e smor: 20 ot o snirnment S
anti-social behaviour is significantly higher; 125,000 suerage age for the tom popuistion (ONS] = B’P_“m 3 ongz 20% mast inoor ent gy
o oo 13 & G e s popton VG P P —
. 3 vewrs ot from trth [PGAD: CHG, FHEL 20zutn or e
+ More residents have poor physical and Lig000 3 v otre ety fram o [PCMD: DA, ] zxm:m;”m‘mmm:“m sl
31 ears of mals czaity fee e e i fom i IPHE Local Hesifd -
mental health; 10000 £ vemrs il o Deravicus per L.
105,000 7 Sy s oo o e e e e o pOD uhmmummmsmn Jorg-tem rewn p'mm'ﬁnnkrmm
+ Urgent care attendances (ED & MIU) and 100 5. Aot g amongst 205 moat deptivedin Engand [DGLA] En,.,., ein s amonst
2010 2011 2012 2013 2018 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 (s
; . . bd ’ | o= 8
emergency hospital admissions are higher, Mid-year estimated populatin ~ — Pralested population :.‘,;m:mm:“"’;:,wm s it o Loty b
) . 5 cesUs) 400,000 pecnsmticn P4ES: ONE]
with lower elective admissions. Source: ONS mic-year extimates 2010-16; SNPP 2014 based (2017-20) e cEns 30 058 armience izs which result in s 22 and eanuey’ o hozpial [SHAST]

.

_/

Larger copies of the profiles are available f5 Wdevonandtorbav.info/isna
L



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

Needs Assessment

INTRODUCTION ﬁ@

This written narrative is themed into the following chapters:

¢ Inequalities — highlights differences in outcomes across our communities
e Prevention — identifies ways to consider upstream approaches to risk factors
e Public sector spend — examines public sector spend in Torbay compared to other areas
e Life course chapters — each chapter presents a summary of key age specific challenges
affecting the population of Torbay
o Population overview sets the scene for the current & future population structure
across Torbay. It includes top level population overviews
o Starting Well is about understanding the needs of the population through
pregnancy, birth and for the first few years of life.
o Developing Well is about understanding the needs of the population between the
ages of 5 and 24.
o Living and Working Well is about understanding the needs of the working age
population.
o Ageing and Dying Well is about understanding the needs of those from around 65

years and over.

The Torbay JSNA is wider than the set of profiles and this narrative report. The JSNA includes

specific overviews of conditions, diseases or analysis of specific cohorts within the population.

The JSNA can be accessed at: www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

Life course

A life course approach enables an understanding of needs and risks to health and wellbeing at
different points along the path of life. For example, our needs as babies and in our early years
differ significantly to our needs and risks to health and wellbeing as we enter adulthood or
retirement. Understanding the risks to health and wellbeing at different points along the path of life
enables opportunities to promote positive health and wellbeing and to prevent future ill health, or to

understand the potential burden of disease that may need to be considered in delivering services.

Understanding needs across the life course also enables an understanding of exposures in
childhood, adolescence and early adult life and how they influence the risk of disease and socio-
economic position in later life Bl Understanding the influence of risk in this way may help to

prevent future generations experiencing some of the illnesses of today.

Page 143 8



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

Needs Assessment

INTRODUCTION ﬁ@

Comparisons

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), working with local authorities,
have developed an approach to aid benchmarking and comparing similar local authorities. CIPFA
have developed a methodology that allows local authorities to compare themselves with similar
authorities. These are known as nearest neighbours. Torbay’s nearest neighbours are presented,

with some demographic information, in table 2 below.

Contextualisation presented within this report, and across the JSNA profiles, shows a statistic for
‘CIPFA'. The statistic is the average of the nearest neighbours. The statistics are constructed
through a robust way to ensure the stats are comparable, for example, calculating appropriate

numerators and denominators, or age specific rates.

Table 2: Torbay’s nearest neighbours

Nearest Neighbour Model Deprivation Total Aged 65 % of Pop
(CIPFA) score Population and over aged 65+
(IMD 2015) (2015)

Blackpool 42.0 139,600 28,400 20.3%
Bournemouth 21.8 194,500 34,900 17.9%
Cornwall 23.8 549,400 131,900 24.0%
Darlington 23.6 105,400 20,500 19.4%
East Riding of Yorkshire 15.8 336,700 82,600 24.5%
Isle of Wight 23.1 139,400 37,000 26.5%
North East Lincolnshire 30.9 159,600 31,100 19.5%
North Somerset 15.8 209,900 48,800 23.2%
North Tyneside 21.3 202,500 39,200 19.4%
Northumberland 20.5 315,300 72,700 23.1%
Poole 15.2 150,600 33,100 22.0%
Redcar & Cleveland 28.6 135,300 29,200 21.6%
Sefton 25.7 273,700 61,800 22.6%
Southend-on-Sea 24.5 178,700 34,000 19.0%
Torbay 28.8 133,400 34,300 25.7%
Wirral 26.9 320,900 67,000 20.9%

Source: CIPFA
Analysis around South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning spend compares the local CCG

to its equivalent nearest neighbours, referred to as RightCare.

Further information on RightCare nearest neighbours, or comparator groups can be found at

https://www.england.nhs.uk/rightcare/

Page 144 9



https://www.cipfa.org/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/rightcare/

INTRODUCTION J{,,,

Needs Assessment

Additional profiles

Further information and profiles are available from Public Health England. These contextualise

Torbay against a national perspective, as well as against Torbay’s CIPFA neighbours.

Further profiles are available at: https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/

Figure 7: Public Health Profiles

#33 Public Health England

Public Health Profiles

Highlighted Profiles

Child and Maternal Health Mental Health Dementia and Neurology
Health Profiles National General Practice Profiles
Longer Lives Public Health Outcomes Framework

National Public Health Profiles

Adult Social Care

Longer Lives

AMR local indicators Marmot Indicators

Atlas of Variation Mental Health Dementia and Neurology

Cancer Services .
Musculoskeletal Diseases

Cardiovascular Disease

Child and Maternal Health

National General Practice Profiles
NCMP Local Authority Profile

NHS Health Check

Older People’s Health and Wellbeing
Oral Health Profile

Diabetes

Disease and risk factor prevalence
End of Life Care Profiles

Health assets profile

Health Profiles

Peer benchmarking tool

Physical Activity

Health Protection Public Health Outcomes Framework

Inhale - INteractive Health Atlas of Lung
- . Segment Tool

conditions in England

Leaming Disability Profiles Sexual and Reproductive Health Profiles

Liver Disease Profiles TB Strategy Monitoring Indicators

Local Alcohol Profiles for England Technical Guidance
%I Tobacco Control Profiles Wider Determinants of Health /

Page 145 10



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/

INEQUALITIES J{,,,

Needs Assessment

Inequalities

Inequalities are evident across the life course, from children being born in more deprived areas
expected to experience shorter life expectancy (figure 8); to working age persons with lower or

no qualifications; to premature mortality.

In order to begin to reduce inequalities, an understanding of the complex web of issues is required.
There is evidence to suggest that disadvantage starts before birth and accumulates
throughout life . To reduce inequalities across the life course, it is important to reduce early

disadvantage, poorer outcomes from pregnancy and birth, and during childhood.

Health inequalities are when different people experience different outcomes. For example, higher
rates of people dying prematurely in one community compared to another community (figure 9).
There is a well evidenced relationship between poorer communities, in terms of income, and

poorer health outcomes such as life expectancy 1.

Figure 8: 2014/15 Life expectancy at birth by deprivation quintile across Torbay

(88 )

86

84

T
82

80 il

78

76

74

72

70 T T T T

2 Q3 Q4

Q1 (most Q Q5 (least
deprived) deprived)

.
Source: PCMD, NOMIS and ONS

Figure 9: 2013/15 Life expectancy at birth by electoral ward and sex across Torbay

compared to England
( N

B Male e Female

= ===England Males ====England Females

Source: PCMD, NOMIS and ONS

Page 146 11




INEQUALITIES J{,,,

Needs Assessment

The gap in life expectancy at birth between communities across South Devon and Torbay is

around 8.9 years for males and 5.2 years for females.

Whilst people in our more deprived communities tend to die earlier than those in the least
deprived, they also tend to spend more of their life in poor health. The gap between disability free
life expectancy and life expectancy is widest in our poorer communities (left hand side of figures
10 and 11). The gap is smallest at the less deprived end of the spectrum, right hand side of figures
10 and 11.

Communities in Torbay are represented by the red dots in the two charts. The lower banding of
dots represents the disability free life expectancy experienced in communities, whilst the upper
banding of dots represents the life expectancy on communities. The gap between these two

community measures, represents an inequality across communities.

Figure 10: Female life expectancy and Figure 11: Male life expectancy and disability
disability free life expectancy at birth, by free life expectancy at birth, by
neighbourhood deprivation level, England, neighbourhood deprivation level, England,
2009 to 2013 2009 to 2013

- \ o \

95 - - < 95

90 90

8 | 85

80

80 e iigteh

75 frae 75
o
70 70 h

65 - 65 -

60

60 |, oo

L3
55 SEE 55

50 == P

45 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T d 45 4 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T ]
0O 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 8 8 90 95 100 0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 8 8 9 95 100

Most deprived Neighbourhood deprivation Least deprived Most deprived 2 Neighbourhood deprivation Least deprived
communities < (population percentiles) communities communities (population percentiles) communities
@ Life Expectancy @ Life Expectancy
@ Disability Free Life Expectancy @ Disability Free Life Expectancy
Y @ Torbay MSOAs ) L @ Torbay MSOAs )
Source: ONS

What this means is that, on average, the more deprived female populations in Torbay can expect
to live their last 23.8 years of life with a disability compared to those in the least deprived (16.2
years) population, and still expect to die around 8.3 years earlier. For the males population in
the most deprived communities of Torbay, they can expect to live their last 20.5 years of life with
a disability compared to those in the least deprived (14.7 years) population, and still expect to
die around 8.7 years earlier. Proportionately, people in Torbay’s more deprived communities

spend a larger amount of their life in need of some increased level of support.

Page 147 12




Needs Assessment

INEQUALITIES ﬁ@

Life expectancy for both females and males has increased over time. A gap between the sexes
remains with females, on average, living longer than males. It is of particular note that whilst life
expectancy has been increasing, disability free life expectancy has decreased. This suggests that
the population are ageing in poorer health, and this may in turn have a negative impact on the

demand for support services to manage a population in poorer health.

Figure 12: Female Disability-free life Figure 13: Male Disability-free life

expectancy and life expectancy over time expectancy and life expectancy over time

o0 - Y (®s - A

e ——————o e e | %01 %ﬁ—i

75

85
80

75 1
70
70
. e ———— ————
- - - - - 65 i

- —— - ==m - B =T ] Tt e
& i gt 11 L ALl Tt b Ec-===- 3 SIIECIooem--o- .

60
60

55

50 50
2006to 2008 2007 to 2009 2008to 2010 2009to 2011 2010to 2012 2011to 2013 2012 to 2014 2006to 2008 2007 to 2009 2008to 2010 2009to 2011 2010to 2012 2011to 2013 2012 to 2014

Life expectancy at birth === England ~f— South West === Torbay Life expectancy at birth = England —#— South West === Torbay
Disability free life expectancy = @ =England = @ = South West = #= = Torbay Disability free life expectancy = @ =England = i = South West = #= = Torbay

_ /O /
Source: ONS

Figures 10 and 11 (above) show that people in our more deprived communities live for longer
with a disability. This population needs to access care for a relatively longer period of time.
Reducing the gap between disability free life expectancy and life expectancy would result in

significant financial savings to the public purse.

Reducing inequalities in health does not require a separate health agenda, but action across the
whole of society (1. Inequalities in health are not simply about levelling out the burden of disease
across the population, as good health is not simply a measure of the absence of disease.
Where we live, and who we are, all impact on health, and inequalities.

At a national level, it is estimated that the cost of inequality in illness accounts for productivity
losses of around £32 billion per year 1. Proportionately, in Torbay this could represent a cost of
inequality in illness of around £75 to £80 million per year. That would include lost taxes, higher
welfare payments and higher NHS healthcare costs. The figure presented is based on a national
population spend per head being applied to the South Devon and Torbay population; it has not
been adjusted for deprivation, age or sex. It does however represent a wider system perspective

on costs.

In 2015, Torbay’s overall position for multiple deprivation rank of average rank was 46th out of 326
district local authorities and 37th out of 152 upper tier Local authorities in England. Compared to

the South West of England, Torbay is ranked as the most deprived on a range of summary

Page 148 13




Needs Assessment

INEQUALITIES ﬁ@

measures (including income and employment deprivation summary measures). Torbay’s position

is relatively worse than for previous versions of the IMD (index of Multiple Deprivation).

For local authority districts, Torbay is ranked within the top 20% most deprived local authorities in
England (figure 14), and when compared to CIPFA statistical neighbours, Torbay has the second

highest levels of multiple deprivation (table 3).

Table 3: Torbay’s nearest unitary Figure 14: Average rank summary measure

neighbours of the 2015 IMD, for local authority districts
IMD rank of average =
CIPFA nearest neighbour Cane Eoncos
rank
(district LA rank of 326)
2015
Blackpool 10 4 “
Torbay 49 46 o X = —J
North East Lincolnshire 78 65
Cornwall 82 68 ) »
Redcar and Cleveland 71 78 ‘
Isle of Wight 106 83 g
Sefton 114 102 ’ >
Southend-on-Sea 117 105 .‘ 4 ﬂ «9
Wirral 103 106 v
Bournemouth 96 117 < ¥
Darlington 104 122 \‘. )
North Tyneside 124 138 (sciy . -
Northumberland 144 145 . L
Poole 187 208 Lo s 2
East Riding of Yorkshire 216 215 t 4
North Somerset 224 224 \ + st e /
st 6! east
Source: CIPFA nearest unitary authority neighbours, 2015 e k=

Figure 15: Change in count of LSOAs in Torbay in the top 20% most deprived in England

Number of Torbay LSOAs in top quintile (20%) | Since 2004 the number of areas in Torbay in
most deprived in England by domain . .
w0 the top 20% most deprived in England has
35 o
0o o g o Q increased (figure 15). The darker circles
w
o} o - .
§ 25 o o represent the 2015 indices of multiple
- 0 o) o
5 5 9 5 0 (*) o O | deprivation.
5 w0 °)
o] . .
©O o g There are currently 28 areas in Torbay in the
0
0 / - : . .
IMD Income Employ Health Educat Barriers Crime Environ IDAC | IDAOP top 20% most deprlved in England’ up from
2004 12 14 24 4 10 5 8 31 14 22
207, 14 | 16 | 32 |15 | U8 | W w12 A 12 in 2004. These areas are presented in red
02010, 16 19 33 14 11 7 17 32 15 16
L 02015 28 28 35 33 15 1 23 26 22 19 y and dark blue |n flg 16 below

Page 149 14




Needs Assessment

INEQUALITIES ﬁ@

Figure 16: 2015 rank of index of multiple deprivation

f THE ENGLISH INDICES OF DEPRIVATION 2015 \

RANK OF INDEX OF MULTIPLE DEPRIVATION

(2015 Multiple Deprivation

(LSOA rank)
B Top 10% in England (14)
W 10+%to 20% (14)
[ 20+%to 30% (15)
[ 30+%to 40% 9)
[ 40+%to 50% (10)
[ 50+%to 60% (12)
O 60+%to 70% (6)
O 70+%to 80% (6)
[J 80+%to 90% (3)
[0 90+%to 100% (0)
— LSOA boundary

{_ = Ward boundary

PublicHealth

fECEa
Source: UK Department for Communities and Local Government, 2015
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100022695

Wider determinants of health

Whilst it is not possible to change some of our individual determinants of health, such as our age,
our sex at birth and our genetic makeup (family history). There are other factors that we can try to
influence that impact on health and wellbeing, such as the environment in which we live, our ability
to work and the lifestyle choices we make. Figure 17 illustrates the main influences on health [©l,

These influences are known as the wider determinants of health.

The layers presented in figure 17 include:

e individual lifestyle factors such as smoking habits, diet and physical activity have the

potential to promote or damage health

e social and community network interactions with friends, relatives and mutual support

within a community can sustain people's health

Page 150 15




INEQUALITIES

Figure 17: Wider determinants of health €]

A'Joint Strategic
J Needs Assessment

e wider influences on health include living and working conditions, food supplies, access to

conditions prevalent in society as a whole

Living and working
»— conditions ™

care
services

Age, sex and
constitutional
factors

J

population.

Figure 18: contribution of determinants to

community safety (5%). Contributions are illustrated in figure 18 below.

health outcomes

HEALTH BEHAVIOURS
(30%)

ALCOHOL USE (5%)

TOBACCO USE (10%)
DIET AND EXERCISE (10%)

SEXUAL ACTIVITY (5%)

CLINICAL CARE
(20%)

ACCESS TO CARE (10%)

QUALITY OF CARE (10%)

SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC
FACTORS
(40%)

FAMILY AND SOCIAL SUPPORT

EDUCATION (10%)
EMPLOYMENT (10%)
INCOME (10%)

0
(5%) COMMUNITY SAFETY (5%)

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT
(10%)

AIR QUALITY (5%)

BUILT ENVIRONMENT
(5%)

Source: County Health, Rankings Working Paper. Madison (WI): University of Wisconsin Population Health Institute, 2010 ©!

Page 151

essential goods and services, and the overall economic, cultural and environmental

Influencing these layers, across the life course, is required to reduce inequalities, such as the gap

in life expectancy, and improve the health and wellbeing of the South Devon and Torbay

Social and economic factors are estimated to contribute to 40% of health outcomes, made up of

education (10%), employment (10%), income (10%), family and social support (5%) and

16




Needs Assessment

PREVENTION OPPORTUNITIES Jémimstramgac

Prevention opportunities

Prevention means different things to different people, and there are different perceptions and
perspectives of prevention. From a population level perspective, illustrated in fig 20 as health
Improvement opportunities to prevent the need for treatment services are more cost effective than
treating people, to tertiary prevention that aims to prevent the worsening or repeat need for

treatment.

For example, continuously pulling people out of the river downstream (fig 19) takes resources and
over time would be more costly than simply fixing the bridge and preventing people falling into the

river in the first place. This could be applied to any treatment or activity based services.

Figure 19: Upstream — Downstream opportunities to reduce costs

a8 ) 1

Understanding the Community
Population structure, differences

between communities, community COMMUNITY

assets

JUnderstanding the Risks to Health

and Wellbeing
‘fixing the bridge’
Preventing people falling in the river
in the first place upstream

Promoting Health and Wellbeing
Intervention — ‘throwing a rope’

Shortening the period in the river and S
promoting early recovery <

Understanding Health and Wellbeing
outcomes

‘pulling people out of the river’
Burden of disease and mortality —
downstream
J

Figure 20: Prevention opportunities

-

-

Tertiary prevention seeks to limit disability or incapacity
e.g. physical exercise as part of cardiac rehabilitation

)

Secondary prevention seeks to shorten episodes and duration of
iliness

[ e.g. smoking cessation for asthmatics

Primary prevention seeks to avoid onset of illness / disability by
the detection of high risk groups and advise on healthy living
e.g. screening programmes, advice on balanced diets

AN A

Health improvement operates in the community and focuses on
creating the conditions that promote healthy lives and aspirations

-

Page 152 17




PUBLIC SECTOR SPEND ACROSS TORBAY ]{*Joimsmtegic

Needs Assessment

Public sector expenditure

The public sector includes services commissioned and provided for the public. This includes
support services such as benefits, as well as schools, hospitals and refuse collection. This

includes central government, national agencies, local NHS organisations and Torbay Council.

In 2015/16 around £920M was spent by 6 public sector bodies in Torbay, which equates to
around £2.5M per day. Over half of spend was through the Department of Work and Pensions,

spending £476M. The breakdown of spend is shown in figure 21.

Figure 21: Estimated spend across 6 public sector agencies in 2015/ 16
s A

M Dept. Work & Pensions (£476M)

M Clinical Commissioning Group (£193M)

i Local Authority Expenditure (£172M)
(including maintained schools)

M Schools (acadamies only) (£48M)

M Police (£22M)

i Fire & Rescue (£6M)

\ J/
Source: Revenue Accounts, schools block allocation, benefit expenditure — gov.uk

Data for the Clinical Commissioning Group has been apportioned based on resident population,
with a Torbay figure allocated according to population. The data is not adjusted for age or

deprivation.

The same apportioned based methodology has been applied to both the Police (Devon and
Cornwall Constabulary) and Fire and Rescue (Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service).

The data is published and in the public domain, and analysis of CIPFA nearest neighbours has

been undertaken to add further contextualisation where possible.

Page 153 18




PUBLIC SECTOR SPEND ACROSS TORBAY ]{A,Jointsnategic

Needs Assessment

Department for Work and Pensions spend 2015/16

The department for work and pensions spent around £476M in Torbay in 2015/16. Around £250M
was spent on state pension, and with Torbay’s more aged demographic, this explains Torbay’s

higher than average spend DWP spend per head of population.

Spend on Job Seekers Allowance was around £5.4M, and represented a relatively small

proportion of overall spend by the department for work and pensions.

Figure 22: DWP spend per head — 2015-16 Figure 23: Proportion of DWP spend by

benefit
) ™\

(E4,000 r60%

50%
£3,500

40% -
£3,000 30%

20% -
£2,500 "

10%
£2,000 0%

N T e R e @ @ 5 & & e &
£1,500 FEFFEFFEEE T E S
, & & N & O F P EE

RO I O I R PO A 8
£1,000 5 & & & & & \i‘be' & & & Q"Q} & O be

TES F @ T & & &

£500 AN & & & &€ & &
& 6‘“’7’“ v )
£-

% England CIPFA Average Torbay JA MEngland ECIPFA Nearest neighbours i Torbay )

Source: DWP Benefit Expenditure, gov.uk
South Devon Clinical Commissioning Group spend 2015/16

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) were created following the Health and Social Care Act in
2012, and replaced Primary Care Trusts on 1 April 2013. They are clinically-led statutory NHS
bodies responsible for the planning and commissioning of health care services for their local

area. There are now 207 CCGs in England.

Commissioning is about getting the best possible health outcomes for the local population. This
involves assessing local needs, deciding priorities and strategies, and then buying services on
behalf of the population from providers such as hospitals, clinics, community health bodies, etc. It
is an ongoing process. CCGs must constantly respond and adapt to changing local
circumstances. They are responsible for the health of their entire population, and measured by

how much they improve outcomes.

The South Devon and Torbay CCG is responsible for commissioning health services for the
Torbay population, as well as around 40% of the South Hams and 80% of the Teignbridge
populations. In 2015/16 the South Devon and Torbay CCG total spend was around £387M (CCG

Breakdown of Programme Costs 2015/16 Plans). Apportion based on resident population,

Page 154 19




PUBLIC SECTOR SPEND ACROSS TORBAY

A,Joint Strategic
J Needs Assessment

equates to an estimated spend of £193M for the population of Torbay. The following spend

analysis (figures 24 and 25) is across the whole CCG footprint. The average spend is based on
CCG allocation. As a health geography, there are different comparator groups, the South Devon
and Torbay CCG has a group of similar organisations, referred to as RightCare. Details of the

CCGs that form this group can be found at: https://www.england.nhs.uk/rightcare/products/

South Devon and Torbay have a similar spend per head of population when compared to their
RightCare average, however it is higher than the England average (fig 24). The South Devon and
Torbay CCG spend more per head on acute and community services (fig 25) — the majority will

be commissioned from Torbay and South Devon NHS foundation trust.

Figure 24: CCG spend per head of registered
population — 2015/16
(South Devon and Torbay)

Figure 25: CCG Spend per head of registered
population 2015/16 Plans
(South Devon and Torbay)

(£1,600 )

£1,400

£1,200

£1,000

£800

£600

£400

£200

£

England Rightcare South Devon and Torbay y

rESOU h

£700 -

£600 -
£500 -
£400 -~

£300 -
£200 -~
£100 -

£
Acute

\

Community Continuing
Care

EEngland ®RightCare Group average

Mental
Health

i NHS South Devon and Torbay CCG

Other
Programme

Primary
Care

S

Source: CCG Breakdown of Programme Costs 2015/16 Plans

Further analysis of Torbay registered patients by the CCG PBR data (payments by results)

shows that the average spend per head increases with age. Allowing for demographic change,

estimates suggest an increase of £7.3M between 2017 and 2025.

Figure 26: Three year average spend per

head of population (Torbay)

Figure 27: Forecasted spend (Torbay)

(£1,800 )

£1,600

£1,400

£1,200

£1,000

£800

£600

£400

£200 -+

o X O o
ST @'a“ 3
D AP AP

R PP P DA D P D
RSP I IR I O I I R S
PR WP P REA A PP

M npatient i Outpatient
\L J

(ESO,UOO,UUO

£70,000,000

£60,000,000

£50,000,000

£40,000,000 -+

£30,000,000 -

£20,000,000

£10,000,000 -+

£ A

2017 2019 2021 2023

2025

ARE M Inpatient i Outpatient
. J/

Source: 2014 Subnational population projections, ONS; South Devon and Torbay CCG, SUS

Page 155

20



https://www.england.nhs.uk/rightcare/products/

PUBLIC SECTOR SPEND ACROSS TORBAY J{*ﬁiﬁli:ﬁ:ifl;ent

Local Authority (Torbay Council) Revenue Accounts 2015/16

Torbay council is an upper tier unitary local authority, responsible for providing services to the

population of Torbay. Local government in England and Wales is funded through:

e grants from central government (about 54%) made up mainly of redistributed business
rates, including the Revenue Support Grant and the Public Health grant
e and locally raised funding (about 46%) which includes council tax (charged to local people)

and other sources such as car parks, parking permits and the hire of sports facilities

However this system is currently going through a major change. By 2020 the Government has
committed to phasing out central grants for local government, so that local government will be
funded entirely through locally retained business rates and council tax. The aim of this move is to
encourage local authorities to promote local economic growth and to be financially self-sufficient.
This system of 100% Business Rate Retention is still being designed by DCLG.

https://www.lgiu.org.uk/local-government-facts-and-figures/

In Torbay, the revenue account budget for 2017-18, revenue account data for total service
expenditure is £164M. The £164M is distributed across different service areas, such as Adult

social care, childrens social care and other services. The distribution is presented in figure 28

Figure 28: Revenue Account Budget 2017-18: Figure 29: Total Service Expenditure

(E per head of total population)

.

N ~
rEZ,UUO

£1,800
£1,600 -
£1,400 -

M Total Education Services (£45M)

 Total Adult Sodial Care (£44M) £1,200 -+
£1,000 -~
u Total Other services (£34M) £800 -
£600 -
® Total Children's Social Care (£31M) £400 -
£200 -
 Total Public Health (£10M) £ -

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

M England H CIPFA i Torbay
AN J

Source: Local authority revenue expenditure and financing, gov.uk

Torbay’s expenditure per head of population is significantly lower than the England average, and
also significantly lower than the CIPFA nearest neighbours average. The expenditure per head

reduced significantly over recent years, as shown in fig 29.

Further analysis across Children’s Social Care, Education, Adult Social Care and Public Health

follow.

Page 156 21



https://www.lgiu.org.uk/local-government-facts-and-figures/

PUBLIC SECTOR SPEND ACROSS TORBAY

A,Joint Strategic
] Needs Assessment

Figure 30: Total Education Services
(E per head of 0 to 19 year olds)

With an increase in academy schools, the expenditure for maintained education that came

through the local authority decreased. This change is important to understand to interpret fig 30.
Torbay has a significantly higher rate of children looked after than most other authorities across
England, and the costs of children’s social care per head of 0 to 19 year olds shows that Torbay

spends around 40% more than both the England and CIPFA averages (fig 31).

Figure 31: Total Children's Social Care
(E per head of O to 19 year olds)

-

£4,000
[ ==

£3,500

£3,000

£2,500

£2,000
£1,500
£1,000

£500

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

2016/17

M England H CIPFA i Torbay

2017/18

S

™\
(£1,400

£1,200

£1,000

£800

£600

£400 -+

£200 -

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

o England H CIPFA u Torbay
. S

Figure 32: Total Adult Social Care
(£ per head of 18+)

Source: Local authority revenue expenditure and financing, gov.uk

A great majority of children who become looked after do so because of abuse, neglect or family
dysfunction that causes acute stress among family members %, These risk factors tend to be

higher in populations with higher levels of deprivation.

Figure 33: Total Public Health
(E per head of total population)

(£450

£400

£350 +
£300 -~
£250 -+
£200 -~
£150 -+
£100 -~

£50 -~

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

2016/17

M England H CIPFA u Torbay

\.

2017/18

J/

~\
(1'59[]

£80
£70
£60
£50 -
£40 -
£30 -
£20 -
£10 -

P

2013/14

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

 England H CIPFA u Torbay
. J

Source: Local authority revenue expenditure and financing, gov.uk

With a more aged population, we expected Torbay to have higher levels of adult social care need
compared to the England population, and therefore a higher expenditure per head of population.

Page 157 22




Needs Assessment

PUBLIC SECTOR SPEND ACROSS TORBAY ]{A,Jointsuatcgic

Torbay’s population is expected to continue to have an increase in an older demographic, and

this is expected to continue to increase need for adult social care.

Inequalities across the population of England mean that Local Authorities require different levels
of Public Health funding. Public Health England and the Department of Health have funded local
authority areas relative to the scale or size of need in their population. In essence, this is an

application of proportionate universalism [

There is a significant evidence base that identifies greater needs in populations with greater

levels of relative deprivation M

An analysis of spend and outcome (figures 34 and 35) suggests that Torbay’s overall outcomes
are similar to the England average (represented by ‘PH’ in figure 34). Specific outliers for Torbay
in relation to overall local authority spend and outcome identified by the SPOT tool suggest
children’s social services, along with planning and cultural services, have higher levels of spend

and worse outcomes compared to the England average.

Within the portfolio of Public Health services, there is variation of spend and outcomes - shown in
figure 35. Drug and alcohol services can be seen as higher spend and worse outcomes (Drug);
this is primarily driven by alcohol specific admissions to hospital, and also claimants of benefits
due to alcoholism. Not all of these outcomes are commissioned through public health in the local

authority setting.

Figure 34: Torbay 2016 Spend and Figure 35: Torbay 2016 Public Health spend

Outcomes and outcomes

ower spend Higher spend,
ter outcome Better outcome
25

Outcome Z score
Qutcome Z

).0 A .
£ oo . 'Hwy' faon  Cht A&‘\F 0.0 . HP.HC
s Edu Hse B 3 08 chia Smeke, HI
ot Viok;nce ngvg
a0 | ! Plen cft 10 :
s clit 45

-20 -15 -1.0 -05 0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5

Source: Public Health England, Spend and Outcome Tool (SPOT)

Page 158 23




POPULATION OVERVIEW ]%mm Strategic

Needs Assessment

Population overview

This section provides an overview of the Torbay population, including population estimates and

projections and a chart of key indicators and outcomes.

Torbay has a resident population of 133,883 (2016 Mid-Year Estimate), with 51.5% female and
48.5% male. Torbay’s population structure continues to experience an older demographic, as

shown in the population pyramid (fig 36) below.

Figure 36: population pyramid for Figure 37: Population projections for Torbay

Torbay compared to England, 2016

(160,000

140,000 e

120,000
100,000
80,000
60,000
40,000
20,000

0
2017 2019 2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039

H0-14 H15-29 H30-44 H45-64 6584 M85+
——rEngland \_ J

. 7

Source: NOMIS, 2016 Mid-Year estimates, 2014 based subnational population projections

Torbay’s population is projected to increase over the coming years. The under 65 population
shows modest growth while the over 65 population shows significant growth (shown visually in fig
37 and tabulated in table 4). Torbay’s over 85 population is expected to double over the next
twenty years. These significant increases in the older population are expected to drive increasing

demand on support and treatment services.

Table 4: population estimates by year and age group

g?(?up 2017 2018 2019 2020 2025 2030

0-14 21,131 21,336 21,535 21,663 22,071 21,990
15-29 20,598 20,436 20,312 20,256 19,891 20,453
30-44 19,896 19,820 19,770 19,867 20,965 21,158
45-64 37,501 37,560 37,623 37,573 36,419 34,554
65-84 30,212 30,696 31,121 31,540 34,033 36,944
85+ 5,142 5,228 5,332 5,466 6,429 8,039

Total 134,481 135,077 135,691 136,366 139,809 143,140

Source: NOMIS, 2014 based subnational population projections

Page 159 24




POPULATION OVERVIEW JaPtoin st

Needs Assessment

How to read the profile: The black line running down the middle of the spine chart is the England
average, the circles (to the left or right) are the Torbay value, compared to the England average,
The diamonds represent the CIPFA average. The colours are explained in the key.
Figure 38: Population overview profile
(1] Indicator Measure Torbay CIPFA England England
Demography
1 Average age (2015) Years 447 428 393 301 | +® 539
2 Total dependency (2015) Ratio 703 626 553 314 | *« @ 851
3 Male life expectancy at birth (2013-15) Years 789 78.9 T79.5 T4.3 + | 834
4 Female life expectancy at birth (2013-15) Years 833 827 831 794 +*| 464
5 Male disability free life expectancy (2009-13) Years 61.5 62.6 63.6 56.5 o+ | 7.7
& Female disabilty free life expectancy (2009-13) Years B63.5 64.2 64.5 58.3 o4 72
T All-cause mortality (2014-16) DSR 9952 1,008.1 970.7 5421 |+ 1,380.9
5 Premature mortality (2014-16) DSR 3435 35286 3350 226.5 |+ 543.7
9 Living in most deprived areas (2015) % 320 208 201 0 » [ ] 60.5
10 Black Asian Minority Ethnic population (2011) % 2 58 202 24 * | 333
11 Religious population {2011) % 545 66.6 63.1 488 *| 842
12 Divorced or separated (2011) % 14.8 12.9 116 77 | +* [ ] 16.3
13 Same-sex civil parnership (2011) % 03 0.2 0.2 1] 0 1.7
Wider determinants
14 Owercrowded households (2011) % 76 L, 3.7 25 +8| 349
15 Living in private rented accomodation (2011) % 232 171 16.8 9.2 P o 307
16 Living in social rented accomodation (2011) % 81 134 177 7 * | 437
17 Living in fuel poverty (2014) % 116 10.8 10.6 a7 ro 204
18 Living in most indoor deprived areas {2015) % 457 311 207 0 | » ® 100
19 No car or van access (2011) % 2585 241 258 g + 69.4
20 Poor proficiency in English (2011) % 0.3 05 1.7 0.1 » | a7
21 Total crime (14/15-16/17) Rate B65.7 - 731 451+ e | 104.3
22 Domestic abuse (13/14-15/16) Rate 17.1 240 221 9.4 ® | » 384
23 Anti-social behaviour (13/14-15/16) Rate 375 - 311 159 ¢ | ® 781
Health and service usage
24 Bad health status and long-term health problem (2011) % 58 50 42 2 | » @ 3
25 Living in areas with most mood/anxiety disorders (2015) % 337 238 197 0 | « L} 56.2
26 Urgent care attendances (14/15-16/17) DSR 39,2600 37,500.0| 354500 0 | @ 0
27 Emergency non-elective admissions (14/15-16/17) DSR 11,975.0 11,141.7| 10,606.5 1] |+® 1]
28 Elective admissions (14/15-16/17) DSR 17,9958 | 20,264.1| 18,939.0 0 |+ 0
28 Emergency readmissions within 30 days (14/15-16M17) DSR - - - 04 1]
30 Ambulance 'see and convey' to hospital (14/15-16/17) DSR 10,8279 = = 04 1]
® Sigworse @ Sig better Mot sig diff @ Sig higher Sig lower Sig not calculated | England Average # CIFFA 20 to Q1 Q1 to Q3 Q3 to Q04
Indicator notes: 17. % of households living in fuel poverty “Low income, High Cost” measure [DECC]
1. Average age for the total population [ONS] 18. % of population living in areas amongst 20% most indoor environment deprived in
2. % of dependents (<15 & 65+yrs) per working population [ONS] England [DCLG]
3. Years of male life expectancy from birth [PCMD; ONS, PHE] 19. % of households with no cars/vans available for use by household [CENSUS]
4. VYears of female life expectancy from birth [PCMD; ONS, PHE] 20. % of population who cannot speak English or speak English well [CENSUS]
5. Years of male disability free life expectancy from birth [PHE Local Health] 21. Rate of total crimes per 1,000 population [Data.Police.UK]
6. Years of female disability free life expectancy from birth [PHE Local Health] 22. Rate of domestic abuse crime per 1,000 population [Police universal dataset]
7. Directly age standardised (DSR) all-cause mortality rate per 100,000 [PCMD; ONS] 23. Rate of antisocial behaviour per 1,000 population [Data.Police.UK]
8. DSR all-cause premature (<75yrs) mortality rate per 100,000 [PCMD; ONS, PHE] 24. % reporting bad health status and long-term health problem/disability [CENSUS]
9. % of population living in areas amongst 20% most deprived in England [DCLG] 25. % of population living in areas amongst 20% most mood and anxiety deprived in
10. % of population reporting to be Black Asian Minority Ethnic (BAME) [CENSUS] England [DCLG]
11. % of population reporting to have a religion [CENSUS] 26. DSR urgent care (ED & MIU) attendances per 100,000 population [HES; ONS]
12. % of population reporting to be divorced or separated [CENSUS] 27. DSR emergency non-elective admissions per 100,000 population [HES; ONS]
13. % of population reporting to be in a same-sex civil partnership [CENSUS] 28. DSR elective admissions per 100,000 population [HES; ONS]
14. % of households with 1 room or fewer than required for occupants [CENSUS] 29. DSR emergency readmissions within 30 days per 100,000 population [HES; ONS]
15. % of households who privately rent accommodation [CENSUS] 30 DSR ambulance trips which result in a ‘see and convey’ to hospital [SWAST]
16. % of households who socially rent accommodation [CENSUS]
: . : P% 1691 o 25
Larger copies of the profiles are available at .Southdevonandtorbay.info/jsha



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

POPULATION OVERVIEW

A'Joint Strategic
] Needs Assessment

Highlights from the overview profile:

e Torbay’s aged population has further challenges in higher levels of dependency. Where
there are higher levels of dependent population per working age population. This is
important with regards to the potential workforce within Torbay.

e Torbay has one of the highest levels of divorced or separated in the country.

e There are higher proportions of the population living in the private rented sector and lower
levels living in social housing in Torbay.

e Rates of reported crime and domestic abuse are lower in Torbay, whilst levels of anti-
social behaviour are higher.

e There are high levels of self-reported bad health in the population, and a lot of people
living with mood or anxiety disorders.

e There are higher rates of emergency admissions to hospital and lower levels of elective

admissions.
Mortality

At different stages of life, there are different leading causes of mortality. Overall, circulatory
related diseases are the leading cause of mortality in the Torbay population and account for
around 1 in 4 deaths.

Table 5: Leading cause of death in Torbay (Apr 2012 to Mar 2017) all persons

Age 1st ond 3rd Total deaths by
age group
Nervous svstem Sudden infant
1to 19 Perinatal (7) y death syndrome 31
®) )
20to 34 Suicide (17) Cancer (8) Circulatory (5) 55
351049 Cancer (61) Circulatory (45) Suicide (27) 207
50 to 64 Cancer (323) Circulatory (168) @ Respiratory (89) 769
6510 79 Cancer (925) Circulatory (613) @ Respiratory (321) 2,358
Circulatory .
80+ (1,612) Cancer (959) Respiratory (855) 5,487
Circulatory Respiratory
All ages (2,444) Cancer (2,278) (1.282) 8,899

Source: Primary Care Mortality Database, Open Exeter

Page 161

26




POPULATION OVERVIEW ]{&mim Strategic

Needs Assessment

Population segmentation

Mosaic is a dataset produced by Experian as a cross-channel consumer classification system
designed to help users understand the demographics, lifestyles, preferences and behaviours of
the UK adult population in detail. This is achieved by allocating individuals and households (by
postcode) into one of 15 ‘Groups’ and 66 detailed ‘Types’. Using postcode data from the 2015

GP registration database, the top three Mosaic groups in Torbay are:

1. F Senior Security (Elderly people with assets who are enjoying a comfortable retirement)
19.6% of postcodes in Torbay - Senior Security are elderly singles and couples who are still living
independently in comfortable homes that they own. Property equity gives them a reassuring level
of financial security. This group includes people who have remained in family homes after their
children have left, and those who have chosen to downsize to live among others of similar ages

and lifestyles

2. L Transient Renters (single people privately renting low cost homes for the short term) -
14.5% of postcodes in Torbay - Transient Renters are single people who pay modest rents for
low cost homes. Mainly younger people, they are highly transient, often living in a property for
only a short length of time before moving on. Households in this group are typically aged in their
20s and 30s and are either living alone or house-sharing. Very few people are married and there

are few children.

Figure 39: Mosaic groups (based on postcodes) across Torbay

Your area or hle -0::'. -
/Torbay compared to England population :g-:if EX Perlan\

ymparison area or fil Mosaic Public Sector
National - England (Population)

Date: 01/10/2017

Mosaic Public Sector classifies all consumers inthe United Kingdom by allocating them to one of 15 Groups and 66 Types. These paint a rich
picture of UK citizens in terms of their socio-economic and socio-cultural behaviour.

J Rental Hubs 302 907 3959916 7.36 0.01 123
K Modest Traditions 243 730 2411770 448 0.01 163

L Transient Renters 484 1453 3438627 639 0.01 227

Mosaic Public Sector Groups Your arealfile % Comp. % Pen. % Index
0 100 200

IA Country Living 38 114 3203337 595 0.00 19

I B Prestige Positions 215 645 3923430 729 0.01 89

IC Gty Prosperity 6 018 2418976 450 0.00 4

I D Domestic Success 132 39 4698954 873 0.00 45
E Suburban Stability 291 874 3270026 608 0.01 144
F Senior Security 652 1957 4401414 818 0.01 239

I]G Rural Reality 30 090 2905648 540 0.00 17
H Aspiring Homemakers 314 943 5164013 960 0.01 98
| Urban Cohesion 75 225 3486375 648 0.00 35

I

[

I

IM Famiy Basics 162 486 4347048 808 000 60

N Vintage Value 353 1060 3091881 575 0.01 184

O Municipal Challenge 34 102 3091844 575 0.00 18

\ Page.db2 w w

27




Needs Assessment

STARTING AND DEVELOPING WELL OVERVIEW ]%Joimsmaic

Starting and developing well overview

This section brings together key information around Torbay’s younger population. It includes
population estimates for the 0 to 24 year old population, as well as presenting key challenges and
outcomes for the population. The section is presented in two parts, starting well and developing
well. Starting well is about understanding the needs of the population from pregnancy, birth and
for the first few years of life. Developing well is about understanding the needs of the population
between the ages of 5 and 17.

Population

Population projections suggest the number of births in Torbay will average around 1,400 per
year. However, over the next 10 to 12 years, the number of children of school age is expected to
increase. Most acutely in secondary school provision, with an estimated 1,000 more in the
population aged 12 to 16 between 2017 and 2030.

Table 6: population projections for the 0 to 24’s in Torbay

Age group 2017 2018 2019 2020 2025 2030

Maternity (births) 1,410 1,420 1,420 1,420 1,410 1,400
Early Years (0 to 4) 7,160 7,110 7,110 7,140 7,180 7,090
Primary School (5to 11) 9,920 10,150 10,230 10,240 10,230 10,340
Secondary School (12 to 16) 6,620 6,760 6,920 7,080 7,690 7,640
17 to 18 year olds 2,960 2,720 2,600 2,700 3,030 3,250
19 to 24 year olds 7,810 7,680 7,580 7,320 6,870 7,660

Source: NOMIS, 2016 Mid-Year estimates, 2014 based subnational population projections

Figure 40: Population projections for 0 to 24’s in Torbay

(40,000 )

35,000
30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
5,000

0

2017 2018 2019 2020 2025 2030

 Maternity (births) M Early Years (0 to 4)
i Primary School (5 to 11) M Secondary School (12 to 16)

17 to 18 year olds i 19 to 24 year olds
\. J

Source: NOMIS, 2016 Mid-Year estimates, 2014 based subnational population projections

Page 163 28




STARTING AND DEVELOPING WELL OVERVIEW

J

A'Jomt Strategic
Needs Assessment

How to read the profile: The black line running down the middle of the spine chart is the England
average, the circles (to the left or right) are the Torbay value, compared to the England average,
The diamonds represent the CIPFA average. The colours are explained in the key.
Figure 41: Starting well overview profile
1D Indicator Measure Torbay CIPFA England England
Demography
1 General fertility (2013-15) Rate 63.5 60.5 62.3 334 *| 348
2 Infant mortality (2010-16) Rate 4.2 37 3.9 2 +| 7.9
3 Children in low income famillies (2014) % 236 206 201 1] e 40
4 Dependants in lone parent households (2011) % 257 236 222 53 EX ] 408
Social care and support
5 Domestic abuse with children present (14/15-16/17) Rate 16.4 - - 04 1]
6 Long-term health problem/disability (2011) % 29 2.3 21 1 | » [ ] 33
7 Special educational needs and disabilities (2018) % 78 57 56 1.2 » ] 12
4 Children in need (2014-16) Rate 593.8 - - o4 o
9 Children with child protection plans (2013-18) Rate 923 - - 04 1]
10 Looked after children (2013-16) Rate 367 428 341 0 |+ L J 1347
11 Torbay safeguarding hub gueries (2014-18) Rate 265.8 - - o4 1]
Best start in life
12 Smoking at time of delivery (14/15-16M17) % 18.3 157 11.3 1.8 | *+ 0 26
13 Low birth weight babies (2012-16) % 31 2.4 2.8 1.3 L | 4.8
14 Breastfeeding initiation (14/15-16/17) % T70.2 67.7 74.0 47.2 +@ | 100
15 Breastfeeding prevalence at 6-5 weeks (14/M15-16/17) % 436 36.8 432 18 + | 76.5
16 Received MMR vaccine (2 dose) (14/15-16/17) % 92.0 91.9 23.4 56.5 | ® 958.6
17 Children offered Ages and Stages Questionnaire (2016/17) % 328 20.9 21.3 19 4 100
18 Achieved good level of development (14/15-16/17) % 63.5 659 654 597 [ T78.7
19 FSM children achieving good level of development (14/15-16/17) % 49.0 437 49.8 41 *| 721
20 Achieved expected level in phonics screening (14/15-16/17) % 780 775 772 745 [ 3 891
21 FSM children achieving expected level in phonics screening (1415-16M17) | % 68.2 G64.3 64.6 53.2 4 @ 4.2
Health and service usage
22 Prevelance of excess weight (14/15-16/17) % 24.4 236 222 14.3 | +® 30.1
23 Dental extractions due to caries (14/15-16/17) % 0.6 0.2 0.2 0 + [ ] 1.2
24 Unintentional and deliberate injuries (14/15-16M17) Rate 1339 1474 1308 56 | » 2542
25 Urgent care attendances (14/M15-16/17) Rate 52,602.3| 59,187.58| 57,5249 o o
26 ED attendances (no investigation, treatment or follow up) (14/15-1617) Rate 11.452.1 4,804 .4 48205 3431 + @ 12077
27 Emergency non-elective admissions {(14/15-16/17) Rate 154410 | 17,777.3| 152747 1] P e 1]
28 Emergency admissions for ACS conditions (14/15-16/17) Rate 4235 3851 3694 1] |+ 1]
20 Elective admissions (14/15-16/M17) Rate 60516 57052 56849 1] e 1]
30 Ambulance 'see and convey' to hospital (14/15-16M7) Rate 8,28249 = = 04 1]
® Sigworse @ Sig better Mat sig diff @ Sig higher Sig lower Sig not calculated | England Average #  CIPFA 0 to Q1 Q1 to Q3 Q3 to Q4
Indicator notes: 15. % of infants being totally or partially breastfeed at 6-8wks [TSDNHSFT; PHE]
1. General fertility rate per 1,000 females aged 15-44 years [Vital Statistics; ONS] 16. % of children receiving 2 dose MMR vaccine before 5th birthday [TSDFT, PHE]
2. Infant mortality rate (<1 year) per 1,000 live births [PCMD; Vital Statistics; PHE] 17. % of children (2-2.5yrs) who received ASQ-3 as part of review [TSDFT; PHE]
3. % of children living in families in receipt of Child Tax Credit whose reported income is 18. % of children reaching expected level in early learning goals [Torbay UA; PHE]
less than 60% of the median income or in receipt of IS or JSA [HMRC] 19. As above (18) with free school meal eligibility (FSM) [Torbay UA; PHE]
4. % of youngest dependent child (0-4yrs) living in lone parent household [CENSUS] 20. % of children reaching expected level in phonics screening [Torbay UA; PHE]
5. Rate of domestic abuse crimes with children present per 1,000 <19 yrs. population. 21. As above (20) with free school meal eligibility (FSM) [Torbay UA; PHE]
[Local Police Minimum Dataset (Torbay UA); ONS] 22. % of children (4-5yrs) who are overweight & very overweight [Torbay UA; PHE]
6. % of children <5yrs with limited day-to-day activity [CENSUS] 23. % <5yrs with a hospital dental extraction due to caries [HES- NHSD; ONS, PHE]
7. % of children <5yr with statements/EHCPs or SEN Support [Torbay UA; DfE] 24. Rate of hospital admissions for injuries per 100,000 <5yrs population [HES- NHSD;
8. Rate of children in need (<5yrs) per 1,000 <5yr population [Torbay UA; ONS; DfE] ONS; PHE]
9. Rate of children on child protection plans (<5yrs) per 1,000 <5yr population [Torbay 25. Rate of ED & MIU attendances per 100,000 <5yrs pop [HES- NHSD; ONS]
UA; ONS; DfE] 26. Rate of ED attendances with no investigation, treatment or follow up (disposal code =
10. Rate of looked after children (<5yrs) per 1,000 <5yrs pop [Torbay UA; ONS; DfE] ‘03’ & SUSHRG code = ‘VB11Z’) per 100,000 <5yrs pop [HES- NHSD; ONS]
11. Rate of safeguarding queries for children <5yrs per 1,000 <5yrs pop [MASH; ONS] 27. Rate of hospital emergency admissions per 100,000 <5yrs pop [HES- NHSD; ONS]
12. % of maternities where mother reported smoking at birth [TSDNHSFT; PHOF] 28. Rate of hospital emergency admissions for ambulatory care sensitive conditions per
13. % of term babies (37+weeks) born <2500g [TSDNHSFT; PHOF] 100,000 <5yrs population [HES- NHSD; ONS]
14. % of women giving birth who initiate breastfeeding in first 48hrs [TSDFT; PHE] 29- Rate of elective admissions per 100,000 <5yrs population [HES- NHSD; ONS]
0. Rate of ambulance call outs which are taken to hospital <5yrs [SWAST; ONS]
Larger copies of the profiles are available E@Q/@ ;tﬁlﬂ']devonandtorbav info/jsna 29



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

Needs Assessment

STARTING AND DEVELOPING WELL OVERVIEW J{A,Joimstrategic

Highlights from the starting well overview profile:

e Torbay experiences higher proportions of children living in poverty

e Children in Torbay have higher levels of long term health problems or disability

e Torbay has amongst the highest rates of looked after children in England

e 1in 5 mothers in Torbay smoke during pregnancy

e Excess weight in reception age children is high, with 1 in 4 being overweight or obese

e Fewer children achieve a good level of development in Torbay

Highlights from the Developing well overview profile:

e There are higher levels of dependent children living in lone parent households

e Torbay has higher rates of under 18 conceptions

e Around 1in 5 of school aged children have a special educational need in Torbay

e More children provide levels of unpaid care and support in Torbay

e Levels of statutory children’s services support are significantly higher in Torbay

e Children in schools in Torbay have higher levels of absenteeism

e There are higher levels of hospital admissions for young people in Torbay — particularly

self-harm and injuries

Page 165 30




STARTING AND DEVELOPING WELL OVERVIEW TR o sustesc

Needs Assessment

How to read the profile: The black line running down the middle of the spine chart is the England
average, the circles (to the left or right) are the Torbay value, compared to the England average,

The diamonds represent the CIPFA average. The colours are explained in the key.

Figure 42: Developing well overview profile

1D Indicator Measure Torbay CIPFA England England
Demography
1 Mortality (2010-16) DSR 19.7 20.6 19.3 o |+ 0
2 Children in low income famillies (2014) % 230 201 19.9 0 o 40
3 Children eligible for free school meals (FSM) (14/15-16/17) % 162 142 152 22 ] 365
4 Dependants living in a lone parent household (2011) % 355 316 30.8 17 L 55
5 Teenage conceptions (2014-18) Rate 275 24.8 227 57 |+ ® 438

Social care and support

6 Special education needs and disabilities (2014-16) % 203 16.0 15.9 10.8 £ 3 ® 245
7 Unpaid carers (2011) % 32 27 25 0.4 E3 ] 38
2 First time entrants to youth justice system (2014-18) Rate 4956 346.1 368.3 97.5 *| [ ] 739.6
9 Domestic abuse where children are present {14/15-16/M17) Rate 16.4 - - 04 o
10 Children in need (2014-16) Rate 559.0 364.2 3220 151 | [ ] 700.7
11 Children with child protection plans (2014-18) Rate 584 476 404 1] |+ ® 126.9
12 Looked after children (2014-16) Rate 1127 71.8 59.9 o | « L ] 164
13 Torbay safeguarding hub gueries (2014-16) Rate 2527 - - 04 0
Wider determinants
14 Key stage 2 meeting expected standard (14/15-16/17) % 510 533 538 42 .4 4 803
15 GCSE achieved (5A™-C inc. English & Maths) (14/15-16/17) % 55.4 57.0 57.5 443 [ 1] 746
16 Pupil absence (14/15-16/17) % 47 4.4 43 3.2 ¢« ® 55
17 Mot in education, employment or training (NEETS) {2014-16) % 45 50 47 o |+ 749
18 Claiming Jobseekers Allowance/Universal Credit (2015-17) % 27 31 23 0 |oe 77
Health and service usage
19 Prevalence of excess weight (14/15-16/17) % 331 331 336 229 +| 434
20 Prevalence of regular smokers (2009-12) % 10.4 9.5 3.8 3.2 | 149
21 HPV vaccination coverage (14/15-16/17) % 792 863 851 437 3 991
22 Chlamydia detection (14M15-16/17) Rate 24172 2,258.0 1,943.9 8131 | » 4,838.3
23 Dental extraction due to caries (14/15-16/17) % 0.9 0.4 0.3 1] (K2 [ ] 1.4
24 Unitentional and deliberate injuries (14/15-16/17) Rate 162 4 1331 1118 104 | « @ 2601
25 Emergency self-harm admissions (14/15-16/17) DSR 9325 E31.8 407.1 102.5 | » [ ] 14447
26 Alcohol-specific admissions (14/15-16/17) Rate 54.3 497 341 10.8 | - 11541
27 Urgent care attendances (14/15-16/17) DSR 447332 | 416128 36,8827 0 | +@ o
28 Emergency non-elective admissions (14/15-16/M7) DSR 7.260.9 5,737.0 4,983.7 1] | » L ] o
29 Elective admissions {14/15-16/17) DSR T,025.9 5,982.2 5,340.5 o |+ @ 0
30 Ambulance 'see and convey' to hospital (14/15-16M17) DSR 6,319.5 - - 6,319.5 4 §,319.5
@ Sigworse @  Sig better Mot sigdiff @  Sig higher Sig lower Sig not calculsted | England Average # CIPFA 0d to Q1 Q1to Q3 Q3 to Q4
Indicator notes:
1. Directly age standardised rate (DSR) of all-cause mortality per 100,000 population 14. % of Key Stage 2 meeting expected in reading, writing & maths [Torbay UA]
[PCMD; ONS] 15. % of GCSEs achieved (%A*-C including English and maths) [Torbay UA]
2. % <20yrs living in families in receipt of Child Tax Credit whose reported income is 16. % of possible school sessions with an unauthorised or authorised absence [DfE]
less than 60% of the median income or in receipt of IS or JSA [HMRC] 17. % of 16-18yrs not in education, employment or training [PHE]
3. % of children eligible for free school meals (FSM) [Torbay UA] 18. % (16-24yrs) claiming Job Seekers Allowance [DWP, ONS]
4. % of youngest dependent child (5-18yrs) living in a lone parent household [CENSUS] 19. % of children (10-11yrs) who are overweight or very overweight [Torbay UA; PHE]
5. Rate of teenage conceptions per 1,000 female pop aged 15-17yrs [TSDFT; PHE] 20. % of children (15yrs) who are regular smokers [Way Survey, PHE]
6. % of children (5-19yrs) with statements/EHCPs or SEN Support [Torbay UA; DfE] 21. % of girls (13-14yrs) who received second dose of HPV vaccine [TSDFT; PHE]
7. % of unpaid carers (care 1+hrs per week) under 25 years [CENSUS] 22. Rate of chlamydia detection per 100,000 aged 15-24yrs [PHE]
8. Rate of 10-17yrs receiving first reprimand, warning or conviction per 100,000 23. % aged 5-18yrs with a hospital dental extraction due to caries [HES- NHSD; ONS]
population [PHE] 24. Rate of admissions for injuries per 100,000 5-18yrs pop [HES—-NHSD; ONS]
9. Rate of domestic abuse crimes with children present per 1,000 <19 yrs. population. 25. DSR of emergency self-harm admissions per 100,000 10-24yrs [HES-NHSD; ONS)
[Local Police Minimum Dataset (Torbay UA); ONS] 26. Rate of alcohol specific admissions per 100,000 <18yrs [HES-NHSD; ONS; PHE]
10. Rate of children in need (<19yrs) per 1,000 pop <19yrs [Torbay UA; ONS; DfE] 27. DSR of ED & MIU attendances per 100,000 5-24yrs pop [HES- NHSDigital; ONS]
11. Rate of children on child protection plans (<19yrs) per 1,000 population <19yrs 28. DSR of emergency admissions per 100,000 5-24yrs pop [HES- NHSDigital; ONS]
[Torbay UA; ONS; DfE] 29. DSR of elective admissions per 100,000 5-24yrs population [HES- NHSD; ONS]
12. Rate of looked after children (<19yrs) per 1,000 pop <19y [Torbay UA; ONS; DfE] 30 DSR of ambulance call outs taken to hospital per 100,000 5-24yrs [SWAST; ONS]

13. Rate of safeguarding queries for children <19yrs per 1,000 pop <19y [MASH; ONS]

Larger copies of the profiles are available ﬁ m.g&@devonandtorbav.info/isna 31



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

STARTING AND DEVELOPING WELL OVERVIEW J{f’fﬂﬂlﬁ?:ﬁiem

Children’s statutory services in Torbay

The rate of children looked after, and the rate of children engaged in statutory services is higher
in Torbay compared to comparative areas and the national average. There are a number of
challenges for the children of Torbay, as highlighted in the profiles, and the local authority’s
children’s service is currently rated as inadequate at a time when the number of children on child

protection plans increase.

As a hierarchy of need, children looked after (CLA) are considered top of the list of need. These
are children who are given accommodation away from their families at the request of their parent
and those in care as the result of a Care Order. These are the most vulnerable children, and for

the local authority, represent a significant cost.

Opportunities to prevent or reduce the flow of children entering statutory services could be
considered from the perspective of going upstream and understanding potential causal factors. A
specific needs assessment of children entering children’s services would enable understanding of

these factors allowing opportunity to commission services to intervene and prevent.

Figure 43: levels of need with counts of children in Torbay (2017)
4

4 )

LEVEL 4 - Statutory services

Children Looked After (CLA)

Child Protection Plan (CPP)
Children In Need (CIN)

_ R T )
i e ———— )
S J

Source: gov.uk

Table 7: Counts and rates of children (per 10,000 aged under 18) in Torbay over time

Child Protection

Children looked after Children in Need
vear Rate per Plalg;e per Rate per

Count 10,000 Count 10,000 Count 10,000
2013 305 122 176 70.8 1,513 576.9
2014 315 126 166 66.6 1,843 701.9
2015 305 122 151 60.2 1,555 585.8
2016 280 111 130 51.5 1,180 438.9
2017 285 112 212 84.0 1,196 445.0

Source: gov.uk

Page 167 32




Needs Assessment

STARTING AND DEVELOPING WELL OVERVIEW ]%Joims"areaic

Over recent years, there has been a significant reduction in the number of children in need in
Torbay, however there has also been a significant increase in children on child protection plans,

while the number of children looked after remains fairly static.

Figure 44: Counts of children in services in Torbay over time

(2,000 )

1,800 e
1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600
0o - - —

200+ ———— d Vj—
0 ; ; ; ; .

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

==@==_Children looked after =fll=Child Protection Plans Children in Need
\. J

Source: gov.uk

Rates of children looked after in Torbay have reduced slightly over the last five years, but not
significantly. The rates remain significantly higher than the England and comparator group

averages.

Analysis of local authority data shows a distinct social gradient associated with children looked
after (fig 46), with rates in communities with higher levels of deprivation being significantly higher

than less deprived communities.

Figure 45: Rates per 10,000 CLA Figure 46: Rate of CLA per 10,000
(160 ) (150 ~

160

B Y R PR

100

140 - T

120 -
20 100 -
60 - 80 7 T
40 60 —
20 - 40

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 0 . . : :
Q2 Q3 Q4

Q1 (most Q5 (least
deprived) deprived)

—t
—

M England | CIPFA u Torbay
. J \_

Source: Gov.uk. Table LAALl: Children looked after at 31 March, by local authority; local authority data from
Children’s services

Page 168 33




Needs Assessment

STARTING AND DEVELOPING WELL OVERVIEW ]%,Joimsmaic

Rates of children subject to a child protection plan in Torbay increased significantly in 2017
compared to the last five years. The rate has fluctuated in recent years and is now again

significantly higher than the England and comparator group averages.

Analysis of local authority data shows a distinct social gradient associated with children who were
subject to a child protection plan (fig 48), with rates in communities with higher levels of

deprivation being significantly higher than less deprived communities.

Figure 47: Rate of children who were the Figure 48: Rate of CPP per 10,000 in Torbay
subject of a child protection plan at 31 March by deprivation
per 10,000 children

(120 ) (160 )
100 140
120 -
80
100 -
60 20 -
40 - 60 - T
T
20 - 40 -
20 T
° L
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 0+ T T T T |
land b Q1 (most Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 (least
H Englan H CIPFA u Torbay deprived deprived
q ) L prived) prived)

Source: Gov.uk. Table D1: Numbers of children who were the subject of a child protection plan

Rates of children in need in Torbay have reduced significantly over the last five years. The rates

remain significantly higher than the England and comparator group averages.

Analysis of local authority data shows a distinct social gradient associated with children in need in
Torbay (fig 50), with rates in communities with higher levels of deprivation being significantly

higher than less deprived communities.

Figure 49: Rate of children in need per 10,000 Figure 50: Rate of CIN per 10,000

(900 ) (800 )
800 700 -
700 I 600
600 I I
500 -
500
I "
400 - 400 -
300 300 T
200 -+ 200 - T
100 -
100 -
0 -
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 0 - T T T T
Eneland CIPEA Torb Q1 (most Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 (least
HEnglan = i Torbay deprived deprived
. J \_ P ) P ) J

Source: Gov.uk. Table B1: Numbers of children in need

Page 169 34




LIVING AND WORKING WELL OVERVIEW ]%JointStrategic

Needs Assessment

Living and working well overview

This section brings together key information around Torbay’s working age population. It includes
population estimates for the working age population, as well as presenting key challenges and

outcomes for the population.
Population

Population projections suggest the number of working age people in Torbay will average around
1,400 per year. However, over the next 10 to 12 years, the number of children of school age is
expected to increase. Most acutely in secondary school provision, with an estimated 1,000 more
in the population aged 12 to 16 between 2017 and 2030.

Table 8: Population projections for 16 to 64’s with ratios of working age population to

dependent population (non-working age)

Age groups 2017 2018 2019 2020 2025 2030

Torbay's working age population (16 to 64) 76,673 76,463 76,345 76,273 75,714 74,642
Torbay’s non-working age population 57,808 58,613 59,345 60,093 64,095 68,498

Ratio of working age to dependent age population

Torbay 1.33 1.30 1.29 1.27 1.18 1.09
England 1.69 1.67 1.65 1.64 1.56 1.48
CIPFA 1.49 1.47 1.45 1.43 1.34 1.25

Source: NOMIS, 2016 Mid-Year estimates, 2014 based subnational population projections

Figure 51: Population projections for 16 to 64’s in Torbay

(90,000 )

80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

H16to24 H25to34 wW35to44 HA45to54 wM55to64
\ J

Source: NOMIS, 2016 Mid-Year estimates, 2014 based subnational population projections

Page 170 35




LIVING AND WORKING WELL OVERVIEW sl rom s

Needs Assessment

How to read the profile: The black line running down the middle of the spine chart is the England
average, the circles (to the left or right) are the Torbay value, compared to the England average,
The diamonds represent the CIPFA average. The colours are explained in the key.
Figure 52: Living and working well overview profile
([n] Indicator Measure Torbay CIPFA England England
Wider determinants
1 No gualifications (2011) % 258 239 225 6.7 |+® 352
2 Living in most employment deprived areas (2015) % 398 253 19.7 o | » L ] 62.5
3 Claiming Jobseekers Allowance/Universal Credit (2015-17) % 20 2.0 1.8 0.4 e 5.4
4 Claimants of Employment Support Allowance (ESA) (20158-17) % a0 7.0 56 1.4 | + L ] 126
5 Claimants of ESA for mental health conditions (2015-17) % 45 34 27 0.9 | » L ] 6.6
& CAB debt queries {14/15-16/17) Rate 345 - - 04 o
7 Violent offences (14/15-16/17) Rate 271 = 7 67 |® 100.4
Social care and support
8 Unpaid carers (2011) % 15.0 15.2 13.7 7.7 | +® 17.3
9 Requests for adult social care support (14/15-16(17) Rate 1,758.5| 1,8300| 1,499.1 199.4 e 5837.5
10 Long-term support for leaming disability (14/15-16/17) Rate 4853 470.0 3824 1] | +@ 7436
11 Long-term support for physical personal care support (14/15-16/17) Rate 4220 2250 200.0 0 |+ ® 4505
12 Long-term support for mental health {14/15-16/17) Rate 2069 145.0 167.5 1] +o 989.7
13 Permanent admissions to nursingiresidential homes {14/M15-16/17) Rate 14.4 16.4 13.3 1] |+ 56.8
Health and service usage
14 Mortality from causes considered preventable (2011-16) Rate 176.8 203.7 1845 114 | 3205
15 Prevalence of smoking (2015) % 171 16.3 15.5 9.5 | *® 26.8
16 Prevalence of binge drinking {2006-03) % 18.0 225 201 7.5 o] + 337
17 Prevalence of obesity (2006-08) % 278 26.0 240 13.7 | » ® 307
18 Prevalence of depression (2015) % 69 6.8 6.6 1] "] 1]
19 Prevalence of hypertension (2015) % 333 311 276 17.3 | *« @ 309
20 Prevalence of cardiovascular diseaze (2015) % 116 10.2 3.4 6.5 | * [ ] 126
21 Prevalence of chronic obstructive pulmonary disorder (2015) % 40 37 33 1.9 | @ 54
22 Prevalence of diabetes (2015) % 8.3 58 v 3.8 | @ 9.2
23 OCbesity related admissions (14/15-16/17) DSR 2,164.4 1,468.5 1,007.0 336 | * [ ] 2,931
24 Smoking attributable admissions (14/15-16/17) DSR 1,927.7 1,897.2 1,705.0 954.5 | ® 31418
25 Alcohol-related admissions (Marrow) (2014-18) DSR 835.2 7518 6361 380.9 | + @ 1,163.3
26 Urgent care attendances (14/15-16M17) DSR 35,556.3 | 32,5742 30,8371 o |le®@ 1]
27 Emergency non-elective admissions {(14/15-16/17) DSR 9,561.7 79724 7,261.2 0 IE ] 1]
28 Emergency admissions for ASC conditions (14/15-16/17) DSR 530.5 3391 3785 0 + | [ ] 0
29 Elective admissions (14/15-16/17) DSR 17.461.3 | 18,309.2 | 16,808.7 o [ 3 o
30 Ambulance 'see and convey' to hospital (14/15-16M17) DSR 8,3295 = = 04 1]
@ Sigworse @ Sig better Mot sigdiff @  Sig higher Sig lower Sig not calculated | England Average # CIPFA 00 to Q1 Q1to Q3 Q3 to 04
Indicator notes: 14. Directly age standardised rate (DSR) of mortality from causes considered preventable
1. % with no qualifications [CENSUS] (with public health intervention) per 100,000 pop [PCMD; ONS; PHE)
2. % of population (all ages) living in areas amongst 20% most employment deprived in 15. % age & sex modelled (local) prevalence of smoking 16yrs+ [IHS; ONS; PHE]
England [DCLG] 16. % modelled prevalence of binge drinking 16yrs+ [PHE Local Health]
3. % claiming Job Seekers Allowance/Universal Credit (16-64yrs) [NOMIS; ONS] 17. % modelled prevalence of obesity 16yrs+ [PHE Local Health]
4. % claiming Employment Support Allowance (ESA) 16-64 years [DWP; ONS] 18. % modelled prevalence (local) of depression 16yrs+ [Thomas et al, 2000; ONS]
5. % claiming ESA for a mental and behavioural disorders 16-64 years [DWP; ONS] 19. % modelled prevalence (local) of hypertension 16yrs+ [THIN 2006; ONS; PHE]
6. Rate of CAB debt queries per 1,000 16-64yrs pop[Torbay CAB; ONS] 20. % modelled prevalence (local) of CVD all ages [CPRD 2013; ONS; PHE]
7. Rate of violence against the person offences per 1,000 population (all ages) [Police 21. % modelled prevalence (local) of COPD 15yrs+ [HSE 2005; ONS; PHE]
Universal Dataset (Torbay UA); ONS] 22. % modelled prevalence of Type 1 and 2 diabetes 16yrs+ [HSE 2006; ONS; PHE]
8. % of unpaid carers (care 1+hrs per week) under 25-64 years [CENSUS] 23. DSR of obesity related admission episodes per 100,000 [HES-NHSD; ONS; NHSD]
9. Rate of requests for Adult Social Care (ASC) support for new clients aged 18-64 years 24. DSR of smoking attributable admissions per 100,000 35yrs+ (HES; ONS; PHE]
per 100,000 population aged 18-64 years [TSDNHSFT; NHS Digital] 25. DSR of admission episodes for alcohol-related conditions (Narrow) per 100,000 (all
10. Rate of ASC long-term support for learning disability aged 18-64 years per 100,000 ages) [HES-NHSD; ONS; PHE]
population aged 18-64 years [TSDNHSFT; NHS Digital] 26. DSR of ED & MIU attendances per 100,000 25-64yrs pop [HES- NHSDigital; ONS]
11. As indicator above for physical personal care [TSDNHSFT; NHS Digital] 27. DSR of emergency admissions for ambulatory care sensitive (ACS) conditions per
12. As indicator above for mental health [TSDNHSFT; NHS Digital] 100,000 16-64yrs population [HES- NHSD; ONS]
13. Rate of permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes per 100,000 28. DSR of emergency admissions per 100,000 25-64yrs pop [HES- NHSDigital; ONS]
population aged 18-64 years [TSDNHSFT; ASCOF- PHE] 29. DSR of elective admissions per 100,000 25-64yrs population [HES- NHSD; ONS]
30 DSR of ambulance call outs taken to hospital per 100,000 25-64yrs [SWAST; ONS]
Larger copies of the profiles are available zft) @%.é‘ozaﬂdevonandtorbav.|nfo/|sna 36



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

Needs Assessment

LIVING AND WORKING WELL OVERVIEW ]{&mimsmaic

Highlights from the living and working well overview profile:

e 1in 4 adults in the population do not have any formal qualifications

e Torbay has significantly higher levels of people on employment support allowance
¢ A high proportion of the population provided support as an unpaid carer

e Torbay has high levels of long-term support need in the population

e Prevalence of long term conditions are high in the population

e There are high levels of potentially avoidable lifestyle related hospital admissions
Housing

Torbay has a housing stock of around 64,370 household spaces. Occupancy of household
spaces is below the England average, with some 59,010 (91.7%) occupied with at least one
usual resident. This compares to 95.7% across England and 93.8% across CIPFA nearest

neighbours. This is to be expected given Torbay’s position as a seaside tourist destination.

More acutely for the population is the underrepresentation of social housing in the market. Torbay
has higher levels of private rented accommodation, and significantly lower social rented (fig 53).
Of the occupied housing stock, just under 1 in 3 dwellings are a flat, maisonette of apartment. A
more detailed analysis would be needed to understand if the planning policy and provision of

dwelling types are meeting the populations housing needs.

Figure 53: Tenure of dwellings Figure 54: Dwelling Types
(80% ) (35% A
70% 30% i 1
60% - 25%
20% -
50% -
15% -
40% -
10% -
30% 5% -
20% } 0% -
10% - Whole house or  Whole house or  Whole house or Flat, maisonette or
bungalow: bungalow: Semi- bungalow: apartment:
0% - Detached detached Terraced (including
Owned Social rented Private rented end-terrace)
H England H CIPFA u Torbay M England H CIPFA u Torbay
. J/ J

Source: NOMIS, 2011 Census

The quality of Torbay’s housing stock is relatively poor. Torbay has high levels of indoor
deprivation, identified in figure 55 with areas in red and dark blue. 45% of Torbay’s population live
in an area in the top 20% most deprived in England. The drivers for the indoor living environment
domain are: houses without central heating and houses in poor condition (do not meet the

Decent Home standard).

Page 172 37




Needs Assessment

LIVING AND WORKING WELL OVERVIEW J{A,Jointsnategic

Figure 55: Indoor deprivation in Torbay

/ THE ENGLISH INDICES OF DEPRIVATION 2015 \

RANK OF INDOORS DEPRIVATION

2015 Environment (sub-domain) )
Deprivation (LSOA rank)
B Top 10% in England (25)
B 10+%to 20% (15)

B 20+%to 30% (10)
[0 30+%to 40% (8)
0 40+%to 50% (8)
O 50+%to 60% (6)
[ 60+%to 70% (6)
0O 70+%to 80% (6)
[ 80+%to 90% (2)
[0 90+% to 100% 3)

— LSOA boundary

B

PublicHealth

ISCEE®

Source: UK D for C and Local 2015
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100022695

House prices in Torbay

House prices in Torbay have increased in recent years, and are at levels prior to the 2008
recession. The difference between the Torbay and England average house price has widened in

recent years. House prices, on average, cost £40,000 less in Torbay than the England average
(fig 57).

Figure 56: Median house price paid in Figure 57: Gap between England and Torbay
Torbay compared to England over time median house price

(EZS0,000 ) rfESO,OOO )

s £45,000
o M" £40,000
£35,000

£150,000
/ £30,000
£25,000

£100,000
/ £20,000
£50,000 - £15,000
£10,000 -
£- — T T T
n ~N 0 O O o &N g 1 W N W O 4 N M < 1n W £5r0007
2833255333883 aq c
O O L c W 4H QO Q9 5 Cc w4y 9 9 5 c w4y oo -
O o 2 5 3 8 9 o 2 35 35 L 90 2 5 35 L o
= = = wn - o~ O o~ ©
e SfIeow SR Z0e S 2200 8588855838858 33333433
O c 0 L L5 > c 5 Wwoas 2 9 c 05 s >c 5
England Torbay E8p22sz332382388pg28s373
§ J § J

Source: ONS

Page 173 38




Needs Assessment

LIVING AND WORKING WELL OVERVIEW ]{Mimsmgic

House prices may be lower; however earnings are also significantly lower than the average. This
gives Torbay a higher than average affordability ratio (fig 59). This means that it is harder for
people in Torbay to afford their own housing.

Earnings and employment

Average earnings for full time workers in Torbay are significantly lower than the England average.
Residents in Torbay earn the 4™ lowest earnings (full time annual gross pay) in England out of

152 local authority areas. The gap between the England and Torbay average is some £9.3k per
year (fig 58).

Figure 58: Gross annual pay - mean full time Figure 59 Ratio of average full time earnings

workers to house prices
™~

(EAU,UUU (9

8

£35,000 7

6

£30,000 -+ 5

4

£25,000 - 3

2

£20,000 - 1

£15,000 - 0
£10,000
£5,000 -
e |

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

M England o Torbay

England average

\_ J U J

Source: NOMIS, ONS

The levels of residents claiming JSA (job seekers allowance) has been reducing at a rate similar

to the national average. Around 1% of the working age population are currently claiming JSA.

Figure 60: Job seekers allowance

(‘6.0% )

5.0%

4.0% -

3.0% -

2.0% BT )

1.0%

0.0%

Dec 2004
Sep 2005 1
Jun 2006 E
Mar 2007 E
Dec 2007 E
Sep 2008 E
Jun 2009 E
Mar 2010 E
Dec 2010 E
Sep 2011 E
Jun 2012 E
Mar 2013 E
Dec 2013 E
Sep 2014 E
Jun 2015 E
Mar 2016 E
Dec 2016 E
Sep 2017 ]

=== England === C|PFA #==Torbay
. J

Source: NOMIS

As a tourist destination it is expected that Torbay would have higher levels of employment in the

distribution, hotels and restaurants sector (fig 61). Around 1 in 3 of those aged 16 to 64 in

Page 174 39




LIVING AND WORKING WELL OVERVIEW ]{Mimsmgic

Needs Assessment

employment work in public admin, education and health. There are significantly higher levels of
those in employment aged 16 to 64 being part time employment in Torbay compared to both

CIPFA nearest neighbours and the England average (fig 62).

Figure 61: % aged 16-64 in employment who Figure 62: % in employment working full-

work in: time or part time- aged 16-64
~N
(4ot ((80% )
35% - S
30% 70% =
25% !
20% 60% -
15% .
10% _ 50%
5% - v = 40%
0% |==m =
' = [-1s) = i) =] =1 = v
s 0§ £ ¢ T, 5§ 5 =23 ¢ 30% 1
7] =] 1= =1 [ Pl
€ < g = SE &E & 52§ 20% - S
2 c ) B ] >z g g = i
® © 2 5 = ® c 3 £ e L2 ® @
@ B g 3 5¢g EE S§ 3¢ = 10% -
5 s £ i 2 9 = £ ] 29 5] °
= g G Ex =8 £2 5% 5
2 2 28 T° £° gg = 0% -
2 =} kS ) )
G S g E ¢ Full-time Part-time
< »
H England HCIPFA i Torbay H England H CIPFA u Torbay
\ ) . J

Source: NOMIS, Annual population survey

Gross Value Added (GVA) measures the contribution to the economy of each individual
producer, industry or sector and is used in the estimation of Gross Domestic Product (GDP).
Based on GVA the local economy of Torbay is amongst the weakest in England (figure 63 shows
the relative contribution of Torbay compared to CIPFA neighbours). Recent figures from the
Office for National Statistics suggest Torbay’s economic worth in 2015, was in the region of
£2.081 billion, or around £15,600 per head of population. This compares to £18,127 per head
across CIPFA neighbours and £25,601 per head across England (figure 64).

Figure 63: Headline GVA per head indices at Figure 64: Gross Value Added (Income
current basic prices Approach) per head of population at current

basic prices

120 rESO, 000

100 £25,000

80 +& £20,000 M
H—W b=l

o —t D S 515,000W

20 £10,000 -

20 £5,000

£- L e e L B B
Ol B R }
Q2 @ 2 9 9

== =1
NN NN NN

0 T T T T T T T T T T 1
o o o
o O o
a O o
- N o~

1997
1998

& o0 o~
Qo o 9o 9O
o o O O
NN

2008
2009
2010
2014
2015

~ 0 O O
aQ O 9 9
a O O O
= = =~

2011
2012
2013
2001
2002
2003

[4]
o
[=]
~

2002

==p==nited Kingdom === CIPFA neighbours de=Torbay === Jnited Kingdom === C|PFA neighbours dr=Torbay
\. J/ \.

Source: ONS

Page 175 40




AGEING AND DYING WELL OVERVIEW

A.Joint Strategic
J Needs Assessment

Ageing and dying well overview

This section brings together key information around Torbay’s retirement age population. It
includes population estimates for the over 65 population, mortality forecasts as well as presenting

key challenges and outcomes for the population.
Population

Population projections suggest the number of people aged over 65 in Torbay will increase by
almost 10,000 by 2030. The largest increase is expected in those aged 80 to 84, which is
expected to see an increase of some 3,000, or a 62% increase on the current number.
Populations aged 85 and over are expected to increase by over 50% by 2030. These increases
are expected to increase demand on support services as increased people become frail towards

the end of their life.

Table 9: Population projections for the over 65’s

Age group 2017 2018 2019 2020 2025 2030
65 to 69 9,586 9,314 9,058 9,006 9,770 11,203
70to 74 9,339 9,723 9,890 9,908 8,763 9,548
75to 79 6,339 6,605 6,980 7,330 9,139 8,173
80 to 84 4,948 5,054 5,193 5,296 6,361 8,020
85to 89 3,099 3,166 3,260 3,364 3,917 4,851
90+ 2,043 2,062 2,072 2,102 2,512 3,188

Source: NOMIS, 2016 Mid-Year estimates, 2014 based subnational population projections

The number of people dying a year is expected to start increasing towards the end of the 2020’s.

Figure 65: population projections by age Figure 66: Estimated number of deaths in

group Torbay
(50,000 N\ (2500 )
45,000
40,000 - 2,000
35,000 -pmm— /_/_/
NS—
30,000 __ - 1,500
25,000
20,000
15,000 1,000
10,000
5,000 500
0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 0 L
™~ o0 [=)] o - o~ o < wn o ™~ 00 (=1} o - o o <t wn
H65t069 H70to74 ®75t079 ®E80to84 E85t089 @90+ S oo8 333838888388 33383888

Source: NOMIS, 2016 Mid-Year estimates, 2014 based subnational population projections

Page 176 a1




AGEING AND DYING WELL OVERVIEW sl rom s

Needs Assessment

How to read the profile: The black line running down the middle of the spine chart is the England
average, the circles (to the left or right) are the Torbay value, compared to the England average,

The diamonds represent the CIPFA average. The colours are explained in the key.

Figure 67: Ageing and dying well overview profile

1D Indicator Measure Torbay CIPFA England England
Demography
1 Age related dependency (2015) Ratio 438 36.1 275 a | » ® 509
2 Male life expectancy at 65 years (2013-15) Years 186 18.5 18.7 15.8 +| 214
3 Female life expectancy at 65 years (2013-15) Years 210 20.9 211 18.8 +| 239
4 Male excess winter deaths (2013-16) Ratio 344 29.4 26.5 -1 |e 61.1
5 Female excess winter deaths (2013-16) Ratio 300 326 292 91 | » 541
6 Deaths in usual place of residence (2014-16) % 54.4 49.9 46.6 241 | « @ 68.8
7 Persons living alone (2011) % 314 35 35 2549 + 50.8
Wider determinants
2 Living in most income deprived areas (2015) % 16.0 125 141 1] E ] 934
9 Claiming pension credit (2014-16) % 16.9 14.5 13.9 5.2 ke 342
10 Claiming attendance allowance (2014-18) Rate 1466 1315 129.7 78.7 [ ] 1928
11 CAB debt queries (14/15-16/17) Rate 8.5 - - 0% o
Social care and support
12 Unpaid carers (2011) % 15.9 14.6 14.3 10.2 |+ [ ] 16.5
13 Bad health with a long-term health problem/disability (2011) % 122 12.5 12.4 6.5 + 238
14 Requests for adult social care support (14/15-16M17) Rate 12,4017 15,055.0| 13,4897 3,056.8 1 786775
15 Long-term support for leaming disability (14/15-16/17) Rate 1829 155.0 1645 1] 4 1,029.2
16 Long-term support for physical personal care (14/15-16/17) Rate 35524| 35550( 3,8036 4847 »l 9,102.2
17 Long-term support for mental health (14/15-16M17) Rate 4735 4250 404 .1 329 » 28328
12 Long-term support for social isolationfother {14/15-16/17) Rate 1552 450 1156 o + o 300.2
4g Still at nome 91 days after discharge to reablementirenabilitation services | . 765 258 27 50 e Is 100
(14/15-16/17)
20 Permanent admissions to nursing/residential homes (14/15-16/17) Rate 5466 719.0 6232 123.4 | + 1,256.2
Health and service usage
21 Prevalence of dementia (2015) % 6.6 6.4 6.3 1] ¥ 1]
22 Prevalence of stroke (2015) % 27 26 20 1.3 | +@ 34
23 Flu vaccination coverage (14/15-16/17) % 66.7 71.2 71.4 48.6 e 4 781
24 Admissions due to falls (14/15-16M17) Rate 21971 2,168.7 2,175.6 1,236.8 + 34257
25 Urgent care attendances (14/M15-16M17) DSR 30,8576 | 41,4123 42,206.2 o 4 0
26 Emergency non-elective admissions (14/15-16/17) DSR 230829 242363 25106.2 o L] o
27 Emergency admissions for ACS conditions (14/15-16/M17) DSR 1,846.7 2,004.3 2,007.2 0 ot o
28 Elective admissions (14/15-16/17) DSR 35,162.3 | 45,586.8| 43,0007 o 3 0
29 Delayed transfers of care (14/15-16/17) Rate 56 0.0 0.0 o + 204
30 Ambulance "see and convey' to hospital {14/15-16/17) DSR 23,4731 - - 04 o
® Sigworse @ Sig better Mot sig diff @ Sig higher Sig lower Sig not calculated | England Average # CIFFA 20 to Q1 Q1 to Q3 Q3 to Q04
Indicator notes: 15. Rate of ASC long-term support for learning disability aged 65+yrs per 100,000
1. % of dependents (65+yrs) per working population (15-64yrs) [ONS] population aged 65+yrs [TSDNHSFT; NHS Digital]
2. Years of male life expectancy aged 65yrs+ [PCMD; ONS; PHE] 16. As indicator above for physical personal care [TSDNHSFT; NHS Digital]
3. Years of female life expectancy aged 65yrs+ [PCMD; ONS; PHE] 17. As indicator above for mental health [TSDNHSFT; NHS Digital]
4. Ratio of extra male deaths (65+) in winter months compared with the expected 18. As indicator above for social isolation/other [TSDNHSFT; NHS Digital]
number of deaths (average non-winter deaths) expressed as % [PCMD; PHE] 19. % 65+yrs still at home 91 days after discharge to reablement/rehabilitation services
5. Asindicator above for females. [PCMD; PHE] [TSDNHSFT; ASCOF- PHE]
6. % of deaths in usual place of residence [PCMD; PHE] 20. Rate of permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes per 100,000
7. % of persons living alone 65+yrs [CENSUS] population aged 65+yrs [TSDNHSFT; ASCOF- PHE]
8. % of 60+yrs living in areas amongst 20% most income deprived (affecting older 21. % modelled prevalence (local) of dementia 65+yrs [Matthews et al, 2013; ONS]
people 60+) in England [DCLG] 22. % modelled prevalence (local) of stroke all ages [BHF 2014; ONS]
9. % 60+yrs claiming Pension Credits [DWP; ONS] 23. % flu vaccination coverage aged 65yrs+ [PHE]
10. % 65+yrs claiming Attendance Allowance (in payment) [DWP; ONS] 24. Directly age standardised rate (DSR) of emergency admissions for injuries due to falls
11. Rate of CAB debt queries per 1,000 65yrs+ pop[Torbay CAB; ONS] per 100,000 65yrs+ [HES- NHSDigital, PHE]
12. % of unpaid carers (care 1+hrs per week) under 65+ years [CENSUS] 25. DSR ED & MIU attendances per 100,000 65yrs+ population [HES- NHSD; ONS]
13. % 65+yrs with bad health and a long-term health problem/disability [CENSUS] 26. DSR of emergency admissions per 100,000 65yrs+ pop [HES- NHSDigital; ONS]
14. Rate of requests for Adult Social Care (ASC) support for new clients aged 65+yrs per 27. DSR of emergency admissions for ACS conditions per 100,000 65yrs+ [HES-; ONS]
100,000 population aged 65+yrs [TSDNHSFT; NHS Digital] 28. DSR of elective admissions per 100,000 65yrs+ population [HES- NHSD; ONS]

29. Rate of delayed transfers of care aged 18+yrs [ASCOF- PHE]
0 DSR of ambulance call outs taken to hospital per 100,000 65yrs+[SWAST; ONS]

Larger copies of the profiles are available E M goZn?hdevonandtorbav info/jsna 42



http://www.southdevonandtorbay.info/jsna

Needs Assessment

AGEING AND DYING WELL OVERVIEW ]{A,Jointsnatcgic

Highlights from the ageing and dying well overview profile:

e Torbay has a high proportion of dependents (65+yrs) compared to those of working age;
e More people die in their own homes;

¢ Significantly more are claiming Attendance Allowance for physical or mental disability;

e There are significantly more unpaid carers;

e Less people are still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital (this is a negative);

e There are less permanent admissions to nursing or residential care;

e There is a higher prevalence of stroke;

e Torbay vaccination coverage for flu is worse;

e Admissions for chronic conditions that could be treated in the community are lower.

Long term conditions

People in more deprived communities tend to experience multiple long-term conditions and

generally have poorer health outcomes, such as shorter life expectancy.

Long-term conditions are those that, at present, cannot be cured but can be managed through
treatment and behaviour. These include conditions such as heart disease, diabetes and mental
health problems. People with long term conditions are the most frequent users of healthcare
services. Those with long-term conditions account for around 29% of the population, but use
around 50% of all GP appointments and 70% of all inpatient bed days. Long-term conditions fall
more heavily on the poorest in society: according to ONS people in the poorest social class have
60% higher prevalence of long-term conditions than those in the highest social class. Half of
people aged over 60 in England have a long-term condition. With an ageing population and the
growth of health harming behaviours such as physical inactivity, harmful alcohol consumption
and smoking, we would expect the prevalence of long-term conditions to rise unless checked.
The number of people with comorbidities (more than one health condition) is expected to rise by

a third in the next ten years.

As our population ages, we expect the number of frail people, people with, for example, limited
physical mobility, weakness, weight loss, slowness and low physical activity to increase,
specifically in our older age groups. The number of people with dementia is also expected to
increase over the coming years. Estimates for the counts of frail people and also those with

dementia are presented in figures 68 and 69.

Page 178 43




AGEING AND DYING WELL OVERVIEW Joint Strategic

Needs Assessment

Figure 68: Frailty estimates for Torbay Figure 69: Dementia estimates for Torbay

r7,CK)0 ) r4,500 )

W Aged 85+

4,000

W Aged 80-84
6,000 1 wAged 7579 |

W Aged 70-74 3,500

Aged 65-69
5,000 +—{ 9A8 ! = 3,000

2,500
4,000

2,000

3,000
1,500

1,000
2,000

500

1,000
0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035

0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035

HAged 60t0 64 WAged 65069 WAged 70t074 EAged 75t079 Aged 80to84 WAged85t089 wAged 90+
\ J

Source: ONS Sub-National Population Projections, 2014. Prevalence of frailty in community-dwelling older persons (Collard et al 2012) and
Dementia UK Prevalence Estimates, 2014

Adult social care

Adult social care is defined as including all forms of personal care and other practical assistance
provided for individuals aged 18 and over who, by reason of age, illness, disability, pregnancy,
childbirth, dependence on alcohol or drugs, or any other similar circumstances, are in need of
such care or other assistance . Some people need practical or emotional care or support to
lead an active life and do the everyday things that most of us take for granted. The social care
system provides this support for those who need it to help them keep their independence and
dignity. Adult social care services are commissioned through the upper tier local authorities of
Devon County Council and Torbay Council for the South Devon and Torbay population. Provider
organisations are responsible for assessing individuals need for ‘community care’ or ‘social care’
services 2. Community Care describes the services and support which help people to continue
to live independently at home, whilst social care services help people who are in need of support

due to illness, disability, old age or poverty. This could take place in residential settings.

The number of long term residential and nursing placements has been reducing over time as
alternative care models are implemented. That is the number of placements that the local
authority funds. The monthly trend is shown in fig 70. A model of future demand based on current
activity, and allowing for demographic change, suggests a continued slight reduction in LA
funded placements (fig 71).

Page 179 44




AGEING AND DYING WELL OVERVIEW

A,Joint Strategic
J Needs Assessment

residential

Figure 70: Long term residential and Figure 71: Long term and

nursing LA funded placements Torbay nursing LA funded placements Torbay

historical averages and future modelled
averages
' N
800 r2,500 )
700
W\_\_\ 2,000 >
0 T —,
s00 1500 T ——
400
1,000
300
200 500 — . __
100
0 T T T T T T T
0 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
583548353 835558382355 88833;B4¢8
\ 2012/13 201314 201415 2015/16 2016/17 \ Clients Rate per 100,000 J

Source: Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust

Mortality and end of life

The number of mortalities has increased in recent years in Torbay. The proportion of people

dying in hospital has increased slightly, as the proportion dying at home decreased.

Overall of all mortality over the period 15t Jan 2012 to 31t Dec 2016, around 4 in 10 people die in
hospital, 3 in 10 in a care home, 2 in 10 at home and 1 in 10 die either in a hospice, or

elsewhere.

Around 77% of mortalities in Torbay are expected (fig 73). This suggests a significant need for
palliative care, with around 1,370 people dying from expected deaths per year. However, the
primary care palliative care register has around 570 people on it, suggesting significant unmet

need.

Figure 72: Count of deaths over time by Figure 73: Proportion of mortalities that are

place of death expected
(2,000 )
1,800
1,600 L TOTAL MORTALITIES
1,400 8,844 (2012/16)
1,200
1,000
800 I
600 + +
400
202 EXPECTED MORTALITIES UNa‘g:ﬁ:i?Tf:sEST)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 6,837 (77.3%) 2,007 (22.7%)
W Care home W Hospice W Hospital & Home wOther places
L J

Source: PCMD, Murtagh et al (2014) &3

Page 180

45




REFERENCES J{A’J(’im Strategic

Needs Assessment

References

1. Sir Michael Marmot. (2010) Fair Society, Healthy Lives; The Marmot Review

2. NHS Confederation. (2011) The joint strategic needs assessment; a vital tool to guide

commissioning

3. Department of Health. (2011) Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and joint health and

wellbeing strategies explained; Commissioning for populations
4. Torbay Council (2013) Torbay Director of Public Health Annual Report

5. D, Kuh. Y, Shlomo. J, Lynch. J, Hallgvist. C, Power. (2003) Life course epidemiology. Journal
and Epidemiology Community Health 2003;57:778-783 doi:10.1136/jech.57.10.778

6. G, Dahlgren. M, Whitehead. (1991) Polices and strategies to promote social equity in health;
back ground document to WHO - strategy paper for Europe.

7. Department of Health (2006) The Local Government & Public Involvement Health Act 2007
8. Department of Health (2012) JSNAs & joint health and wellbeing strategies—draft guidance

9. Health Policy Brief (2014) The Relative Contribution of Multiple Determinants to Health

Outcomes. https://www.rwif.org/content/dam/farm/reports/issue briefs/2014/rwjf415185

10. Public health guideline [PH28] Looked-after children and young people

https://www.nice.org.uk/quidance/ph28/chapter/3-considerations

11. Source: Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust
12. Local government Ombudsman. http://www.lgo.org.uk/adult-social-care/

13. Murtagh et al (2014) http://journals.sagepub.com/doi/pdf/10.1177/0269216313489367

Page 181 46



https://www.rwjf.org/content/dam/farm/reports/issue_briefs/2014/rwjf415185
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph28/chapter/3-considerations
http://journals.sagepub.com/doi/pdf/10.1177/0269216313489367
http://journals.sagepub.com/doi/pdf/10.1177/0269216313489367

Page 182



r

]-

&

~N

A_Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment

J

HOBSON/JAN/18

Page 183



Agenda Item 11

Public Health Devon DQVOI’]

County Council

Health Protection Report for the Health and Wellbeing Boards
of Devon County Council, Plymouth City Council, Torbay
Council and Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly Councils

2016 - 2017

17 November 2017

A.,L.rém.rw oll

COUNCIL

ORBAY

& ISLES OF SCILLY COUNCIL i

Page 184 1

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL




Contents

I 0 11 o o ¥ [ox 1 o o PSP 3
2. AsSsUrance ArrangementsS .....coiev i 3
3. Prevention and Control of Infectious Diseases...........ccccceeeeeereenns 4
4 Immunisation and SCre@NING....ccccvuuie i e 7
5 Health Care Associated INfeCtionS.........cccovvviiiiiiiiiii e 17
6 Anti-microbial reSiStanCe........cccuiiiiiiiii e 19
7 Emergency planning and €XerCiSeS ......cccooveviriieeiiiieeeeiiieeeeiieeeenns 20
8 Work Programme 2016/17 - progress report .....cccoeeeeeeveeeeinnneennns 20
9 Priorities for the 2017/18 work programme .........cccceeevvvieeeeinneenns 21
1O AULNOTS . e 22
i €1 o 11T Y 22
D2 N o] o 1= Lo [ o =S 23
(1) Health Protection Committee reporting arrangements ................
(2) Infectious disease incidence and trends 2016-17.........................
(3) Immunisation performance 2016-17 .......ccccovevvieiiiieerieiiiine e
(4) National screening programmes - SUMMAry.....ccccccoeevveiieeeeeenennnnns
(5) Screening PerforManCe ........cveevieeuiiieeeeeeiiie e
(6) Healthcare association infections (HCAI) 2016-17 ...........ccccuuun....
(7) Anti-microbial resistance: trends and developments ..................

Page 185



11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

Introduction

This report provides a summary of the assurance functions of the Devon and Cornwall
Health Protection Committee and reviews performance for the period from 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2017, for the Health and Wellbeing Boards of Devon County Council, Plymouth
City Council, Torbay Council, Cornwall Council and the Council of the Isles of Scilly.

The report considers the following domains of health protection:

e Communicable disease control and environmental hazards;
¢ Immunisation and screening;
e Health care associated infections and anti-microbial resistance.

The report sets out:

e Structures and arrangements in place to assure performance;

e Performance and activity in all key areas during 2016-17;

o Actions taken to date against the programme of health protection work priorities
established by the committee for the period 2016 to 2017;

e Priorities for the work programme 2017/18.

Assurance Arrangements

On 1 April 2013, the majority of former NHS Public Health responsibilities transferred to
upper tier and unitary local authorities including the statutory responsibilities of the
Director of Public Health. Local authorities, through their Director of Public Health, require
assurance that appropriate arrangements are in place to protect the public’s health. The
scope of health protection in this context includes:

Prevention and control of infectious diseases;

National immunisation and screening programmes;

Health care associated infections;

Emergency planning and response (including severe weather and environmental
hazards).

The Health Protection Committee is formally mandated by the Health and Wellbeing
Boards of Devon County Council, Plymouth City Council, Torbay Council and Cornwall
Council and the Council of the Isles of Scilly.

The aim of the Health Protection Committee is to provide assurance to the Health and
Wellbeing Boards of Devon County Council, Plymouth City Council, Torbay Council,
Cornwall Council and the Council of the Isles of Scilly that adequate arrangements are in
place for prevention, surveillance, planning and response to communicable disease and
environmental hazards, required to protect the public’s health.

Terms of Reference for the Committee were agreed by Local Authority Directors of Public
Health, their Health Protection Lead Officers, and representatives from Public Health
England, NHS England Area Team and the Clinical Commissioning Groups.

By serving four Local Authorities, the Committee allows health protection expertise from
four public health teams to be pooled in order to share skill and maximise capacity. For

Page 186 3



2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

3.1

3.2

3.3

external partners whose health protection functions serve a larger geographic footprint,
this model reduces their need to attend multiple health protection meetings with similar
terms of reference and considers system-wide risk more efficiently and effectively.

The Committee has a number of health protection subgroups supporting it to identify risks
across the health protection system and agree mitigating activities for which the
Committee provides control and oversight. As illustrated in Appendix 1, these include:

Devon, Cornwall and Somerset Health Care Associated Infection Network;

Devon Antimicrobial Stewardship Group;

Cornwall Antimicrobial Resistance Group;

Health Protection Advisory Group for wider Devon;

Cornwall Directors of Infection Control Group;

Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly Screening and Immunisation Overview Groups;
Local Health Resilience Partnership.

Terms of Reference for each of these groups are regularly reviewed to ensure they reflect
the assurance arrangements overseen by the Health Protection Committee.

The Local Authority Lead Officers review surveillance and performance monitoring
information in order to identify health protection risks and/or underperformance prior to
Health Protection Committee meetings. Officers are responsible for liaising with relevant
partners to ensure that actions have been agreed to mitigate against a particular risk
identified, or to improve performance. The outcomes of these discussions are formally
reported to the Health Protection Committee for consideration and agreement.

Meetings of the Committee 2016-17 were held on 4 May 2016, 3 August 2016, 2
November 2016 and 1 February 2017.

A memorandum of understanding, which specifies the roles and responsibilities of the
various agencies involved in Health Protection, is in place.

Prevention and Control of Infectious Diseases

Organisational roles and responsibilities

NHS England is responsible for managing and overseeing the NHS response to an
incident, ensuring that relevant NHS resources are mobilised and commanding or
directing NHS resources as necessary. Additionally, NHS England is responsible for
ensuring that their contracted providers will deliver an appropriate clinical response to any
incident that threatens the public’s health.

Public Health England, through its consultants in communicable disease control, will lead
the epidemiological investigation and the specialist health protection response to public
health outbreaks or incidents and has responsibility for declaring a health protection
incident, major or otherwise.

The Clinical Commissioning Group’s role is to ensure, through contractual arrangements
with provider organisations, that healthcare resources are made available to respond to
health protection incidents or outbreaks (including screening/diagnostic and treatment
services) although financial arrangements have yet to be finalised.

Page 187 4



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

The Local Authority, through the Director of Public Health or their designate, has overall
responsibility for the strategic oversight of an incident or outbreak which has an impact on
their population’s health. They should ensure that an appropriate response is put in place
by NHS England and Public Health England, supported by the Clinical Commissioning
Group. In addition, they must be assured that the local health protection system is robust
enough to respond appropriately in order to protect the local population’s health, and that
risks have been identified, are mitigated against, and are adequately controlled.

Surveillance Arrangements

The Public Health England Centre provides a quarterly report for its catchment: Devon,
Cornwall and the lIsles of Scilly and Somerset. The report provides epidemiological
information on cases and outbreaks of communicable diseases of public health
importance. A quarterly report is also produced at council level.

Fortnightly bulletins are produced throughout the winter months, providing surveillance
information on influenza and influenza-like illness and infectious intestinal disease activity,
including norovirus. These bulletins report information for the Public Health England
Centre geography (Devon, Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly, and Somerset).

The Health Protection Advisory Group, convened quarterly, provides a forum for hospital
microbiologists, environmental health officers, consultants in public health and infection
control nurses to share intelligence, and any risks identified in local arrangements to
manage communicable disease incidence.

Disease outbreaks and incidence 2016-17

Measles

There were 50 confirmed cases of measles across Devon, including Torbay and
Plymouth, in 2016/7, with an additional number of suspected cases. Only two confirmed
cases were reported in Cornwall. Cases were noted initially in teenagers in an area of
South Devon with low MMR uptake, and spread across the whole county with
transmission being noted at festivals. Measles outbreaks were seen in other areas of
England in 2016/7.

Hepatitis A

In 2016 a large outbreak of hepatitis A was seen across Europe, predominantly affecting
men who have sex with men (MSM). Cases of acute hepatitis A were seen in Devon and
West Cornwall that were linked to this outbreak. Nationally, vaccine recommendations
were made and disseminated to genito-urinary medicine clinics in an attempt to reduce
ongoing transmission.

Cryptosporidium

189 cases of cryptosporidium were diagnosed across Devon, Torbay and Plymouth in
2016/7, representing a year-on-year increase from 2013/4 onwards, consistent with the
national picture. 112 cases were diagnosed in Cornwall. In an attempt to better
understand the risk factors for this increase, a pilot of the use of an online questionnaire is
being conducted across some of the South West local authorities.

Page 188 5



3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Influenza incidence and outbreaks in care homes

Rates of reported influenza and flu-like illness were largely consistent with the national
picture. In the 2016/7 influenza season to the end of March 2017, there was a large
number of reported influenza outbreaks in care homes in Devon (18 outbreaks) and
Torbay (six), with only one in Cornwall and none in Plymouth. Work is ongoing to assess
levels of staff immunisation uptake in care homes, with a view to improving this for
2017/18 onwards. Influenza rates are shown in Appendix 2.

Meningococcal infection

During April 2016 to March 2017 there were ten cases of probable or confirmed
meningococcal disease in both Devon and Cornwall, seven in Plymouth and six in
Torbay. The graphs in Appendix 2 show the rates for Devon, Plymouth, Torbay and
Cornwall compared to the overall rate across the Public health England South-West
centre area. It should be noted that large variations are seen in areas with small
populations (such as Torbay) as a result of a small number of cases.

Tuberculosis

As of 2015 the incidence of tuberculosis across the South-West of England remained low
compared to the average for England. The figure and table in Appendix 2 demonstrate
the average incidence rate by local authority from 2013-2015.

Norovirus and gastroenteritis

Incidences of norovirus and gastroenteritis were relatively high for Cornwall, low for
Devon, and consistent with the England average in Torbay & South Devon, and
Plymouth. Rates of norovirus and gastroenteritis are shown in Appendix 2.

Scarlet fever and invasive Group A Streptococcus (iGAS)

In 2016/7 there were 315 suspected or confirmed cases of scarlet fever reported across
Devon, Torbay and Plymouth, largely consistent with the previous two years and just
below the South West average. Numbers of invasive Group A Streptococcus (iGAS)
were consistent with those seen in the preceding two years for Devon, Cornwall and
Torbay, whereas Plymouth had 24 cases compared to 11 in 2015/16 and 13 in 2014/15.
Rates are shown in Appendix 2.

Page 189 6



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Immunisation and Screening
Organisational Roles/Responsibilities

NHS England is accountable for all national screening and immunisation programmes
commissioned via the Section 7A arrangements. NHS England is the lead commissioner
for all immunisation and screening programmes except the six antenatal and newborn
programmes that are part of Clinical Commissioning Group Maternity Payment Pathway
arrangements, although NHS England remains the accountable commissioner. A list of
all national screening programmes is included at Appendix 4.

Public Health England is responsible for setting national screening and immunisation
policy and standards through expert groups (the National Screening Committee and the
Joint Committee on Vaccination and Immunisation). At a local level, specialist public
health staff in Screening and Immunisation Teams, employed by Public Health England,
work alongside NHS England Public Health Commissioning colleagues to provide
accountability for the commissioning of the programmes, and system leadership.

Local Authorities, through the Director of Public Health, are responsible for seeking
assurance that screening and immunisation services are operating safely whilst
maximising coverage and uptake within their local populations. Public Health Teams are
responsible for both protecting and improving the health of their local population under the
leadership of the Director of Public Health, including supporting Public Health England in
projects that seek to improve programme coverage and uptake.

Assurance Arrangements

Public Health England South West Screening and Immunisation Team provides quarterly
reports to the Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly Health Protection Committee for each of
the national immunisation and screening programmes. Due to the nature of the
programmes and the NHS England and Public Health England data capture and
validation processes (with the exception of the seasonal influenza vaccination
programme) real time data are not available for all programmes and for some programme
reports are up to two calendar quarters in arrears. Reports are considered by lead Local
Authority Consultants in Public Health and any risks identified are considered with Public
Health England specialists to agree mitigating activities.

Serious incidents that occur in the delivery of programmes are reported to the Director of
Public Health for the Local Authority and to the Health Protection Committee.

There are oversight groups (Programme Boards) for all screening programmes, and these
form part of the local assurance mechanisms to identify risks to delivery. In addition,
specific project groups are convened as necessary to oversee significant developments in
the programmes and the introduction of new programmes. For all immunisation
programmes, oversight and assurance is achieved through a multiagency locality
immunisation group, one for each local authority area. In addition, there is a separate
Seasonal Influenza Immunisation Board for the Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly area.
All the oversight groups have terms of reference and clear escalation routes to ensure
accountability both within NHS England and Public Health England and into individual
partner organisations.

Page 190 7



Immunisation performance 2016-17

Immunisation performance throughout 2016-17 is detailed in Appendix 3. This data is
taken from the national coverage statistics, which for the first time this year is
accompanied by an interactive web-based data dashboard that allows users to visualise
vaccine coverage data down to local authority level and has local and national trends for
the years 2013-14 to 2016-17. The dashboard can be accessed via the link below:
National annual childhood immunisation coverage 2016/17

Key points include:

e Coverage of childhood immunisations continues to be high in Plymouth, Devon and
Cornwall (mostly over 90%) but the national target of 95% is not being met for several
of the programmes.

e Performance across the range of childhood immunisation programmes is generally
stable. However, coverage is variable and requires continued attention to ensure that
the local population is protected and does not become susceptible to outbreaks of
vaccine preventable diseases.

¢ MMR (Measles, Mumps and Rubella) coverage at 5 years has improved gradually
over time and is now over 90% for all doses in all three local authority areas. Herd
immunity with coverage of 95% or above is achieved for: Cornwall MMR1 at 2 years,
Plymouth MMR1 at 2 years and 5 years, Devon MMRL1 at 5 years.

e Rotavirus coverage in Devon (82.7%) is significantly lower than the England average
(89.6%). This is an outlier and requires further investigation. This immunisation is
time-limited as the first dose has to be given no later than 15 weeks and the second
dose (which must be at least one month after the first dose) must be given no later
than 24 weeks of age. |If there is a delay in invitation or attendance for the
immunisation, the baby will not be able to be vaccinated.

e Immunisation coverage is reported quarterly and in-year variation is not uncommon.
Investigations suggest that these are in the main due to data issues rather than true
variation in uptake. This is in part because of the challenges with manual call-recall
and data flow processes between GP practices and other immunisation providers and
the local Child Health Information Services (CHIS).

e HPV (Human Papilloma Virus) coverage in Devon is in line with the national rates.
Coverage for the 2016/17 academic year is due to be published in Autumn 2017.

¢ HPV coverage in Cornwall has historically been reported as low. Up until September
2016, all school-aged immunisations were delivered in GP practices, and the
programme was run over a whole 12 month period. As a result, not all immunisations
were captured in the national reporting process and this has in part explained the
lower uptake. From September 2016, all school aged immunisations in Cornwall are
now delivered in the school setting and it is hoped that the 2016/17 data, when
published, will report rates more in line with regional and national averages.

e The 2016/17 annual data for Shingles is awaited. Uptake has been static with rates
averaging around 50-60% (2015/16 England rate is 54.9%). Work is underway to
support practices to increase uptake (see below).

e Highlights of the influenza vaccination uptake in 2016/17 were:

o A large increase in uptake of vaccination in frontline healthcare workers in all
providers except Cornwall GP practices - almost certainly due to the national
CQUIN;

Page 191 8


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYTRjZjY2ZDEtNmFhMi00ZWI5LWE2NDAtOWM0OTYzY2JhZWIzIiwidCI6IjgwN2YyZjMwLWNhOGMtNDE5Zi1hMTc5LTVjNGZjN2E0YmY2YiIsImMiOjN9

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

412

o An increase in uptake in children, particularly in the school age programme
(exceptions were children aged 4 in Cornwall, and year 2 children in South Devon
and Torbay);

o A small increase in uptake across all adult groups with a few exceptions.
Developments in national immunisation programmes during 2016-17
Childhood immunisations

Meningitis B was introduced in the routine schedule in September 2015 and coverage, as
expected, has continued to be high during 2016/17.

Although uptake in Plymouth, Devon, Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly is generally good,
nationally there is a small downward trend in uptake of childhood immunisations. A
national group has been set up to review the evidence for improving uptake and to make
recommendations for action. Locally, these actions will be incorporated into the work of
the locality immunisation groups.

As part of the work the Screening and Immunisation Team is doing to support an
improvement in coverage and reduction of inequalities, a South West needs assessment
for 0-5 year old vaccinations and a survey of GP practices have been completed. The
main recommendations for Plymouth, Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly included a need
to better understand some of the inequalities in the area, a focus on MMR by the age of 5
(this will also have a knock on effect on improving uptake for the other ages), improving
data flows between Child Health and GP practices, targeted support for practices with low
uptake, and improving awareness in general practice of immunisation training. These
findings are being considered by the locality immunisation groups and will result in more
targeted action plans in each area.

Nationally, MMR has been agreed as a priority and a UK Measles and Rubella Elimination
Strategy, the UK contribution to the WHO European regional target to eliminate both
measles and rubella infections by 2020, is being developed. NHS England 2017/18
commissioning intentions support this work. The Screening and Immunisation Team is
working through the locality immunisation groups to develop robust multiagency action
plans to achieve 95% MMR coverage and address low uptake generally. The
recommendations of the needs assessment are informing these plans. The local work
and strategy have been used to inform the recently published MMR Spotlight report. This
highlights the need for a multiple, individualised, and a “never too late” approach, as the
parents declining MMR and other childhood immunisations are not a single homogenous

group.

In Sept 2017, the World Health Organisation (WHO) confirmed that the UK, as at the end
of 2016, is among 42 of the 53 countries within the WHO European Region that have
achieved ‘measles elimination’. Elimination is defined an absence of endemic measles
transmission for a period of at least 12 months. In practical terms this means that there is
evidence of interruption in transmission of infections when a case occurs, such that there
are either no further cases in the contact group or only a small number of cases and no
spread of infection into the wider community. This is a significant achievement and
reflects the continued work by many partners nationally and locally to continue to drive
uptake upwards, and to achieve and then maintain 95% coverage of the MMR vaccine
and herd immunity. Over the past three years, there have been several thousand cases
of measles across the UK, and a handful of deaths, and these are all likely to have
originated from overseas. It is important to remember that although measles is no longer
endemic to the UK, measles cases continue to occur as a result of infections from abroad,

Page 192 9



4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

and that unvaccinated individuals and communities continue to be vulnerable, so the work
to maximise coverage needs to continue.

Targeted immunisations — Hepatitis B and BCG

The Screening and Immunisation Team has developed a robust pathway and failsafe
process to follow-up babies born to Hepatitis B positive mothers to try to ensure all infants
complete the full schedule, thus minimising the risk of contracting the infection. The
Screening and Immunisation Team has also launched the dried bloodspot scheme for
Hepatitis B serology testing at 12 months, which it is hoped will result in greater uptake of
the test.

During 2016, there was an international shortage of BCG (Tuberculosis) vaccine. This
situation continues to be managed by the National Immunisation Team. An interim
alternative supply of a UK unlicensed vaccine was secured, and in order to minimise the
impact and protect the most vulnerable, national priority groups were agreed. Vaccine
has primarily been restricted to the infant neonatal programme as they are at greatest risk
from infection. Since August 2017, a new supply of UK licenced vaccine has become
available. This will remain restricted to the highest priority groups and catch-up for
children up to age 12 months in the first instance, and then children up to six years.

School aged immunisations

In September 2016, delivery of school aged immunisations in Cornwall moved to a school
setting, following a procurement process for this service. All areas of the South (South
West) now have school-based delivery. It is hoped that this will lead to further
improvement of uptake rates.

2016/17 was the last academic year of the MenACWY (Meningitis) catch-up for Year 11
(school based) and Year 13 (GP based) vaccinations. From September 2017, Td/IPV
(teenage booster) will move to Year 9 school based vaccination and will be delivered
alongside the routine MenACWY cohort.

Child Health Information Services (CHIS)

NHS England/Screening and Immunisation Team has set up quarterly CHIS monitoring
meetings to formalise the governance of CHIS services. These include monitoring of key
performance indicators, and quality audits.

The Screening and Immunisation Team has been working with the South West Child
Health Information Service (CHIS) Managers’ Communities of Practice Group to improve
the CHIS immunisation call-recall processes and pathways, and standardise these as far
as possible across the South West.

The timeliness and comprehensiveness of immunisation information sharing between GP
practices and CHIS, and the internal CHIS processes, can have a significant impact on
the quality of nationally reported data and can account for some of the variation in
coverage over time. The Screening and Immunisation Team has therefore been working
closely with several of the CHIS teams as they have undertaken detailed work to review
processes and to synchronise data between practices and to improve the timeliness of
return of immunisation data by GP practices to CHIS. It is expected that this will help to
improve coverage rates. The Screening and Immunisation Team is liaising closely with
the relevant Local Medical Committees, some of whom have raised concerns, and will
continue to keep them up to date with progress.

Page 193 10



4.20

421

4.22

4.23

4.24

Adult immunisations
Pertussis and flu vaccination in pregnancy

Pertussis vaccination in pregnancy was introduced in England in 2012 as an outbreak
response to a nationwide rise in pertussis infections and deaths in the very young. Due to
ongoing infection rates and deaths, the programme has been continued. The most recent
national data, extracted from 93% of GP systems across the South West, shows that
uptake in 2016 has significantly increased and is at its highest level of 76.4%. This is
higher than the England average. It is thought that this increase is due to the change in
policy that means immunisation can be given earlier, from 16 weeks gestation, although it
is normally given after the mid trimester foetal anomaly scan. The Screening and
Immunisation Team has been working closely with the Children and Maternity Strategic
Clinical Network to improve uptake of all vaccinations in pregnancy, through enhanced
partnerships between primary care and maternity, and awareness training for midwives.

Shingles

For the past year, the Screening and Immunisation Team has been feeding back practice
level rates to GP practices to encourage additional activities to target eligible patients,
and using national resources to promote the eligible age cohorts with the public. As
uptake rates remain static, plans are being made for additional work during 2017/18, and
these will come to the locality immunisation group for tailoring to each local area.

Influenza Immunisation

In 2016/17, the key changes in the South West seasonal flu programme were the
successful expansion of the child flu programme to include all children aged 2, 3 and 4,
and to all children in school years 1, 2 and 3. Also, the Community Pharmacy Seasonal
Influenza Vaccination programme was recommissioned after a successful first year in
2015/16, when almost 250,000 additional patients chose to receive vaccinations in a
community pharmacy.

Key issues for immunisation programmes in Plymouth, Devon, Cornwall and Isles
of Scilly in 2017/18

In August 2017, universal Hepatitis B vaccination is to be introduced in to the primary
immunisation schedule. This will be via a new hexavalent vaccine. The current targeted
neonatal immunisation programme for babies born to Hepatitis B positive mothers will
remain.

The national CHIS digital strategy was launched in 2016. This is likely to have a
significant impact on the model of CHIS services in the future and the way that parents
are offered immunisations for their children. It will also increase the efficiency of data
sharing processes and lead to improvements in the timeliness and accuracy of
immunisation data. The aim of the strategy is to achieve full interoperability between
CHIS and GP practices and other related systems and to achieve web-based access to
parents and professionals working with children. In the South West, NHS England will be
reviewing service specifications to ensure that as this work evolves, providers of CHIS
services and child health IT services develop services to meet the requirements of the
digital strategy. The strategy includes a move to an electronic Red Book (Parent held
Child Health Record).

Page 194 11



4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

During 2017/18, NHS England will be undertaking a procurement for CHIS services (for
the whole of the South (South West) area, and for school aged immunisations (for Bristol,
North Somerset and South Gloucester and Devon).

To further increase uptake of pertussis and flu vaccination in pregnancy, the Screening
and Immunisation Team will be working with all maternity units and hopes to achieve a
primarily maternity-based delivery model for pertussis and flu in pregnancy rather in
general practice. It is envisaged that by offering immunisation as part of routine obstetric
care that this will enable more women to take up the offer of immunisation. This has
already been piloted in some maternity units and it is hoped that by the end of 2017/18
all providers will have introduced this new offer.

To improve the uptake of shingles vaccination, during Autumn 2017 the Screening and
Immunisation Team will be providing GP practices with their individual practice level
uptake data and a newly developed resource pack including policy updates on changes to
eligibility, a best practice guide that outlines key actions to improve uptake, and a range of
Public Health England promotional materials. The resource pack is being developed from
best practice across South West GP practices that are achieving high vaccine uptake.
The Screening and Immunisation Team is also planning a patient facing communications
campaign, supported by the NHS England Communication Teams, to raise awareness
and increase demand from the public.

At the end of the influenza season, a South West stakeholder debrief meeting for all parts
of the programme was held and priorities for 2017/18 identified by consensus:

e Care home and housebound patients: strengthening commissioning of split services
payments;

e Social care staff: joint research project to look at how to increase uptake planned
(NHS England, PHE Field Epidemiology Service and PHE National Flu Lead);

¢ Childhood flu programme: reception age, special schools, under 2s at risk;

e Pregnant women: commissioning maternity services to deliver immunisation, GP/
Pharmacy collaborative working pilot based on lessons from the Beacon practice in
Plymouth;

¢ Hard to reach groups: looked after children, traveller groups;
e Deep dive work to identify why uptake rates tend to be lower in south of the South
West compared to the north of the patch.

Active support from Local Authority colleagues and teams for the locality immunisation
groups is important to ensure that work to increase the overall uptake of MMR and other
immunisations and to reduce local inequalities in uptake is being appropriately targeted,
and that best use is being made of all available resources to achieve the population
coverage targets.

Screening performance 2016-17

Screening coverage 2016-17 for the main cancer and non-cancer screening programmes
is detailed in Appendix 5. Key points are:

e Performance in antenatal screening programmes continues to be excellent.

e Performance in certain aspects of the newborn screening programmes continues to
be a challenge. The avoidable repeat rate was high, but provider action plans are in

Page 195 12



4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

place and are now having an impact, with improving performance. The roll-out of the
NIPE (Newborn Infant Physical Examination) SMART IT system is helping to increase
the robustness of the failsafe processes, ensuring all babies are identified and offered
screening.

o Diabetic Eye Screening coverage remained stable in all areas in 2016 and was also
above the national target of 80%.

e Cervical screening coverage remains below the national target of 80% in all areas,
with a decrease in Cornwall to 75.7% in 2016. All areas, however, remain above the
national average.

e Breast screening coverage in 2016 is stable in Cornwall at 80%, meeting the national
target of 80%. In Devon, coverage has reduced slightly below target to 78.8% but
this remains above the national average.

e Bowel screening coverage increased in 2016 in all areas and also remains above the
national target of 60% and above the national average.

e Performance in the abdominal aortic aneurysm (AAA) screening programmes
continues to be excellent, and coverage is stable and meets acceptable national
standards.

Developments in national screening programmes during 2016-17
The key changes and developments during 2016-17 included:
Antenatal and Newborn

Antenatal screening for rubella ceased on 1st April 2016. Instead there is renewed focus
on improving Measles Mumps and Rubella (MMR) immunisation uptake across the whole
population as a more effective way of preventing congenital rubella infection.

In the Foetal Anomaly Screening Programme, screening for Trisomyl3 and Trisomy18
was introduced to the combined first trimester screening test, and the 3-vessel/trachea
(3VT) screening was introduced into the mid-trimester foetal anomaly scan.

There were ongoing challenges due to pressures locally and across the country in
obstetric ultrasound capacity due to the introduction of new national maternity guidelines
for babies small for their gestation age. This has at times had an impact on completing
screening scans in the correct timeframe. Work has been undertaken with providers to
enhance tracking and failsafe systems to ensure that all women are offered a scan at the
correct gestation and to follow-up women if they do not attend. A new key performance
indicator was introduced in April 2017 to monitor performance of this part of the screening
pathway. A national working group has been set up to look at obstetric radiology
capacity.

Newborn bloodspot screening on day 5 is mostly undertaken by community midwives.
There is a drive to minimise the avoidable repeat rate to a very low level. Despite best
efforts, in Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly providers have found it very challenging to
reduce this to the nationally acceptable level of 0.5%. The Screening and Immunisation
Team has been closely monitoring performance in this area and the 2016/17 and 2017/18
service specifications have required all providers to develop detailed action plans, which
have been monitored via the Screening Programme Boards. NHS England South
(Southwest) has offered a local CQUIN for 2017/18 and 2018/19 with the aim of reducing
repeat rates to below 2%. The newborn bloodspot laboratory also reviewed its processes
and set up a new laboratory PO Box to minimise delays within the hospital.

Page 196 13



4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

441

4.42

The Newborn and Infant Physical Examination (NIPE) screening programme saw the roll-
out of the new IT system, NIPE SMaRT. This, for the first time, has provided a systematic
and robust way of identifying the eligible cohort for the NIPE examination, for recording
screening results, referral in to diagnostic services and outcomes, and for failsafe. The
Royal Cornwall Healthcare Trust, as part of the implementation of NIPE SMaRT, from
April 2017 has introduced a maternity led NIPE service, and GPs no longer undertake this
examination on a routine basis. This enables the Head of Midwifery to have oversight of
the whole screening pathway. Shared learning from a number of incidents in the NIPE
programme has led to improvements in provider screening policies and procedures.

The move from Health Visitor registered to resident populations required the Newborn
Hearing Screening Programme teams to work together to address boundary changes and
ensure all babies were offered screening. In addition, the new national IT screening
system, Smart4Hearing (S4H) went live in December 2016. Both these transitions were
achieved without disruption to patients and screening services.

Quality assurance visits for antenatal and newborn programmes have continued and all of
the Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly programmes will have been visited by the end of
2018. As these are the first round of formal quality assurance visits, all programmes have
had significant numbers of recommendations, but the visits have not identified any
immediate areas of concern and show that in the main, programmes are delivering high
quality and safe screening services that meet national standards.

Diabetic Eye Screening

Diabetic eye screening programmes continued to perform well across the area, with few
issues or incidents. One significant development was the re-procurement of the Plymouth
programme that became necessary as the incumbent provider gave notice on the
contract. The transition to the new provider on 1 April 2017 went smoothly with no
disruption to patients.

The Screening and Immunisation Team has been working closely with the provider teams
to facilitate an improvement in the accuracy and completeness of screening registers.
These rely on information being shared and validated by both the GP practice and the
screening team. Audits have been undertaken to assess accuracy, and work to improve
this has been undertaken where needed.

Cervical screening

The cervical screening programmes in the South West have continued to perform well
with no significant issues or incidents. Reducing coverage has been the main issue over
several years, with local rates mirroring the slow but consistent reduction in national rates.
The Screening and Immunisation Team has identified cervical screening coverage as a
priority and has targeted work to groups where uptake is lowest.

Sample-taker training and its effective oversight is a critical factor in the quality and safety
of the screening programme. The Screening and Immunisation Team has reviewed and
updated the training policy, including escalation procedures, and created a single South
West sample-taker database to ensure that all sample-takers are registered, have a
unigue ID code to track samples, and are alerted to when they need to update.

Page 197 14



4.43

4.44

4.45

4.46

4.47

4.48

Breast screening

Breast screening services in Devon, Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly continued to meet the
majority of the national minimum standards but have struggled to maintain consistent
performance in some key areas, such as time between screening and assessment.
There has been significant and continued pressure on the programmes due to a
combination of demand from the symptomatic service and capacity pressures within
screening teams due to shortages of key staff (radiographers, radiologists, and specialist
breast care nurses). This is a national problem that is starting to affect many programmes
across the country. The workforce issue has been escalated nationally and a working
group is developing options to address the issue.

In some areas, the increasing number of GP practice mergers and closures is having a
negative impact on round length. As breast screening is a three yearly cycle, women who
have to re-register, or move into a new practice due to a merger, may have their
screening invitation date delayed depending on where the practice is the three year cycle.
These women have to be slotted in to already busy routine lists across the area, creating
pressure on the service and impacting temporarily on key performance measures. This
issue is affecting all areas of the country and has been escalated nationally. Potential
solutions are being investigated for the service and also to track affected women to
ensure screening is offered within the appropriate timescales as far as possible.

Bowel screening

There continues to be a lot of activity in the bowel screening programme. This is primarily
due to the continued roll-out of Bowel Scope screening and ongoing work to maintain
delivery to national standards in the face of a national shortage of endoscopists and
radiographers that have created significant pressures within colonoscopy services.
Providers have so far maintained key indicator performance despite these challenges.

Bowel Scope has been successfully implemented in Torbay, North Devon and Exeter,
and Plymouth is due to roll-out in November 2017. Planning is advanced in Cornwall with
an original go-live date of November 2017, however the closure of the Bodmin Treatment
Centre has meant that the bowel screening services have had to be relocated back to
Royal Cornwall Hospital and this may delay introduction of bowel scope screening.

Key issues for screening programmes 2017/18 onwards
Antenatal and newborn

The National Screening Committee has announced the introduction of NIPT (non-invasive
pre-natal testing) into the first trimester foetal anomaly screening programme. Women
who screen positive in first trimester combined testing, will be offered NIPT instead of
invasive testing. A national implementation team is in place to oversee the change but
there is no date yet for implementation. A big reduction in the number of invasive
diagnostic tests (amniocentesis and CVS) is expected and this is likely to have an impact
on foetal medicine services. NIPT is already available privately and maternity services
are dealing with increasing numbers of women requesting NIPT, who are being referred
on.

High newborn bloodspot avoidable repeat rates continues to be a national issue. The
national screening team in conjunction with the Screening Quality Assurance Service has
set up a project to look at this issue (working with the best performers) to identify best
practice that can be shared. Local provider action plans will be updated in light of this
learning from elsewhere.

Page 198 15



4.49

4.50

4.51

4.52

4.53

4.54

4.55

Diabetic Eye Screening

The roll out of a new national system, GP2DRS, has commenced in some areas and is
expected to be completed during 2017/18. This will automatically extract patient data
from GP systems into the local screening register, replacing the current manual
information and data validation processes. This is a very positive move but accuracy of
screening registers will continue to rely heavily on correct coding by GP practices of
eligible patients. Recent audits by the Screening an Immunisation Team show that
coding is not always correct, so work will still be needed with GP practices to improve
coding. This issue has been escalated to the national team.

A national decision is awaited about a change from the current annual screening interval
to a two year interval. At this stage, it is not anticipated that this will take place during
2017/18.

Cervical screening

In July 2016, the National Screening Committee announced that primary HPV testing was
to be introduced during 2018, with a full roll-out by 2019. Women will have samples taken
in the same way, but rather than initial cytology followed by HPV testing if cytology is
abnormal, the initial test will be for HPV infection with subsequent cytology only for
samples that are found to be positive for high risk HPV infection (HR-HPV). Primary HPV
testing enables the programme to more effectively identify women at higher risk of
developing cervical cancer so that they can be investigated and kept under surveillance,
and returns more women at lower risk back to routine screening, reducing the number
undergoing unnecessary enhanced screening.

One impact of primary HPV testing is that the demand for cytology testing will decrease
significantly. As part of the implementation, there is therefore to be a reduction in the
number of cytology labs. A national procurement is underway and the final numbers of
labs has yet to be announced. This has created immediate risks to the sustainability of
the current cytology service due to staffing losses and a significant deterioration in lab
turnaround times. This is a national risk and national and local mitigation plans have
been put in place to try to minimise the impact on reduced turnaround times so that
women do not experience too long a delay before receipt of results.

In addition to the lab re-configuration, primary HPV testing requires significant changes to
the screening IT system (currently known as the Exeter system). The screening call-
recall function transferred to CAPITA in April 2016 as part of the primary care services
procurement, and as part of this contract, CAPITA are designing a new screening IT
platform. This will go-live ahead of primary HPV testing.

A national decision is awaited about a possible change to screening intervals (currently
three or five years depending on age) following the introduction of primary HPV testing.

Bowel screening

A national decision has been taken to replace the current Faecal Occult Blood Test
(FOBT) by the FIT test (Faecal Immunochemical Test) and this is due to be rolled out by
2019. National discussions are ongoing to plan the implementation. This includes testing
parameters and cut offs that are due to be agreed in the near future. These are important
as they will potentially determine the impact of this change on demand for services and on
the capacity required to deliver, and will need to be built in to local plans for endoscopy
services.

Page 199 16



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

55

5.6

Health Care Associated Infections
Organisational roles and responsibilities

NHS England sets out and monitors the NHS Outcomes Framework which includes
Domain Five (safety): treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting
them from avoidable harm. The Area Teams of NHS England hold local Clinical
Commissioning Groups to account for performance against indicators under this domain,
which includes incidence of healthcare associated methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus
aureus (MRSA) bacteraemia and incidence of Clostridium difficile infection (CDI).

Public Health England, through its consultants in communicable disease control, leads the
epidemiological investigation and the specialist health protection response to wider
community non-hospital outbreaks, and is responsible for declaring a health protection
incident.

The Clinical Commissioning Group’s role is to ensure through contractual arrangements
with provider organisations that health care associated infection standard operating
procedures are in all provider contracts and are monitored regularly. Northern Eastern
and Western Devon and South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Groups deploy
this role through the Nursing and Quality portfolio. NHS Kernow Clinical Commissioning
Group employs a nurse consultant for health care associated infections. This is an
assurance and advisory role. In addition, Clinical Commissioning Groups must be
assured that the Infection Prevention and Control Teams covering the hospital and NHS
community healthcare provided services sector are robust enough to respond
appropriately to protect the local population’s health, and that risks of health care
associated infection have been identified, are mitigated against, and are adequately
controlled.

The Local Authority through the Director of Public Health or their designate has overall
responsibility for the strategic oversight of a health care associated infection incident
affecting their population’s health. They should ensure that an appropriate response is
put in place by NHS England and Public Health England, supported by the Clinical
Commissioning Group.

Health Care Associated Infection forums

The Devon Health Care Associated Infection Programme Group was a sub-group of the
Health Protection Committee during 2014-17, working towards the elimination of
avoidable health care associated infections (HCAI) for the population of Devon, including
the Unitary Authorities of Plymouth and Torbay. The group covered health and social
care interventions in clinical, home and residential care environments, through the
identification of risks, the planning of risk mitigation actions, and the sharing of best
practice in the field. The group was coordinated by NEW Devon Clinical Commissioning
Group, and was a cross-agency forum involving Acute and Community NHS Trusts,
Ambulance and Out of Hours Doctors, Local Authority Public Health Public Health
England, Medicines Optimisation and the NHS England Area Team.

In Cornwall there is a Directors of Infection Control Group with multi-agency attendance

working on a similar agenda and also reporting into the Health Protection Committee.
There is also cross attendance between the Devon and Cornwall groups.

Page 200 17



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

The Devon Health Care Associated Infection Programme Group annual workshop was
held on 5 July 2016. The lack of a community infection prevention, management and
control service was highlighted as a potential risk.

The Devon Health Care Associated Infection Programme Group became the Devon,
Cornwall and Somerset Health Care Associated infection Network at the beginning of
2017/18.

Key areas for action in 2017/18 are:

o Community infection prevention, management and control;

. Gram negative bacteraemia reduction;

o Continued monitoring of health care acquired infection by Clinical Commissioning
Group area for C.difficile infection, MRSA, MSSA and E.coli;

o Outbreak monitoring to ensure timely patient transfers, system flow and resilience.

Healthcare association infections incidence 2016-17

Healthcare associated infection incidence is given in Appendix 6. Key points are:

MRSA

The national target for MRSA is no cases. Four cases of MRSA were reported in NEW
Devon, two in South Devon and Torbay, and seven in Cornwall, in 2016/17. All were
investigated and processes reviewed.

MSSA

Rates of reported MSSA were within target levels. Reported community-acquired MSSA
bacteraemia rates in NEW Devon increased in the final quarter of the year and this trend
is being investigated.

C.difficile infection

Numbers were in line with targets in Devon, with Cornwall exceeding the target by one
case, reflecting the impact of significant work by all organisations to reduce rates.

E.coli bacteraemia
E.coli bacteraemia rates, chiefly community acquired, were static or increasing during the
year and are a target for infection prevention and control work in 2017/18. Efforts are

focused around urinary sources including catheter use, hydration, training, and improving
communications between acute and community settings when patients are transferred.

Page 201 18



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Anti-microbial resistance

Data and trends
A monitoring report is included at Appendix 7. Key points are:

o There has been an increase in gram-negative bloodstream infections (eg. E.Coli
and Klebsiella) both nationally and locally, with a related increase in antibiotic
resistance. Resistant E.coli particularly affects older people and infants;

o The Secretary of State for Health has announced an ambition to reduce gram-
negative bloodstream infections by 50% by 2021. Surveillance of these organisms
changed from April 2017 to include Klebsiella and Pseudomonas;

o Carbopenamase producing organisms, resistant to certain anti-microbials, remain
relatively uncommon but are continuing to increase year on year, including in the
Peninsula. Public Health England has confirmed with hospitals within the region
that they are confident in following procedures for dealing with cases identified.

System-wide action to address anti-microbial resistance

A successful antimicrobial resistance steering group has been in place in Cornwall for a
number of years and there is now a similar group covering NEW Devon and Torbay.

The Cornwall Antimicrobial Resistance Group was set up in January 2013 and is chaired
by Denis Cronin, Public Health Consultant, and convenes five times a year.

Outputs from the Cornwall Antimicrobial Resistance Group include the launch of the
Antimicrobial Resistance (AMR) section of the Kernow CCG webpage, the availability of
primary care antibiotic guidelines in mobile phone application format, and the appointment
of two Drug and Bug nurse educators who delivered Infection Prevention and Control,
Antimicrobial Stewardship and Antimicrobial Resistance education to 88% of nursing
homes in Cornwall. The nurses also delivered education around infection control and
urinary tract infection management based on the “To Dip or Not To Dip” project initiated
by BANES CCG.

Eden One Health Conference in May 2017 brought together a diverse group of
practitioners from different sectors in Cornwall, including vets and podiatrists, for a one
day session on AMR from a One Health perspective. The day showcased a variety of
AMR related subjects and was highly evaluated by delegates. The lectures from the
event are available on youtube and have been shared widely with stakeholders.

The target set for NHS Kernow CCG for total antibacterial items/STAR PU was 1.172 by
the end of March 2016. The target for the percentage of broad spectrum antibiotics (Co-
Amoxiclav, Cephalosporins & Quinolones) was <11.3 by the end of March 2016. NHS
Kernow CCG achieved both of the targets set in the Quality Premium 2015/16, ending the
year in March 2016 at 1.056 for total antibacterial items/STAR PU and 10.3% for the
percentage of Co-amoxiclav, Cephalosporins & Quinolones.

! One Health Eden Conference on AMR
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PL6Y4vyTagfNDImMRXmlyk3zYs3pAT-vZbR

Page 202 19


https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PL6Y4vyTaqfNDlmRXmIyk3zYs3pAT-vZbR

6.7

6.8

6.9

7.1

8.1

In March 2017 the twelve month rolling total number of prescribed antibiotic items per
STAR-PU? for Cornwall was 1.05 compared to 1.07 for England. In March 2017, the
twelve month rolling percentage of prescribed antibiotic items from Co-Amoxiclav,
Cephalosporins & Quinolones was 9.92 compared to 8.92 for England. However, this was
not a statistically significant difference.

The Devon Antimicrobial Stewardship Group (DASG) meets four times a year and is
chaired by lain Carr, Pharmacy Lead, NEW Devon CCG.

In March 2017, the twelve month rolling total number of prescribed antibiotics items per
STAR-PU for NEW Devon CCG was 1.04 compared to 1.08 for South Devon and Torbay
CCG and 1.07 for England. In March 2017, the twelve month rolling percentage of
prescribed antibiotic items from Co-Amoxiclav, Cephalosporins & Quinolones was 10.98
for NEW Devon CCG compared to 10.43 for South Devon and Torbay CCG and 8.92 for
England. However, this was not a statistically significant difference.

Emergency planning and exercises

All Councils continue to engage with the Local Resilience Forum in undertaking their
annual exercise programme, responding to incidents and undertaking learning as
required.

Work Programme 2016/17 - progress report

This section includes an update on priorities identified in the 2016/17 annual report.
Areas highlighted for action were:

° Involvement with Short Sermon - Devon, Plymouth and Cornwall Local
Authorities were involved with the Short Sermon exercise in September 2016,
testing responses in the event of a nuclear accident at Devonport.

o Antimicrobial resistance — See anti-microbial resistance section above. Progress
has been made on setting up local groups and consolidating the work programme.
Antimicrobial Resistance continues to be a priority area in 2017/18.

o Review locality Immunisation groups - The South West Screening and
Immunisation Team undertook a review of all Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
locality immunisation groups. All groups now have an action plan in place that is
aimed at increasing coverage rates, achieving national targets, and reducing
inequalities in their area. This work is underpinned by the childhood immunisation
needs assessment.

o Childhood Flu review - The child influenza immunisation programme has been
successfully expanded, with good coverage rates across the area. Plans for further
roll-out to meet the national programme requirements are underway.

o Port Health Review — a scoping exercise was carried out and an event is being
planned for 2017/18.

2 STAR-PU (Specific Therapeutic group Age-Sex Related Prescribing Unit): a measure of the volume of
antibiotic prescribing which reflects not only the number of patients but also the age and sex mix of the

group

Page 203 20



o Lyme disease — a press release was issued on tick awareness and social media
posting was undertaken in the Devon Council area, which was taken up by the
media locally. This is planned to be repeated in 2017/18.

o Tuberculosis work programme - following the health needs assessment,
priorities for local implementation have been identified and an action plan developed
for implementation 2017/18 onwards. Priorities are: (i) Latent TB Infection
screening in low prevalence areas targeting students and care home staff (ii)
Collaborative working and commissioning (iii) Ongoing education to improve early
diagnosis.

9  Priorities for the 2017/18 work programme

9.1 Priorities identified for 2017/18 are:

o Infection prevention and control

o Health Protection Committee members will be reviewing community infection
prevention and control and looking at options to support social and primary care
sectors to strengthen local arrangements.

o There will be enhanced surveillance of E.coli bacteraemias, driven by the
national reduction expectation and the CCG quality premium. Actions will be put
in place to improve prevention.

o Improving the resilience of the health protection system

o Local Health Resilience Partnerships will be taking part in a national assurance
process to look at the resilience of the system under the new arrangements.

o New arrangements are being introduced in the South West for Public Health
specialty training in health protection in local authorities, including emergency
planning and response.

o Air quality
o Public Health England will be working alongside Local Authorities in Devon to

bring together stakeholders relevant to air pollution in a coordinated event to
agree a programme of local action.

. Antimicrobial resistance

o A ‘One Health’ approach to Antimicrobial Resistance will be followed within both
Devon and Cornwall, with opportunities pursued for public and professional
engagement. A whole health economy approach is needed to enable health
systems to meet government ambitions for reducing Gram-negative Blood
Stream Infections and inappropriate antimicrobial prescribing.

o A Devon-wide baseline assessment of NICE guideline 63 (Antimicrobial
Stewardship: changing risk-related behaviours in the general population) is being
led by Plymouth City Council, with support from Public Health England. Local
authorities are auditing progress in relation to implementation of the guideline
and a summary report will be presented to the NICE Panel Advisory Group and
the NEW Devon Antimicrobial Resistance Group in 2017.

Page 204 21



10

11

o NEW Devon CCG is hosting a workshop on E.coli bacteraemias and how to deal
with them, in July 2017, with the aim of agreeing an action plan for reduction.

o A pilot for implementing a tool to promote antimicrobial stewardship and self-care
advice in community pharmacies is planned within Devon and Cornwall. This
project is being led by Public Health England South West.

o Influenza vaccination for care home and domiciliary staff and special schools

o Health and social care providers have a responsibility to ensure vaccination
uptake amongst front line staff in order to protect the vulnerable populations from
the effects of influenza.

o Implementation of national MMR initiative

o A national UK Measles and Rubella elimination strategy is being developed, in
line with the World Health Organisation target to eliminate these diseases in
Europe by 2020. Public Health England Screening and Immunisation Team will
be working through the locality immunisation groups to develop robust
multiagency action plans to further improve MMR uptake. It is anticipated that
this will have a beneficial effect on all childhood immunisation programmes.

Authors

Julia Chisnell, Specialty Registrar in Public Health, on behalf of and in association with
members of the Health Protection Committee.

16 November 2017

Glossary

AMR Anti microbial resistance

BCG Tuberculosis (Bacillus Calmette-Guerin) vaccination

CCG Clinical Commissioning Group

C.diff Clostridium difficile

CHIS Child Health Information Services

CVS Chorionic villus sampling (antenatal screening)

E.coli Escherichia Coli

HPV Human papillomavirus testing (for risk of developing cervical cancer)
MMR Measles, Mumps and Rubella (immunisation)

MRSA Methicillin resistant Staphylococcus aureus

MSSA Methicillin sensitive Staphylococcus aureus

NEW Devon Northern, Eastern and Western Devon (Clinical Commissioning Group)
NIPE Newborn Infant Physical Examination

NIPT Non-invasive pre-natal testing

PHE Public Health England

NHSE NHS England

CQUIN Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (incentivised payment system)
TB Tuberculosis

Page 205 22



12 Appendices

Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5
Appendix 6
Appendix 7

Health Protection Committee reporting arrangements
Infectious disease incidence and trends
Immunisation performance

National screening programme summary

Screening performance

Healthcare associated infections

Anti-microbial resistance trends and developments

Page 206 23



Appendix 1

(1) Health Protection Committee reporting arrangements

Reporting to the Devon, Plymouth, Torbay, Cornwall and Council of the Isles of Scilly Health &
Wellbeing Boards and relationship to existing or planned Health Protection Partnership Forums

Five Health & Wellbeing
Boards

Assurance & Control

Health Protection
Committee

Health Care Associated

Infection Network Health Protection '\lrgfeggglsapodr aSsCsruerZ\r:}ze Local Health Resilience
Northern, Eastern & Western Advisory Group p g Partnership

& Immunisation
Devon, South Devon & Torbay, Public Health England Centre (NHS England & Partners)
Cornwall Isles of Scilly, Somerset

Clinical Commissioning Groups

o3 o3
O =
ES o6&
EExES
SEVS®
— = =2 g
@OD:H—-—
o © g%
S

Ay O

o =




Appendix 2

(2) Infectious disease incidence and trends 2016-17

Meningococcal disease

Figure 1: Quarterly rates (per 100,000 population) of probable cases of
meningococcal infection by local authority and PHE South West Q3 2014
to Q1 2017

Quarterly rates (per 100,000 population) of confirmed and probable cases of meningococcal infection by local authority and PHE South West

35

R
R A A
15 / \ / AN

0.0

Rate per 100,000 population

*

2014-3 2014-4 2015-1 2015-2 2015-3 2015-4 2016-1 2016-2 2016-3 2016-4 2017-1
Year/Quarter

—+—PHE South West —=—Devon Plymouth ~—=Torbay

25

Page 208



Tuberculosis

As of 2015 the incidence of tuberculosis across the South-West of England remained low
compared to the average for England. The figure and table below demonstrates the
average incidence rate by local authority from 2013-2015.

Figure 2: Tuberculosis incidence in England 2000 — 2015

TB incidence in England - South West PHE centre

60
o 40
o
<
o
=
o
o 20
0-0-0-0- 000000000000
0
2000 2003 2006 2009 2012 2015

4@ England

Source: PHE South West England Centre

Table 1: Average number of TB cases per year and incidence per 100,000 population
in Devon, Plymouth, Torbay and Cornwall/lsles of Scilly 2013 — 2015

Average number of cases per Average annual rate
year 2013-2015 per 100,000 (95% CI)[0 2013-
2015
Devon 29 3.8(3.1-4.7)
Cornwall (Not 10S) 13 2.4 (1.7-3.3)
Plymouth 14 5.4 (3.9-7.2)
Torbay 8 6.0 (3.9-9.0)

Three-year average TB rates by local authority district, England, 2013-2015

Norovirus and gastroenteritis

Norovirus is the most common cause of infectious gastroenteritis (diarrhoea and vomiting)
in England and Wales, and is highly infectious. The iliness is generally mild and people
usually recover fully within two to three days. Infections can occur at any age because
immunity does not last. Historically known as 'winter vomiting disease’, the virus is more
prominent during the winter months, but can occur at any time of year. Outbreaks are

Page 209 20



common in semi-closed environments such as hospitals, nursing homes, schools and

cruise ships.

NB These are incidence figures and not rates.

Table 2: All reports of clusters/outbreaks of gastrointestinal infection (suspected or laboratory
confirmed), by setting, including food poisoning outbreaks, Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly),
Devon, Plymouth and Torbay local authorities, 2016/17

Cornwall
(including Isles of
Scilly) 30 19 8 9 66
Devon 60 49 17 15 141
Plymouth 14 13 2 4 33
Torbay 9 10 5 3 27

Source: HPZone and HNORS. Outbreak/cluster data extracted based on date

entered onto HPZone

Figure 3: All reports of clusters/outbreaks of gastrointestinal infection (suspected or

laboratory confirmed), by setting, including food poisoning outbreaks, Cornwall

(including Isles of Scilly), Devon, Plymouth and Torbay local authorities,
Week 14 2016 to Week 13 2017

18

16 Cther

m Hospital

14

® Education™ursery

12 m Nursing/Care Home

10

Number of reported outbreaks/clusters

4 I
2

=

2016

Waeaek/Year

N Libadt b
o ha 14 20 a4 24 28 24 b0 b3 be 8 54 0 4d b 44 3

o

05

2

|
2 e la 1 1

2017

Source: HPZone and HNORS

Page 210

27



Figure 4. GP (In hours) vomiting consultation rate, Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly),
Devon, Plymouth, Torbay local authorities, PHE South West and England, 2016/17 (Week 14

2016 -

Week 13 2017)

Source: GP In-Hours Bulletin

60.0

N %) Y o
=3 =3 =) =4
o o o o

Rate per 100,000 population

=4
o

0.0

14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 B30 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2| 4 6| |8 10 n2

2016 2017
Week/Year

Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly) = PHE South West ====England

60.0

50.0

S
o
o

Rate per 100,000 population
El
o

&
=]
o

Rate per 100,000 population
8
o

0.0

0.0
14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 (2 4/ 6 |8 10 12
2016 2017
Week/Year
——— Devon PHE South West ==—=-England
60.0
50.0

14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 B2 34 B6 B8 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2| 4 |6 8 10 12

2016 2017
Week/Year

Plymouth PHE South VWest ====England

50.0

Rate per 100,000 population
]
[=]

Q-
14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 B0 32 34 36 B8 40 42 44 A6 48 50 52 2| |4 |6 8 10 12

2016 2017
Week/Year

= Torbay PHE South West ====England

28

Page 211



Figure 5: GP (In hours) diarrhoea consultation rate, Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly),
Devon, Plymouth, Torbay local authorities, PHE South West and England, 2016/17 (Week 14
2016 - Week 13 2017)

Source: GP In-Hours Bulletin
80.0

£
k]
k=]
]
2
]
a
2
=
g
]
o
2
o 200

10.0

14 16 18 20 22 24 D6 28 B0 B2 B34 B6 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2 4| 6 & 10 12
2016 2017
Week/Year
Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly) PHE South West ====England
80.0
70.0

Rate per 100,000 population
&
o

30.0
200
10.0
0.0
14 16 18 20 22 P4 26 P8 BO 32 B4 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2 |4 8 o pnz2
2016 2017
Week/Year
Devon PHE South West ==—--England
800
700

Rate per 100,000 population
3
o

10.0
0.0
14 16 18 20 22 24 D6 28 30 B2 B4 36 38 40 42 44 486 48 50 52 2 4| 6/ (8 10 n2
2016 2017
Week/Year
= Plymouth ~ =——— PHE South West =—=-=-England

80.0

70.0
5 60.0

[y
o
o

Rate per 100,000 populati
]
=}

30.0
200
10.0
00 |
14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 B4 36 3§ 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2/ 4 6 |8 10 12
2016 2017
Week/Year

s TOrbay PHE South West ====England

29

Page 212



Figure 6: GP (In hours) gastroenteritis consultation rate, Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly),
Devon, Plymouth, Torbay local authorities, PHE South West and England, 2016/17 (Week 14

2016 - Week 13 2017)

Source: GP In-Hours Bulletin

120.0

8
o

=3
=4
o

Rate per 100,000 population
- @D
o o
o o

20.0
14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 G0 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 B0 52 2| 4| 6 & 10 12
2016 2017
Week/Year
Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly) PHE South West  —=—=—=-England
120.0
100.0

Rate per 100,000 population
@
o
o

20.0
00
14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2 |4 |8 8 10 12
2016 2017
Week/Year
Devon PHE South West ====-England
120.0

c
2
=
3
2
©
a
=3
=3
=3
]
=3
@
s
o
200 -
0.0 . . . . . . . e .
14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 |2) 4| 6| 8 10 12
2016 2017
Week/Year
Plymouth PHE South West = === England
120.0
100.0

Rate per 100,000 population
@
=]
o

200
00
14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 B0 32 34 36 B8 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 (2 4 8 & 10 12
2016 2017
Week/Year
Torbay PHE South West ===~ England

Page 213

30



Scarlet Fever

Scarlet fever is a common childhood infection caused by Streptococcus pyogenes (also
known as Group A Streptococcus [GAS]). Some people carry these bacteria in their nose
and throat, or on their skin without suffering active infections. Under some circumstances
and in some people, GAS can cause infections such as pharyngitis, impetigo and scarlet
fever (these are regarded as non-invasive infections). On rare occasions they can cause
severe disease, including streptococcal toxic shock syndrome, necrotising fasciitis, and

other invasive GAS (iGAS) infection.

Routine national surveillance data for invasive and non-invasive GAS infections suggests a
cyclical pattern with higher incidence peaks evident in notifications approximately every
four years. Seasonal trends show that increased levels of GAS infections typically occur

between December and April, with peak incidence usually in March.

Table 3: Rates (per 100,000 population) of scarlet fever notifications, Cornwall
(including Isles of Scilly), Devon, Plymouth and Torbay local authorities and
PHE South West, 2016/17

Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly) 18.71
Devon 18.72

Plymouth 24.98

Torbay 25.40

PHE South West 26.54

Source: PHE Notifications of Infectious Diseases (NOIDs)

Table 4: Rates (per 100,000 population) of confirmed cases of invasive group A
streptococcal infection, Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly), Devon, Plymouth and
Torbay local authorities and PHE South West, 2016/17

Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly) 4.14
Devon 6.03
Plymouth 9.46
Torbay 8.22
PHE South West 4.82
Source: HPZone

Page 214

31



Table 5: All reports of clusters/outbreaks of streptococcus group A,
by setting and type, Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly), Devon, Plymouth
and Torbay local authorities, 2016/17

Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly) 6 3 0 0 9
Devon 8 4 1 2 15
Plymouth 5 3 0 1 9
Torbay 7 2 0 1 10
Source: Outbreak/cluster data extracted based on date entered onto

HPZone.

32

Page 215



Seasonal influenza

Figure 7: GP (In hours) influenza-like illness consultation rate (i) Devon, (ii)
Plymouth, (iii) Torbay (iv) Cornwall (including Isles of Scilly) local authorities, PHE
South West and England, 2016/17 (Week 14 2016 - Week 13 2017)

Rate per 100,000 population

N4 16 18 20 22 P4 26 28 B30 32 B4 06 28 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2 4 6 &8 10 12

2016 2017
Week/Year

PHE South West ———-England

30,0

14 168 18 20 22 24 28 28 30 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 |2| 4 6 8 10 712
2016 2017
Week/Year

——Piymouth  ——— PHE South West ====-England

Rate per 100,000 population

a
14 18 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2| 4 |6 |8 10 12

2016 2017
Weekifear

Torbay ———PHE South West =-=-England

Rate per 100,000 population

) 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 B4 36 38 40 42 44 48 4B 50 52 |2 4 6 8 10 12

2006 2017
Week/Year

Comwall (including Isles of Scilly)

PHE South West ====England

Due to suppression of rates due to low numbers, for weeks in which the trend graph shows a rate of
0.0, this will not always reflect the true rate.

33

Page 216



Figure 8: All reports of influenza-like illness outbreaks/clusters (suspected or
confirmed) by setting, Devon, Plymouth, Torbay and Cornwall (including Isles of
Scilly) local authorities, Week 14 2016 to Week 13 2017

12

10 Other
= Hospital
= EducationMursery
8 | | m Nursing/Care Home

Number of ILI outbreaks/clusters

14 116 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34 36 238 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 |2/ 4| (6| 8 10 12

2016 2017
Year/Week

o]

Figure 9: All reports of influenza-like iliness outbreaks/clusters (suspected or
confirmed) by setting Devon, Plymouth, Torbay and Cornwall (including Isles of
Scilly) local authorities, 2016/17

Cornwall
(including Isles
of Scilly) 2 2 2 0 6
Devon 24 2 1 2 29
Plymouth 0 1 0 0 1
Torbay 7 0 0 0 7

Outbreak/cluster data extracted based on date entered onto HPZone

Page 217

34



Data Sources

GP In-Hours Bulletin

Weekly GP in hours consultation rate data for influenza like illness accessed from
the PHE GP In Hours Syndromic Surveillance Bulletin.

The GP in hours syndromic surveillance system monitors the number of visits to GPs during
regular surgery hours for known clinical indicators, including influenza-like illness. The
consultation rates are checked daily, and published weekly rates per 100,000 practice population
are presented in this worksheet. This system covers about 55% of England's population.

Care should be taken when comparing rates between areas as differences in rates may be due to
differences in the provider coverage which varies across England.

Data is available here:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/gp-in-hours-bulletin.

HPZone

HPZone is a case management system that captures data on suspected or laboratory confirmed outbreaks
within the community that have been reported to the Public Health England Centres (PHECS).

It is believed that reporting of outbreaks is not uniform or consistent and it is likely that only a small
proportion of outbreaks have samples collected for microbiological confirmation. As such these should be
interpreted with caution as it is likely to underestimate the level of community activity.

HPZone reports were extracted and analysed on date entered.

HNORS

The Hospital Norovirus Outbreak Reporting Scheme (HNORS) is a voluntary web-based surveillance
system, introduced in order to help the NHS share information about norovirus outbreaks in Trusts.

HNORS reports were extracted and analysed on date of outbreak onset.
PHE Notifications of Infections Diseases (NOIDs)

Please note this data is notifications only, not laboratory confirmation. Data is based on date of notification.

35

Page 218



Appendix 3

(3) Immunisation performance 2016-17

Annual childhood immunisations by local authority showing percentage
coverage for latest three years

Cohort Indicator Standard ' | Geography 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
i Devon 95.7 92.0 92.6
352;:;;;’:“'3“0” Plymouth 96.7 95.5 96.9
95 Torbay 95.7 95.5 96.3
coverage - Dtap /
IPV / Hib Cornwall & loS 93.0 94.5 93.9
England 94.2 93.6 93.4
Devon 95.2
3.03iv - Population Plymouth 97.3
12 months | vaccination 95 Torbay 97.4
coverage - MenC Cornwall & loS 96.3
England -
Devon 95.6 92.4 93.1
3.03v - Population Plymouth 96.3 95.4 96.9
vaccination 95 Torbay 95.7 95.9 96.4
coverage - PCV Cornwall & loS 92.5 94.7 94.0
England 93.9 93.5 93.5
3.03iii - Population Devon 96.9 96.2 95.3
vaccination Plymouth 98.3 97.7 97.6
coverage - Dtap / 95 Torbay 97.9 97.5 98.0
IPV / Hib (2 years Cornwall & loS 94.4 95.8 96.1
old) England 95.7 95.2 95.1
) . Devon 93.6 91.8 92.4
ﬁi;’rz;t'i’g:“'a“o” Plymouth 95.2 95.1 94.5
. 95 Torbay 94.2 94.9 94.8
coverage - Hib /
MenC booster Cornwall & loS 90.8 92.6 92.6
24 months England 92.1 91.6 91.5
3.03vii - Devon 93.8 91.9 92.7
Population Plymouth 96.0 94.9 94.5
vaccination 95 Torbay 94.9 94.7 95.1
coverage - PCV Cornwall & loS 91.0 93.2 93.0
booster England 92.2 91.5 91.5
3.03viii - Devon 93.7 92.5 934
Population Plymouth 95.6 95.4 95.3
vaccination 95 Torbay 94.5 95.2 95.2
coverage - MMR Cornwall & loS 91.7 92.5 93.0
for one dose | England 92.3 91.9 91.6
36

Page 219




Cohort Indicator Standard ' | Geography 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
3.03ix - Populati Devon 95.2 95.5 95.7
vécc;’;;tié’r‘:’“ ation Plymouth 96.4 96.6 97.4

95 Torbay 94.1 96.8 97.8
coverage - MMR
Cornwall & loS 95.8 96.2 96.1
for one dose
England 94.4 94.8 95.0
3.03vi - Pooulati Devon 89.7 94.9 94.8
Vécc;’r']a'tig:“ ation Plymouth 94.3 94.8 95.3
. 95 Torbay 92.8 96.1 96.9
coverage - Hib /
Cornwall & loS 93.5 95.1 95.1
Men C booster
England 92.4 92.6 92.6
5 years 3.03x - Pooulati Devon 90.6 91.5 91.3
vécc?n;ti‘;"r’]“ ation Plymouth 89.5 90.4 91.4
95 Torbay 89.9 92.1 92.1
coverage - MMR
Cornwall & loS 91.0 91.6 90.9
for two doses
England 88.6 88.2 87.6

1 National Screening and immunisation Programme standard. Where this is blank, no standard has been set.

Where coverage is blank, no programme was in place or data is not yet available.

Page 220

37




Annual adult immunisations by local authority showing percentage
coverage for latest three years

Standard®

Indicator Geography 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Devon 87.2
Plymouth 86.7
3.03xii - Population vaccination
coverage - HPV (%) 86.1 Torbay 87.2
Cornwall & loS 81.4
England 89.4
Devon 70.2 70.2
| Plymouth 69.4 68.7
3.03xiii - Population vaccination
coverage - PPV (%) 68.9 Torbay 68.1 67.5
Cornwall & loS 66.3 67.0
England 69.8 70.1
Devon 70.8 69.8 69.8
Plymouth 73.4 71.5 70.3
3.03xiv - Population vaccination
7 T 7. il
coverage - Flu (aged 65+) (%) > orbay 67.3 66 66.4
Cornwall & loS 70.4 69.4 68.4
England 72.7 71 70.5
Devon 44.5 42 46.2
3.03xv - Population vaccination Plymouth 49.9 44.9 46.0
coverage - Flu (at risk 75 Torbay 44.6 40.6 45.8
individuals) (%) Cornwall & loS 49.4 45.6 44.4
England 50.3 45.1 48.6
Devon 41.6 41.3 44.3
3.03xviii - Population Plymouth 36.3 33.6 37.2
vaccination coverage - Flu (2-4 Torbay 37.0 34.8 38.4
years old) (%) Cornwall & loS 34.6 33.8 342
England 37.6 34.4 38.1
Devon 64 60.3
3.03xvii - Population vaccination Plymouth 59.2 54.3
coverage - Shingles vaccination Torbay 59.3 52.6
coverage (70 years old) (%) Cornwall & loS 61.5 53.8
England 59 54.9
Source: Public Health Outcomes Framework, Public Health England.
! National Screening and Immunisation Programme standard.
Where coverage is blank, no programme was in place or data is not yet available.
38

Page 221




Appendix 4

(4) National screening programmes - summary

NS gm“mwm NHS SCreening Timeline Screening Programmes

NHS

www.screening.nhs.uk/england

Page 222

hitp:ficpd screaning nhs.ulkdtimeine
Linked Antenatal and Newborn Sickde Cell
and Thalassasmia

Infectious Diseases in Pregnancy

Down's Syndrome and Fetal Anomaly
Ultrasound Screening

Newborn Hearing

Newborn and infant Physical Examination
Newborn Blood Spot

39



Appendix 5

(5) Screening performance

Cancer screening (breast, cervical, bowel) — showing percentage
coverage for latest three years

Lower

Indicator threshold ! | Standard? | Geography | 2014 | 2015 | 2016
Devon 79.1 79.1 78.8
Breast Cancer screenin Plymouth 784\ 7911 793
8 70 80 Torbay 765 | 76.7| 747

coverage
Cornwall 80.1 80.3 80.0
England 75.9 75.4 75.5
Devon 77.5 77.7 77.1
Cervical Cancer screenin Plymouth 7591755 745
g 75 80 Torbay 76.0| 759| 74.8

coverage
Cornwall 76.3 76.4 75.7
England 74.2 73.5 72.7
Devon 60.5 62.6
Bowel Cancer screenin Plymouth 613 616
8 55 60 Torbay 620| 61.4

coverage
Cornwall 58.3 60.5
England 57.1 57.9

! Threshold based on 2017-18 Public Health Functions Agreement.
2 National Screening and Immunisation Programme Standard.
Where coverage is blank, no programme was in place or data is not yet available.

40

Page 223



Non cancer screening — showing percentage coverage for latest three years

Trust/Service 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Indicator Acceptable' | Achievable® Geography | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 Qa4 Qa4 Qa4
Annual figure Quarterly figure
Devon Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust 99.8 99.1 100.0
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust 99.1 99.8 99.5
Infectious Plymouth Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust 99.7 99.6 99.7
diseases in 5290 5295 h .
pregnancy - HIV = = Torbay South Devon Foundation Trust 97.4
coverage Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust 97.2 99.2
Cornwall Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust 99.3 99.7 99.9
England 98.9 98.9 99.1
Devon Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust 99.6 99.5 100.0
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust 99.3 99.8 99.5
U Plymouth Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust 99.8 99.8 99.7
Qjckle cell and 5205 5299 b b dati
%alassaemia = = Torbay South Devon Foundation Trust 98.6
Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust 97.7 99.2
B Cornwall Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust 99.4 99.7 99.9
B England 98.9 98.9 99.1
Devon 90.9 85.1 82.2 NHS North, East, West Devon (CCG at birth) 86.5 90.7 97.6
>=99.9 Plymouth 91.9 82.0 83.2 | NHS North, East, West Devon 86.5 90.7 97.6
Newborn blood
spot >=95 Torbay 94.7 99.8 77.4 NHS South Devon and Torbay 99.5 86.0 94.1
Cornwall 89.2 - - NHS Kernow 72.4 86.9 92.3
England 93.5 95.8 95.6
Devon 98.6 98.7 98.8 North Devon 98.8 98.6 98.5
Torbay and Teignbridge 98.9 98.7 99.4
Pl th 99.2 99.4 99.4 Pl th 99.0 99.5 99.2
Newborn hearing >=95 >=99.5 ymou ymou
Torbay 98.9 99.4 99.4 Torbay and Teignbridge 98.9 98.7 99.4
Cornwall 99.5 99.8 99.8 Cornwall and Isles of Scilly 99.8 99.9 99.7
England 98.5 98.5 98.7

41




Trust/Service 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Indicator Acceptable' | Achievable® Geography | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 Qa4 Qa4 Qa4
Devon Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust - 98.5 98.6
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust 98.9 97.9 99.1
Newborn & infant Plymouth Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust 100.0 97.6 96.2
physical >=95 >=99.5 Torbay South Devon Foundation Trust - 97.3 97.0
examination Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust 99.5 86.0 94.1
Cornwall Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust - - -
England 93.3 94.9
North and East Devon Diabetic Eye Screening
Devon Programme 82.8 82.6 87.5
South Devon NHS Diabetic Eye Screening
Programme 86.9 87.7 87.1
% .
D'abet'_c eye >=70 >=80 Plymouth Plymouth Diabetic Eye Screening Programme 79.9 80.1 79.6
screening South Devon NHS Diabetic Eye Screening
Torbay Programme 86.9 87.7 87.1
;? Cornwall Cornwall Diabetic Eye Screening Programme 81.4 81.5 78.8
(@) England 82.9 83.0
® Devon 87.4 87.3 86.1 South Devon AAA Screening Cohort 99.9 99.9 99.9
B Somerset and North Devon AAA Screening
ol Cohort 100.0 99.8 100.0
* Abdominal . .
) >=67.5 >=75 Plymouth 83.1 81.2 83.1 Peninsula AAA Screening Cohort 99.3 99.7 99.9
Aortic Aneurysm -
Torbay 85.4 84.3 80.2 South Devon AAA Screening Cohort 99.9 99.9 99.9
Cornwall 83.8 83.3 83.5 Peninsula AAA Screening Cohort 99.3 99.7 99.9
England 77.4 79.4 79.9

* All figures are for coverage except provider figures for diabetic eye screening which represent uptake, & AAA figures which represent 'completeness of

offer".

42




Appendix 6

(6) Healthcare association infections (HCAI) 2016-17

MRSA
NEW Devon

Four cases were recorded in NEW Devon Clinical Commissioning Group between April 2016 and
March 2017. Three were community acquired and one in an acute hospital. None of the four
cases were connected. All cases have had Post Infection Reviews (PIRs) completed and lessons
learned shared with relevant involved teams.

South Devon and Torbay
There was one recorded acute acquired MRSA and one community case.
NHS Kernow

Seven cases were recorded in Cornwall patients in 2016-17: two acute assigned, three CCG
assigned, two third party assigned. One patient accounted for two cases and one case was in an
injecting drug user.

MSSA
NEW Devon

MSSA bacteraemia rates for the NEW Devon Clinical Commissioning Group population have
fluctuated above and below the Public Health England, England and South West average rate
lines. Providers of hospital and community services provide information to the clinical
commissioning group as part of their performance reporting obligations. There has been a recent
rise in community-acquired MSSA bacteraemia, and the reasons for this have not yet been
established.

Figure 1 Methicillin sensitive staphylococcus aureus bacteraemias by month for NEW Devon
Clinical Commissioning Group

MSSA rates across NEW Devon CCG, rolling 12 month data

c

K]

®

S

Q.

3

o &

o

o

=)

o

-l

3 o-

[}

LA S N N S
R & DS (_)Q/Q F S &

HEm Acute + community hospital acquired
s Community acquired
. Total

43

Page 226



South Devon and Torbay

For the year ending March 2017 there were a total of 105 cases of MSSA reported against a target
of 145. There were 16 acute acquired MSSA bacteraemia against a target of 8. This may be in
part due to the installation of the new BD Bactec Fx which is more sensitive and will isolate more
Staphylococci. Review and root cause analysis identified ‘lapse in care’ for 6 of the 16 cases.

NHS Kernow

MSSA rates in NHS Kernow were below the South West rates during 2016-17. The Royal
Cornwall Hospital experienced an increased incidence during the first quarter.

Figure 2. NEW Kernow MSSA rates 2014 - 2017

6 Months Rolling Average of Rate

30.00 4
o o

—_ 25.00 1 B "=
= =
8 3 e a ©
o ‘.- - .l--.. [ - - >
S 2000 .- 7 .
— - z L
T
=9 k]
&
= 15.00
2
B
>
= _
2 1000
(=%
(-
«
o
= 5.00
=
=
=
2o
= 0.00 | T T I e I R A N AR . L L L G TV R . B . S I L Y IO L IS R I SN . L R )
o TETTCTTTTTHODDHLHOOHODOHDIODDDDDDDDDDDDODD "~~~

= T Y Y Y T € P Y e e - g - g e Y g e g g Y g g

E.coli bacteraemia
NEW Devon

E. coli bacteraemias for the NEW Devon Clinical Commissioning Group hospital sector and clinical
commissioning group population in the rolling 12 months as shown in the graph below broadly
track the averages provided by Public Health England for England and the South West. The
Clinical Commissioning Group Patient Safety and Quality Team monitor data by locality and
hospital to scrutinise trends and enable performance to be questioned as required. The Quality
Premium for Gram negative bloodstream infections aims to reduce E.coli numbers, and is being
supported by the CCG.

44

Page 227



Figure 3: Rates of E.coli bacteraemia, by month, April 2016 — March 2017 for NEW Devon
Clinical Commissioning Group

E coli rates across NEW Devon CCG, rolling 12 month data

O R N W b U1 OO N X

Rate per 100,000 population

N N N N N N
VQ‘ S &Y 8 & L 3 & & & @é
E Acute + community hospital acquired mmm Community acquired
I Total PHE South West average

== PHE England average

South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group

For the year ending March 2017 there was a total of 236 cases of E-coli bacteraemia reported
across South Devon & Torbay.

NHS Kernow

E-coli rates continue to rise. Work began in 2016-17 to prepare a focus on E-coli bacteraemia
reduction. Best practice indicators are being explored in the acute setting to enable evaluation of
care lapses linked to cases with biliary sources. In the community, actions are planned around:

Catheter Passport;

Re-launch of the trial without catheter (TWOC) pathway tool;

Adult Community Services (ACS) sites are moving over to RIO for electronic notes (looking to
add a prompt function for indwelling devices);

Use of an illustrative tool for ACS ward staff (catheter insitu);

Focus on hydration;

Stewardship (comms around new first line choice of ABX for UTls, Audit);

Joint visit to the ward with highest prevalence rate of catheters the previous month by IPAC
and Continence Nurse;

Roadshow/masterclass on catheters/bladder scanners/TWOC,;

Bladder scanners - identifying where they are, whether staff know how to use them and when

to use them. Consideration of a capital bid if more are required.

45

Page 228



Figure 4: NHS Kernow E-Coli bacteraemia rates 2014-2017

6 Months Rolling Average of Rate

$0.00
8  60.00-
S
=
C
[
=3
= 40.00-
o
B
2
(=]
Q
5  20.00-
o
e
-
-
= 0.00
(14

e g o o o o o o o g

C. difficile infection

NEW Devon

The graph below shows community acquired infection (CAI) and hospital acquired infection (HAI)
cases of C.difficile infection. The community acquired infection cases, which make up the larger
proportion of the population cases, are not scrutinised for avoidability like those in acute and
community hospitals. A system to inform General Practices of these cases and request Significant

Event Audits (SEAS) on behalf of NHS England South, South West is in place.

The Clinical Commissioning Group was under its nationally set trajectory of 219 cases with a total

of 181 cases. This shows that C.difficile infection is reasonably under control.

The Clinical Commissioning Group will not be offering a local CQUIN to Acute Trusts on the
exploration of value of a community infection management service. The Clinical Commissioning
Group will only be offering national CQUINs in 2017-18 for Acute Trusts, due to the overarching
situation of the Success Regime.

Page 229

46



Figure 5: Rates of C.difficile infection, by month, April 2016 — March 2017 for hospital and

community acquired infections for NEW Devon CCG

C difficile rates across NEW Devon CCG, rolling 12 month

5 data
c data
1]

s

>

(=}

[«]

o

[=)

[=) —
S

(=)

o

(o]

g

g 0-

[

E 0 N 00 0 0 N A

\"\'\’o\’ QOQ’\’&'\’A"\'C\’GQ'
RO AN R RPN e
N Acute + community hospital acquired
s Community acquired
. Total
e CCG trajectory

South Devon and Torbay

The CCG target given to provider was set at no more than 18 ‘lapses in care’ from 1/4/16 to

31/3/17. Torbay hospital had 8 ‘lapses in care’. For the community hospitals an internal target of

4 ‘lapses in care’ was set and there was zero ‘lapses in care’ identified. All hospitals were within

targets set for C.difficile and the reduction in C.difficile in Torbay can be seen in the graph below.

Figure 6: South Devon and Torbay C.difficile rates 2014-2017

08 C. difficile

Public Healtk Monthly counts of reports of C. difMclle Intection
England
TOREBAY AND S0OUTH DEVON NHS FOUMNDATION TRUST

Humbser of reports
H q

H

af

SHHTL .I“]u il

PR E R R EES R RIS EREEEIRIRTIIIREERGRR
f—.ééﬁéiiiiéééé;éEEEEEEE%%EE%EEEEEEEEE
Year - manth
.u:u-mnwm.m-.:mrnuwmm.nm == £ manih maving aserage of delal reporis
14 Mandatory HGAI Monihly Sunvellance Report

Page 230

47



A faecal transplant service has now been introduced at Torbay & South Devon NHS Foundation
Trust for patients with recurrent C.difficile, in accordance with NICE Interventional Procedure
Guidance (NG485) recommendations. To date five patients have been offered faecal transplant;
two declined and three were successful.

NHS Kernow

The Clinical Commissioning Group exceeded the 2016-17 objective of 25.00 cases with an outturn
of 28.09 (per 100,000 population), which is above the South West figure of 25.45. The majority of
acute cases were assessed as avoidable via the lapse in care system.

Figure 7: NHS Kernow C.difficile rates 2014-2017

6 Months Rolling Average of Rate

40.00 §
-
L]
- = L) -
= 30.00 4 o A =
= .——— ] =
> = - = =
8 ~ o u -
< 25 il = = e E
=

= = - Bl
& —
p— 20.00 1
o
B
=4
=3
o
5 10.00
o
ey
=2
=
= 0.00
o T T T T T T TT T ORI OVNVNOODDNDODDDDODDDDDOD ~ "~

B L i

—=— C. difficile

48

Page 231



HCAI outbreaks

NEW Devon

The following outbreaks graph shows the amount of ward and bay closures occurring in NEW
Devon Clinical Commissioning Group hospitals as a proxy for the impact on service. The two
graphs beneath it show the comparative outbreak types in nursing homes and educational facilities

over the same time period.

Figure 8: Ward and Bay closures across NEW Devon Clinical Commissioning Group by month

showing comparison with 2015/16 and 2014/15

Cumulative hospital impact of outbreaks in NEW Devon: 2016/17 compared with a good year (2015/16) and
a bad year (2014/15).

— — ——
—_ —
12345678 910111213141516171819202122232425262728293031323334353637383940414243444546474849505152
Week (as financial year)
—2014/15 =———2015/16 =——2016/17
Outbreaks in nursing & residential homes within NEW
Devon CCG (cumulative, 2016/17)

140
120
100

80 I

60 I

40 I

20 'H N | I

0 IIIIIIIIIIIIII T TT T T TT T T T TT T T TT L L T T TT L T III T T 1T T 1771 L
1 2 5 7 9111315171921232527293133353739414345474951
Week
M Respiratory ® D&V
Outbreaks in educational facilities within NEW Devon
CCG (cumulative, 2016/17)

60

50

40

30 I

20

10 AR EN I

0 lIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII T T T T T T T°T T T T T T T T T TT T T T T TTT L

1 3 5 7 9 111315171921232527293133353739414345474951

Week
M Respiratory m D&V

South Devon and Torbay

Between April 2016 and March 2017 there were six ward closures (15 days total closure) within
the acute hospital. In the community hospitals there were four ward closures (22 days total
closure). Overall the KPI of individual ward closure for no more than 12 days was maintained.

Page 232

49



NHS Kernow

The chart below shows combined hospital and community outbreak notifications of suspected
Norovirus.

Figure 9: NHS Kernow HCAI ward closures 2016/17

Confirmed/Suspected Noro by week 2016/17
(wards shown by week of closure only)

5 m other
u schools
r
® homes
3 m comm wards closed

= acute wards closed

o ALHI T I T T T

10121416 182022242628303234363840424446485052 2 4 6 8 10

Page 233

50



Appendix 7

(7) Anti-microbial resistance: trends and developments

E. coli bacteraemia

Rates of E.coli bacteraemia cases reported through the Healthcare Associated Infections (HCAI)
mandatory scheme have increased both nationally and locally in recent years (Table 1). The rate
of E.coli bacteraemia per 100,000 population increased by 16% in England between 2013/14 and
2016/17, and by 22% in North, East & West (NEW) Devon CCG, 12% in South Devon and Torbay
CCG and 27% in Kernow CCG over the same time period. Between 2015/16 and 2016/17 the rate
of E.coli bacteraemia per 100,000 population increased by 6% in England, and by 2% in NEW
Devon CCG, by 9% in South Devon and Torbay CCG and by 16% in Kernow CCG.

Table 1: E.coli bacteraemia rates per 100,000 population, by CCG and England, 2013/14 to 2016/17

Financial Year North, East and South Devon Kernow CCG England
West (NEW) and Torbay CCG
Devon CCG
2013/14 57.2 78.2 55.9 63.7
2014/15 66.9 77.2 53.7 65.9
2015/16 68.4 80.1 61.4 69.8
2016/17 69.6 87.6 71.0 74.1

Source: HCAI Data Capture System

The PHE Health Protection Report on E.coli bacteraemia® reported that between 2012 and 2016 in
England there was no change in the antibiotic resistance of E.coli isolates to selected
antimicrobials, except for resistance to piperacillin/ftazobactam and amoxicillin/clavlulanate which
increased from 10% to 12% and from 37% to 41% respectively. However, these increases are
likely to be due to changes in testing methods.

In 2016 in England, resistance of E.coli bacteraemia isolates to gentamicin, ciprofloxacin, third
generation cephalosporins, piperacillin/ftazobactam and amoxicillin/clavulanate were 10%, 19%,
22%, 12% and 41% respectively. Therefore, the increases in E.coli bacteraemia infections mean
that the number of people affected by antibiotic-resistant infections is increasing.

Rates of E.coli resistant bacteraemia are substantially higher in the elderly, with elevated rates
also seen in infants (<1 year old). Figure 1, taken from the English surveillance programme for
antimicrobial utilisation and resistance (ESPAUR) report 20162, demonstrates this for two antibiotic
classes. Therefore, when implementing interventions to reduce antibiotic resistance it may be
necessary for particular focus to be placed on these age groups®.

51

Page 234



Figure 1: Rates of E. coli bacteraemia resistant to third-generation cephalosporins or
ciprofloxacin in patients of different age groups.

60 -

50 -

Rate per 100,000 population
o
o

20 -
10 -
<1 1to 14 14 to 64 65to 74 =74
Age group
m Third-generation cephalosporins m Ciprofloxacin

Data derived from voluntary reports to SGSS; 85% of isolates were subject to susceptibility
tests
Source: ESPAUR Report 20167

The AMR local indicators provide further local data on the resistance of E.coli to important
antibiotics. The indicators present the proportion of E.coli blood specimens that are non-
susceptible to certain antibiotics (3" generation cephalosporins, ciprofloxacin, gentamicin and
piperacillin/tazobactam), where non-susceptible means that the organism isolated from the
specimen is resistant to the antibiotic. Data from these indicators for NEW Devon, South Devon
and Torbay and Kernow CCG are presented below.

Figure 2: Rolling quarterly average proportion of E. coli blood specimens non-
susceptible to 3" generation cephalosporins, by quarter

16

14 k\
&€ -
5 12 — = —
%10
8 /
R
£ 6
=
2 4
2
0
O-D J-M A-J J-5 O-D
2015 2016

—l—NEWVWY Devon -—l=—South Devon and Torbay =—@—|Kernow -—@==England

Source: PHE AMR local indicators®

Page 235

52



Figure 3: Rolling quarterly average proportion of E. coli blood specimens non-susceptible

to gentamicin, by quarter

12

10 — —= ——

% non-susceptible
o

“-—-._.______——-7
4
2
o
O-D J-M1 | A-J J-5 O-D
2015 2016

—m— NEVV Devon -—m— South Devon and Torbay —#—Kernow -—8=— England

Source: PHE AMR local indicators®

Figure 4: Rolling quarterly average proportion of E. coli blood specimens non-susceptible

to piperacillin/tazobactam, by quarter

16

14 \

'
/
l
|
‘

% non-susceptible

O N & O

O-D J-M A-J J-S O-D
2015 20186

—m—MNEVYY Devon —m—South Devon and Torbay —s—Kernow —a—England

Source: PHE AMR local indicators®

Figure 5: Rolling quarterly average proportion of E. coli blood specimens non-susceptible

to ciprofloxacin, by quarter*

N
o

% non-susceptible
S T T T T —
ON & DOONK DD

O-D J-M A-J J-8 O-D
2015 2016

—m—MNEYY Devon —m— South Devon and Torbay —s—Kernow —a—England

*Where less than 70% specimens have been tested for a particular CCG the results have been suppressed for data

quality reasons.
Source: PHE AMR local indicators®

Page 236

53



For these particular drug/bug combinations, resistance within the Devon and Cornwall areas are
similar to or lower than those in England. For NEW Devon, Kernow and South Devon and Torbay
CCGs, these proportions were in the lower three quintiles of all CCGs in England. However, it
must be noted that these are only a small subsection of antimicrobial resistance data.

In order to effectively monitor changes in antibiotic resistance it is vital that isolates are tested for
their susceptibility to antibiotics.

The AMR local indicators also provide data on the percentage of E.coli blood specimens that are
tested against various antibiotics (3" generation cephalosporins, ciprofloxacin, gentamicin,
piperacillin/tazobactam and a carbapenem), with this data benchmarked against the goal of 100%
of blood specimens susceptibility tested.

For these antibiotic classes, testing in NEW Devon CCG did not reach the benchmark of 100% of
E.coli blood specimens tested in quarter 4 of 2016. In quarter 4 of 2016, Kernow CCG also did not
reach the benchmark for E.coli blood specimens tested against gentamicin and NEW Devon,
Kernow and South Devon & Torbay CCGs all did not reach the 100% benchmark for E.coli blood
specimens tested against piperacillin/tazobactam. However, it must be noted that in all instances
where an aforementioned CCG did not reach the 100% benchmark, testing of E. coli blood
specimens remained high, at over 95%.

Klebsiella bacteraemia

Between 2015 and 2016 the total number of reports of Klebsiella spp. bacteraemia in England,
Wales and Northern Ireland increased by 15%, an increase in population rate from 13.0 to 15.0 per
100,000 population. Between 2012 and 2016 antimicrobial resistance in Klebsiella spp.
bacteraemia isolates in England and Northern Ireland remained relatively stable. Increases in
resistance to piperacillin/tazobactam were seen with resistance reported in 17% of isolates in 2016
compred to 13% in 2012*. However, this may reflect recent changes to testing. Nevertheless, as
with E.coli bacteraemia, increases in Klebsiella spp. bacteraemia will result in increases in the
number of antibiotic resistant infections occurring.

Changes to mandatory surveillance

The increases in gram-negative bloodstream infections, as described above in relation to E.coli
and Klebsiella spp., have resulted in a focus on these infections. The Secretary of State for Health
has announced an ambition to reduce healthcare associated Gram-negative bloodstream
infections by 50% by 2021. Consequently, from April 2017 the surveillance of bacteraemias has
been extended to include Klebsiella spp. and Pseudomonas aeruginosa infections. Although not
yet mandatory, it is expected that this additional surveillance will become mandatory, and the
mandate will be backdated to April 2017.

Carbapenemase producing organisms

Carbapenemase-producing organisms (CPO) are organisms that have resistance to carbapenems
through the production of enzymes called carbapenemases. Although carbapenem resistance
remains uncommon, data from the PHE Antimicrobial Resistance and Healthcare Associated
Infections (AMRHAI) Reference Unit show a continued year-on-year increase in the numbers of
confirmed CPOs, with 1893 Enterobacteriaceae confirmed as carbapenemase-producing in 20157,
In 2016/17 there were 13 isolates referred from hospitals within Devon, Torbay, Cornwall and
Plymouth local authorities that were confirmed as CPOs by AMRHAI, an increase from 2015/16, in
which 9 isolates were confirmed CPOs. The Health Protection Team liaised with each Trust
involved to ensure that they were comfortable with following the procedures for dealing with CPO
positive cases as outlined in the Trust toolkit.

54

Page 237



References

1. Public Health England. Laboratory surveillance of Escherichia coli bacteraemia in England,
Wales and Northern Ireland: 2016. Health Protection Report 2017;11(18)
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/615340/hprl

817 ecoli.pdf

2. Public Health England. English surveillance programme for antimicrobial utilisation and
resistance (ESPAUR). Report 2016
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/575626/ESP
AUR_Report 2016.pdf

3. Public Health England. AMR Local Indicators https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/amr-local-
indicators

4. Public Health England. Laboratory surveillance of Klebsiella spp. bacteraemia in England,
Wales and Northern Ireland: 2016. Health Protection Report 2017;11(18)
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/615375/hprl

817 klbsll.pdf

55

Page 238


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/615340/hpr1817_ecoli.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/615340/hpr1817_ecoli.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/575626/ESPAUR_Report_2016.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/575626/ESPAUR_Report_2016.pdf
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/amr-local-indicators
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/amr-local-indicators
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/615375/hpr1817_klbsll.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/615375/hpr1817_klbsll.pdf

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA)
	Appendix 1

	8 Developing the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Work Programme of the Health and Wellbeing Board
	9 Improving the health, care and wellbeing of the people of South Devon and Torbay through a Local Care Partnerships
	10 2018-20 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Torbay
	JSNA Appendix 1

	11 Health Protection Report for Health and Wellbeing Boards of Devon County Council, Plymouth City Council, Torbay Council and Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly Councils 2016-2017

